HABIBMETRO

ANNUAL REPORT

/

[Subisickary of Hablb Bark A0 2urich |



HaAB I SALTICOL T TN BANK

[ Bubsldiary of Habity Bank AG Zurich )




Our Vision

Based on a foundation of trust,
to be the most respected financial institution,
delighting customers with excellence,
enjoying the loyalty of a dedicated team,
meeting the expectations of regulators and
participating in social causes while
providing superior returns to shareholders



HABIBMETRO

CONTENTS
Corporate Information 02
Metice of Aﬁnual General Meeting 03
f;airrnan‘s Review to thé Shareholders 0s
Directars' Report to the Shareholders 06
statement of Compliance with Best Practicas of Code of Corporate Governance 13
Auditors’ Review Report to the Members on Statément of Compliance with

Best Practices of Code of Corporate Governance 15
Staterment of [nternal Controls 16
Sharia’h Advisors Report l;
Auditors'Report to the Members 19
Unconsolidated Statemenit of Finaricial Position 20
Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account 21
Unconsolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income 22
Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement 23
Unconsolidated Statemenit of Changes in Equity 24
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 25
Pattern of Sharehcldings 108
Consolidated Financtal Statements 1M1
Branch Network 204

Frosy Form



CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN
Kassim Parekh

PRESIDENT & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Sirajuddin Aziz

DIRECTORS

Al 5. Habib

Firasat Ali
mMoharmedali R, Habib
Moharmed Bashir
Muharamad H. Habib
S5chail Hasan

Tarig lkrarn

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Ali 5. Habib

Kassirm Parekh

Tarig kram

CREDIT COMMITTEE

Kassim Parekh

wohamedall R Habib

Muhammad H. Habib

Sirajuddin Aziz

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mahamedali B Habib

Sirajuddin Aziz

Tariqy lkram

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Kassirm Parekh

sirajuddin Aziz

Sohail Hasan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Muharmimad lmran

SHARE REGISTRAR

Nable Cornputer Services {Private) Limited
First Floor, Siddigsons Tower,

3-Jinnah C.H. Society, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 75350.




HABIBMETRO

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Natice is hereby given that the Twenty Third Annual General Meeting of the sharebolders of Habib Metrapalitan Bank Ltel. will b
held at the Moosa D. Dessai Auditorium, Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, G-31/8, Chartered Accountants Averiue,
- Clifton, Karachi an Monday, 30 March 2015 at 1000 am. to transact the fallowing business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Auglited Accounts, standalone as well as consolidated, of the Bank for the vear ended 31
Dlecember 2014 together with the Directors’ and Auditers' rapors thereon,

2 Toapprove, as recommended by the Board of Directors, dividend @ 25% fRs. 2.50 per share) in the form of cash,

3. To appoint auditors for the financial year ending 31 December 2015 and fix their remuneration. The present auditors,
Messss, KPMG Taseer Hadh & Co, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appoimtment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Toapprove provision of appropriate office premises and support staff to the Chairman for carrying out his duties in his capacity
&3 the Chairrnan of the Board.

3 Toapprove remuneration paid 1o the directars during the year ended 31 December 2014,

A staternent of material fact under section 160(1) (b} of the Campanies Ordinance, 1584 relating to the aforesaid special business
1o be transacted at the said Annual Gereral Meeting Is appended below:

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

6. Toconsider any other busingss with the permission of the Chair

By order of the Board

MUHAMMAD IMRAN
Karachi: 26 Fetruary 2015 Company Secratary

NOTES:

1. Amember entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as histher prowy to atiend the meeting
and vole for him / her. Proxy foim is enclosed. A proxy must be a member of the Bank. Piciies, in order to be effective, must
be receivad at the Registered Office of the Bank, duly stamped, signed and witnessed, not less than 48 {forty eight) howrs before
the mizeting,

2 COC account holders and sub-aceount holders are required to bring with them their National [dentity Card alang with the
participants IL numbers and their account numbers in order to facilitate identification.

3. Members are requested to natify the change of addresses, if any.

The share transfer baok of the bank will remain Closed from 12 March 2015 ta 30 Masch 2015 fboth days inclusive),



STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACT UNDER SECTION 160 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

This statement sets out the material Facts concerning the special busingss to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the
Bank ta be held on 30 March 2015,

Approval of the shareholders will be sought for the following:

1. “Resolved that the expense incurred for providing of office prernises and suppart staff to the Chairman of the Board of
Directors during the year ended 31 Decernber 2014, as disclosed n the note 281 to the Ann wal Accounts of the Bank, be and
is heraby approved”

2 “Resalved that the remuneration paid to the Directars of the Bank during the year ended 31 Decernber 2074, as disclosed in
the note 36 to the Annual Accounts of the Bank, be and is hereby approved”

None of the Directors are interested except to the extent stated above in the special business.




HABIBMETRO

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
el

O behalf of the directors of Habib Meyopalitan Bank, it gives me immense pleasure to present this repary, together with the finandial
statements of the Bank for the vear ended 31 Decernber 2014 The operating finangial results and approgiations, as recommended
by the: Board of Directors, are summarized below;

Dear Shareholders,

Rupees in ‘000
Profit before provisions and tax 9,389 899
Prowision for non-performing boans, investrmenits & other assets (2077,579)
Profit before tax §312320
Taxation - Curent (2,756,582
- Ceferred 370827
{2,385,750)
Profit after tax 4,506,560
Un-appropriated profit braught forward 6652412
Other comprehensive income 4319
Profit available for appropriation 1t 624091
Appropriations:
- Transfer to Statutory Reserve Q85312
- Cashdividend (Rs, 200 per share) - 2013 (2,055 663)
{3,080.375)
Un-approprlated profit carried forward 8543118

The Directors are pleased to propose a final cash dividend of Ps, 250 per share (2585} for the year under review,

By Allah's grace, your Bank achiewved new milestones during the year, The Bank's deposits increased Ly 29% to Rs. 320 hillion as
compared o Rs. 247.6 bililon at end of previous vear. Advances increased 1o Bs. 1342 billion at the year-end, whereas total assats
increased 1o Rs. 3974 billion,

HabitMetro's profi after tax increased by 39% to s, 4.9 billion during the year 2014, which demonstrates the banis robusk earming
caparity. This perforrnance translates intg an EPS of Rs. 470 per share.

At year-end, HabitMetio's equity stands at Rupess 30.2 billion, with 3 capital adequacy level of 17.3% against the required 10%,
This review fomns an integral part of the Birectors' Repart to the Shareholders.

| would like ta take this oppartunity to place on record our sincere gratitude 1o Ministry of Finance, State Bank of Pakistan and
Securities and Exchange Commnission of Pakistan for their suppert and continued guidance and to our valued customers far their

tiust and support. | thank the staff members for their devition, diligence and adrimble performance.

We bow to Aliah and pray for His blessings and guidarce.

n behalf of the Board

KASSIM PAREKH
Karachi: 26 Fetvuary 2015 Chairman



DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Crear Sharehalders:

It gives me great pleasure o present you the annLal accounts of Habits Metropalitan Bank {HabibMetro), for the financial year ended
31 Decermber 2014,

ECONOMIC AND BANKING REVIEW

The year 2014 was beset with myriad developrrents ahering the economic landscape that we operate within. Inflationary pressuras
exhibited a decelaration - largely driven by downward trend of global commodities and ail prices. The rechaction in inflation also
renew hope of impraved competitiveness of Pakistani exports,

Fiseal dleficit was contained and effarts towards government borawing curtailment were also witniessed. This progress towards fiscal
consolidation - and subsequent reduction in budgetary borrowing - with relaxed menetary stance adopted by the SBF. emearged
as ke drivers of private seqtor credit growth,

¢l inflation touched & Yow af 4.3 percent in December 2014, and average CPl inflation during July-December 2074 marked a1t 6.1
percent, A broad based declining trend in inflation is expected as the outlook of inflationary pressures in the mediurn to long-term
remains dependent upan prices of commordities and il

O the exterrial front, faking intermaticnal cotten prices anel stiff competitian in low value-acded textiles are expected 1o exert more
pressLre on our exports, in a global arena that is already plagued by weak elarnand. While Intemational il price decrease, through
its expected favorable impact on trade balance, contributed in improving the external sectar outlock in recent months and caused
wrade defiit 1o decline in Novermber and December 2014, During the year, Pak Rupee strengthenad against LS dollar and appreciated
by 696, Mearwwhile, foreign inflows have contributed in maintaining an upward trajectory in foreign exchange reserves.

The SBF maintained the policy tate at 108 dusing the year befare reducing it by 50 basis poines in Mowvembser 2074; and siashed it
further by 100 basis points - from 9.5 percent to 85 percent - at the end af Januaty 2015,

The Karachi Stack Exchange registered a growth of 27% during 2014 and remains one of the best performing market in Asia.
BANK'S PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR

By Allah's grace, the Bank's profit-before-tax amounted to Rs. 7.3 billion at the end of year under review, exhibiting an increase of
43 percent in year-on-year praficahility. Enhanced efficiency and aug mented prafitability contributed 1o an increase in the post-tax

earmings pet share (EPSH which marked at Bs, 4.70 at the end of 2014

Deposits increased by 29 percent against their quantum at the end of 2013 to stand at Rs. 320 billian, Meanwhile, grass advances
increased by 4.2 pergent at Rs. 150.2 bitlion.

At year-end, HabibMet s Capital Adequacy stands at 17.3%.
COMMITMENTS

Nao material changes in cormmitments affecting the financial position of the Bank have occurred between the end of financial year
af the Bank and the date of the repart,




CREDIT RATING

By the grace of Allah, for the foureeenth consecutive vear, the credit rating of the Bark has been maintained at Ad+ (double A plus)
far long term and A1+ (A ane plus) for shart term by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited, These ratings dencte a very high
credit quality, a very low expectatian of credit risk and a very strong capacity for timely payment of financial commitrents,

ENHANCED REACH TO OUR. CUSTOMERS

With Allah's blessings, HabibéMetro enfanced its outreach by opening 26 new branches in 2004; 13 new gities were added o the
netwark a6 the Bank increased its foatprint to 240 branches in 82 cities across Pakistan including 10 Islamic banking branches.

our Bank enjoys correspondent relaticnships with banks of repute in rmore than 100 countries with a large number of banks having
arrrial credit lines for the Bank. With innavative pracuets, strong technological seppart and outstanding service standards, it continues
b be the Bank of chaice for the countiy's commercial and trade business hauses,

¥our Bank's subsidiary company Habily Metropolitan Financfal Services (HMPS), provides convenient and trusted equity bokerage
and custody services.

ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY CHANNELS

Maintaining exemplary service quality remains fundarmental to your Bank's strategy. During the vear, the Bank installed 55 new
Autermated Telier Machines (AThs) including thirteen offsice ATMs taking the total number of ATMs ta 216 acrass the country,
Habibietra has also launched VISA Debit Card and Web & SMS Banking services with enhanced security over the internet for its
CLSTOMmers.

HUMAMN RESQOURCES
The total strength of the HabibMetro family has grown from 3,559 1o 3,914 during the year.

The capacity and functionality of the Barik's training facility now stands enhanced, with a greater extent of training needs being
catered to intermially. Ouring the period, various in-house and extemal trainngs were conductad. The Bank, For the first time, conducted
an Employes Engapement Survey during 2014 and, | am very pleased to report that, a very encouraging participation level and
posithve Fesponse was received from the staff

¥our Bank remains an equal apportunity ernplever priwiding exgiting careers and growth t prospective bankers,
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Being a conscientious cerporate citizen, your Bank acknowledges its corporate social respansibilities and continues o make regular
contributians e a host of nan-profit / social organizaticns. Ouring the year, the Bank extended assistarice in three major areas i g,
education, health care and welfare spending far under-privileged, These donations amount 1o Rs. 448 million,

The Citizens Foundatian remains ane of the farger recipients and through them; the Bark is running six schools in under

privileged rural areas where moere than 1,000 children are envelled, A detail of your Bank's social contributions can be found in the
nctes 10 the accounts.



Your Bark continues to be one of the nation's leading taxpayers with maore than Rs. 285 billion paid during 2014 o the Government
of Pakistan as dirert taxes. Furthermore, an additional amount of about Rs. 7.56 billion was collected threugh the Bank's network
comprising of indirect tax deductions and recoveries for the exchequer,

CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE - CHANGE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year, the Board co-opted Mr. Firasat Ali in place of Syed Zubair Ahmad Shaby, as the NIT nominee director.

M, Firasat Ali has had a distinguished career over a period of 37 vears in the field of economic advisory / cansultancy arid has served
as an advisor at the USAID, UNDP and various government / private organizations. He had also been associated with National
Imvestment Trust Limited for 10 years where he served as Head of Corporate Governance, {orporate Affairs & Company Secretary.
He has also been a visiting seniar professor of economics at varigus local institutes,

The Roard welcomes Mr. Ali and looks forware to benefit from his knowledge and experience in diversified fields. The Board alsa wishes
6 place on record its deep appreciation of the constiuctive rale played by the outgeing nominee director, Syed Zubair Ahrriad Shah.

BOARD MEETINGS

Details of the meetings of the Board of Directars and its Sub-Committees held during the year 2014 and the attendance by each
director / committee rmember aie given a5 under

Marme ¢ f Cirectcrs Za ::rj;lj I:.l'EE' |:: ':Z';:I'II F-"II-:IT';II

kdr. Kassim Parekh 545

i Ali 5 Habiby w5 34 - - -

M. Mohamedali B Habib ] - 33 i - |
L Maohamed Bashie 4/5 - - - -

M1, Muhammad H. Habib 55 - 343 - -

Mr. 5ahail Hasan 55 - - - 141

Syed Fubair Ahrnad Shah ™ 4/4 - - - -

MAr. Taricy kram 475 454 - 3/3 -

kdr. Sirajuddin Aziz 55 - 1/1 141 11

B cetings ~eld

* Sued] Zubair Ahmad Shah resigned and Board ca - opted Mr, Firasat Al as director in his place.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The partern of sharaholdings 25 on 31 December 2014 is annexed to the report.

AUDITORS

The present auditors KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co, Chartered Accountants, retire and being elinible offers themselves foi reappaointment,

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board Audit Committes has recommended the appointment of KPMG
Taseer Hadft & Co., Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Bank for the year ending 31 December 2015.




CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

1. Thefinancial statements prepared by the Bank, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of irs operations, cash flows and changes
in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Bank,
Appiopriate accolnting policies have heen consistently applied in preparation of financial statements.

4. Internaticnal Accounting Standards, az appdtcable in Pakistan, have been fallgwed in praparation of financial staterments and
departure there frorm, if ary, has been adequately disclosed,

The systern of internal contral is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
There are no significant doubts upon the Bank's ability to continue as a ging concern.
There has been no departure from the best practices of the corporate gavernance, as detailed in the listing regulations.

The key operating and financial data of last six years of the Bank is placed below:

Rs. in miillion

Sharehalders' Equity 30,200 27,364 26002 24190 20,954 18,889
Paicl-up capital 10478 10478 10478 10478 8,732 7529
Total assers 397,380 31454 4416 291935 252211 237412
Deposits 3200323 247544 217,798 185,400 160458 143457
Advances 134,176 129.834 110444 113347 119828 102,293
Investrnents 21,761 142 444 160,50 147525 100,993 111,679
Prodit pre-tax 7312 5112 5044 4630 4626 4214
Prafit post-tax 4927 3526 3,406 328 2518 2739
Earnings per share {Rs) 470 337 325 313 322 364
Diviclerd (%) &C pils il 150 2068 sl 100
o of staff 3014 3,559 3,284 3073 25937 2695
Mo of branches / sub branches 240 214 183 183 143 120

Vialue of investrnents of Provident Fund ard Gratuity Scherne are as under;
-Fravident Fund Rs. 213 million as at 30 June 2013
- Gratuity Fund Rs. 401 millior as at 31 Decermber 3013

RISK MANAGEMENT
STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

fisk Managemnent aspects are embedded in HabibMetro's strategy and oranization structure, The Bark's entire branch network is
on-line and its state-of-the-art pracessing system is secure and has adeguate capacity. Separation of duties is built into the Bank’s
system and organization. The Internal Audit Division conducts independent, isk-based review &verification of the Bank's branches
and major functions throughout the year for evaluation of control system, further supplemented by a dedicated Intemal Cargral
Unit working with the Risk Management Division. Comprehensive intemal reports and MIS are additional tools for mana gement in
tisk control. The fisk Management Division is staffed with seasoned professionals, covering ali aspects of risks. Your Bank has a cohesive
fisk management structure for credit, operations, quidity & market risk.

The Bank's Central Management Cammittee along with Board Risk Managerment Committee and Board of Directars oversee the
Bank’s strateqy, efforts and processes related to iisk managernent



CREDIT RISK

HabibMetro's strategy to control credit risk is through product, geograpty, industry and custorner diversification. The Bank extends
trade & working capital financing, keeping the major particn of its expasure on a short-term and selt-liquidating bass. A major
portion of the Bank's ¢redit portfolio is priced on a ficating rate basis using KIBOR, as a reference, which minimizes interest rate risk.
The risk inherent in extending credit is further mitigated by robust credit granting procedures, which have been structured to ensUre
proper evaluation, adequacy of security, and monitoring of exposures on an £ngeing basis. This is further augmented by centralized
trade processing and cradiv adrministraticn,

MARKET / LIQUIDITY RISK

The Asset & Liability Managernent Committee reviews, recommends and rmoniters lievies for F¥ and Money market £xposures, The
strateqgy is to balance risk, liguidity & profitability, The Board approved investment policy focuses on, amongst other aspects, asset
allocation and operating guidskines. Furthermaore, the ronitoring af market and liquiclity risk is ensured in line with Board approved
Market & Ligquidity Risk Management Pelicy.

STRESS TESTING

Stress testing techniques are used Lo assess risk exposures across the instivution and to estirnate the changes in the value of the
partfolio, when exposed ta various risk factors. Risk factors sed in stress testing madels are Interest Rate, Credit, Equity Frice Exchange
Rate and Liquidity. The Bank's stress testing methodolagy ensures adherence ta 58P guickalines as well. The stress testing results
depict a solid and resilient financial position of your Bank.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational Risk is prevalent in afl banking activities and the policy addresses enterprise wide risk drivers 12, Organizational,
Technalogical, Policy # processes, Human and External, Internal Control Unit (ICUY wirking as 2 part of the risk management team
of the Bank is responsible For implementaticn of controls within the busingss processes { suppart functions as per the ragulatory
guidelines & good practices. The scope of ICU has been enhanced for ensuring effective controls monitaing and plan to further
stremathien the same, The Bank has a camprehensive Business Continuity Plan (BCP) in place, which includes risk management
strategies 1o prevent interruption of eritical services caused by a disaster event.

NEW CAPITAL ACCORD - BASEL I

Recent financial crises have demaonstrated numerous weaknesses in the glabal regulatory framewark and in barks' risk marnagement
practices. In response, regulatory authorities focused on strengthening global capital and liquidiey rules, Basel [k aims ta improve
risk rianagement and governance as well as strengthen banks' wansparency and disclosure,

in line with alabal practice, the $BP has stipulated Basel 1l capital adequacy guidelines for Bariks ity Pakistan, These instructions are
affertive from 31 Decernber 2013 in a phased manner with full implermentation intended by 31 December 201%.

The Bank has carried out an assessiment of its future capital reguirements in accordance with Basel Nl regulations, which are being

phased in over subsequent pericds, and the existing capital structure comfortably supports future growth. The Bank's capital adequacy
stands at 17,386 a5 at the year-end against requirernent of 10%.
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HABIBMETRO

COMPLIANCE

Your bank continued to stiengthen compliance oversight across its metwork during the year that inclugead enhancing stingent
KL L AML cantrols and regulatory compliance awareness. The Compliance function pravides suppart and counsel 1o management
and staff on compliance and regulatory issues. All new pedicies and procedures, nitiatives, products, services, business PFOCEsEEs el
are reviewed fiom a Cornpliance perspective along with maintaining relationship with reguiatory authorities. It is also imolved fn
developing and maintaining a regulatory library that includes circulars issued by State Bank of Pakistan and other relevant regulstory
authorities, Furthermore, facilitation and lizison with State Bank of Pakistan and its on-site Inspaction teams is & key role playved by
this unil 1o ensure smoath conduet of SBP inspection.

With the highly challenging and demanding alebal AML / CFT emvironment, Bank's AML function is fully commitied towards
impfementation of highest standards of compliange within the Bank and ensures minagement and employees adhere o these
standards for prevention of bank's channels, products and services for maney laundering activities through bank's state of the art
Transactian Monitaring Systern {TMS). The TMS manitors aut of pattern transactions and reviews different transaction activity through
multiple AML scenarios embedded in it. in addition, the Bark has a iobust Customer Due Diligence [COD) pracess in place that is
allows the bank to document / update each profile of custormer and conduct cemprehensive (DD as per regulatory requirernents,
Being a trade oriented Bank, Cross Border Transactions are screened and pre-approved by Cormpliance to ensure that no business
s conducted with sanctioned entities or countries, In addition, &ML Urit in collaboration with Regulatory Risk & Compliance unit
reviews products and policies from AML perspective.

Yaur Bank has also participated a5 » Foreign Financial Institution (FFIand is fully compliant with the Foreign Account Tax Compliance
Act (FATCA} by collecting additianal information and dacumentation from prospective clients, in order to determine whether or not
they have any LIS tax reporting responsibilities. FATCA is a US legistation aimed at preventing tax evasion by US Persons and Companies
that came into effect on 1 July 2014 To ensure compliance with the FATCA legistation, Compliance Division faciitates coardinmation,
training, developrent and micsnitoring of FATCA requirerments,

Complignce also assures identification, monitering and resolution of regutatory issues through on-site reviews by Area Compliance
Officers (ACCs), wha also provide training ta the branch staff. Furtheimore, ACOs also play a key role in enhancing the compliance
culture i the Bank by ensuring improving standards of adherence with regulations at branch keve),

Whilst focusing on creativity and innovation, Compiiance function will continue to increase its effectiveness through professional
develapment of its staff and strengthening of fuactional solutions.

CONTROLS
The Bank's pperating system contains control aspects embedded inte all processes and furctions.

The Bank's organizational structure and lines of autharity are well defined and processes thraughcut the Bank are governed by
policies and procedures approved by the Board, The Bank's accou nting policies, practices and methadologies for various estimates
have been reviewed by external auditors.

SBP Intemal Control Cuidelings require the Bank's management to evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls. The Bank has devised
awell-defined and comprehensive Internal Control Prograrm and a staged roadmap for implermentation, In this con nection, the Bank
has adopted an interationally accepted Committee of Spansoring Organization of the Treadway Cammission {C05) Internal
Contral - integrated Framework, as envisaged under the SBP Internal Control Guidelines for Financial Reporting,

The Banks operational model relies an a state-of-the-art, award winning, technolagy which has bullt-in risk mitigating features such

a5 access contrals, segregation of duties, necessary makesr-chacker concept and extensive monitaring £ MIS toals keeping the overall
aperationat risks to an acceptable fevel. Please refer to The Statement of Internal Controls® arnexed 1o this repoit,
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INTERNAL AUDIT

While broadening risk awareness and assUring regulatory compliance, Internal Audit at HabilaMetro is an important, independent
pillar of the Bank's controls infrastructure. The department perfonns continlious reviews taimprove the quality of the Bank's internal
control environment, ensuring an effective balance in safety and performance of processes and adding value toweands the Bank's
risk nitigakion endeavars.

HabibMetro has active Board Audit Committee functioning under the Code of Corporate Governance as stipulated by SECP and as
adopled by SBR The members of Board Audit Committee are Non-Executive Directors and its Chairman is an Independent Director,

Reporting directly to the Board Audit Committee, Internal Audit ermploys a risk-based, proactive approach 1o branches, aperational
araas and key activities of the Bank with a significant emphasis an cofrective actions and elimination of control lapses. These reviews
are facused on related key risk indicators, systern weaknesses and 10 identify control, cost & revenue efficiencies. Views expressed
by External Auditors and Regulators are also given utmast importance and corrective acticns on audit obsenvations are
frallowed-up rigotously.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In the challenging environment, maintaining asset quality and margins will require focused attention. Inshia/tak, your Bank will
cantinue ta kecus on increasing deposit base, enhance its market share in the country's trade: / cornmmercial activity by servicing &
improving its customet base with enhanced customer service standards. Simultaneatsly, HabibMetra will focus on its cose strength

and further strengthen Transaction Banking, Cross sell and laurich of new products ta enhance fee income base,

|11 order to ensure kng-tenn sustainability and mairtain success, core competitiveness and efficiency remains the foremost agenda
tif HabibMetro,

With Allah's blessings and continued patronage of our loyal stakeholders, Habibieto is geared to accelerated progress despite the
connpetitive GRerating environment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
In the end, | would like to take this opportunity to place on recard our sincere gratitude to the Board, Ministry of Finance, State Bank

of Pakistan and Securities and Exchange Cammission of Pakistan for their suppart and continuad guidance and to cur valued
customers for their trust and suppert. 1 thank the staff members for their devotion, diligence and commendable performance.

On behalf of the Board

SIRAJUDDIMN AZIZ
Karachi: 26 February 2015 President & Chief Exacutive Gificer
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HABIBMETRO

1.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES OF

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

This staterment is being presented to comply with the Cade of Corparate Governance (the Cade) contzined in Ragulatron Mo 35 of
Chapter X of listing requlations of Karachi, Lahare and slamabad Stock Exchanges far the purpose of estabilishing a framewark of
good governance, wherelry a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of conporate gavernance.

The Rank has applied the principies comtained in the CCG in the following rranner

The Bank encourages representation of independent nan-executive directors and directors representing mincrity interests an
its board of directors. A¢ present the baard ingludes;

are Ly

Independent Directors Mr. Sohail Hasan
M Tarig Faram

Mon-Cxecutive Directors wAr, Kassirn Parakh
tr. Ali 5, Habid
WAr, Firasat Ali

hir. Mohamedali B, Habit
br, Mahorned Bashir
B Mr. Muhamrriad H. Habib T

The independent directors meets the criteria of independence under clause i (b) of the Code.

The directors have confirrned that rone af themn i senving as a direclor on mare than seven listed companies, including this Bark,

Allthe resident dlirectors of the Bark are registered? a5 taxpayers and none of them has defauked in payment of any loan 9 4 banking
<omparty, a CF or an MBFlor, being a rmember of 4 stock exchange, has been deglared as a defaulter try that stock exchange.

A casual vacancy occurred gn the board on & September 2014 was filled up: by ke directors within stipulated time,

The Bank fas develsped 2 Code of Conducl and has ensured that appropiare steps have been taken to disseminate i thraughour
the Bank along with its supperting policies and pracedure,

The beard kas developed a vision/mission staternent, gveral] corparate strategy and significant policies of the Bank, A complete
recard of particufars of significanit policies along with the dates on which they were approved oramended has been rmaintained,

All the powers of the board have been duly exertised and decisions on matenal transactions, including appaintment ang
determination of rermuneration and terms and conditions of e pioyrnent of the Chief Executive Officer [CECH, ather executive
and nar-gxecutive directors, have heen taken by the board / sharehalders,

The meetings af the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a direcror elected by the Board for this

purpose and the board met at least once in every quarter Written natices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working

papers, were Circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The rrinutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded
and circulared.

The Bank is compliant with the requirement of directars training program provided in the Code,
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10, The hoard has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment. Mo new appointrients in the given positions were made
durng the year,

11, The directors' repart for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully describes the
saliant ratters required to be disclosed.

12, The financial statemenits of the Bank were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the board.

13. The directars, CEO and executives do not hold ary interest in the shares of the Bank other than that disclosed in the partem of
chareholding.

14, The Bank has complied with 4l the corporate and financial reporting reguirements of the Code,

18 The board has farmed an Audit Committee, [t camprises thiee members, all of wham are non-executive directars and the
¢raitman of the committee is an independent ditector.

16. The rmeetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter pricr to approval of interim and final results of the
Bank and as reguired by the Code. The termns of reference of the committee have been formed and advised 1o the committee

for compliance.

17. The board has formed a Human Resousce & Remuneration Committee. |t comprises three members, of whom twa are
non-executive directors including an independent director,

18, The board hias set up an effective internat audit function.

19. The statutony auditors of the Bank have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactony rating undet the quality conteol
review program of the Institute of Chartered Aceountants of Pakistan (CAPY, that they ar any of the partners of the firm, their
spouses and rriner children do not hold shares of the Bank and that the firm and all its partnars are in compliance with

Imternational Fedaration of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adapked by the ICAP,

20, The statutery auditars or the persons associated with them hawe not been appointed to provide other services except in
aceordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have abserved IFAC guidelines in this regard.

1. The ‘tlosad period; priok to the anmouncement of interim / final results, and business decisions, which may materally affect the
market price of company's securities, was deterrnined and intimated to directors, ermployees and stock exchanges.

231 Material / price semsitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at ance through stock exchanges.

73 We eonfisrm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have been complied with.

Cn behalf of the Board

SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ
Karachis 26 February 2015 Presidertt & Chiaf Executive Officer
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HABIBMETRO

AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Cade of Corporate Governance
ithe Code) prepared by the Boatd of Directars of Habal Metrapalitan Bank Limited (the Bank) for the vear ended 31 December 2014
to comply with the requirements of Listing Regulations of Karachi, Lahore and Islamatiad Stock Exchanges where the Bank is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Bartk. Qur responsibility 1s ta review, ta the
extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Bank's
compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirermerits
of the Cade, A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Bank persannel and review of various docurmernts prepared by the Bank
1o comply with the Code.,

A5 part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accaunting and internal control systems
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to cansider whether the Board of Directors'
staternent on internal contiol Covers all risks and controls or to farm an opinion an the efectiveness of such internal controls, the
Bank's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Bank 1o place before the Aodit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committes, place before
the Board of Directors for their review and approval of related party transactions distinguishing between transactions Carried out
onterms eguivalent to thase that prevailed in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length
price and recording proper justification for using such aftemate pricing mechanism. We are anly required and have ensured compliance
of this requiremeant to the extent of approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
the Audit Comrnittee, W have not caried out any procedures to determine whether the related paity fransactions were undertaken
atarm's length price ornot

Based on our review, nothing hias come to our gttention, which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compfiance does not
appropriately reflect the Bank's campliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as applicable to
the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2014,

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Karachi: 26 February 2015 Mazhar Saleem
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

This staternent is being issued in compliance with the Guidelines on Internal Contrels, issued by the State Bank of Pakistan vitke BSL
Cirgular Mo. 7 dated 27 May 2004,

MANAGEMENT EVALUATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The managernent of Habit Metropolitan Bank (Habibietro) remains respansible for implermenting strategies and policies as approved
by the Board of Diregtors; maintaining an effective asganizatian structure:; instituting apprapriate control pracedures and monitoring
the adequacy / effectivenass of internal control systerns. The Board of Cirectars is ultimately respansible for ensuring that an adequate
and effective System of Intemal Canticls is established and efforts are made t implernent sound contra! proceduses and to maintain
a switable contral environmert,

The Bank's fundarnental policy is to ermbed controls in each process and make contrals an impertant part of all business activities.
Each member of the staff is also responsible for ensuring that the Bank always epetates in a controlled rmanner and inardirate fisks
are rot taken in any activity.

Thee Bank's organization structure and lines of authority are well-defined and processes throughout the Bank are largely governed
by policies and procedures approved by the Board, Howewver, their review and updating to meet requlatory requirernents & changing
practices rermiaing & continued activity to achieve effective conticl objectives. The Bank's Best Practices Operation Manual for key
areas are set in place o improve the quatity of service, training and product knowledge across the organizaticn. Further, the Barik
did not incur any material losses arising from operational risk exposures. The Bank's accounting policies, practices and rmethodologies
for various estimates have been reviewed by external auditors and there have been no material disputes thereon.

Effectiveness of Internal Controls is independently reviewsd an a requilar basis by Internal Audit which subrnits reports to the Board
Audit Committes, The Internal Audit framework incorporates extensive risk-based auditing throughout the year Views expressed
by External Auditors and Regulatory inspectors are also provided utmost impartance and corrective actions en all audit / inspection
observations are followed-up rigorously. For aperating effectiveness, compliance ta laws and regulations and reliability of financial
reparting, an Intemal Conticl Unit has been established within Risk Mariagernent Division. The Uinit provides an engoing mechanism
for establishing and maintaining a sound system and apt contral envirnment duly backed by incependent internal audit regime,
This would give reasonable assurance to achieve the internal central ohjectives for continuausly evaluating the nature and extent
of the significant risks and ta manage them effectively and efficiently.

SBP Intermal Cantrel Guidelines require the Bank's management to evaluate the effectiveness of overall set of internal controls
including finangial reporting contiols which are required to be independently reviewed by the external auditors. As part of this
evercise, the Bank has fonmulated a comprehensive Internal Contedd process and 8 stage wise oadmafs for its implementation acioss
the bank consicering an interationally accepred COS0 Internal Contrcl - Integrated Framewark, as envisaged under the SBR Internal
Control Guidelines for Financial Reparting (ICFR). In aceordance with this process, the Bank has carmpleted the detailed stages of the
existing processes, together with a comprehensive gap analysis of the central design. Further, the Bank institutes remediation plars
to address the gaps identified by the external auditors and necessary steps have been undertaken 10 ensure timely implernentation
of planned initiatives. I addition, comprehensive management testing plans and framework have been developed and implernenbed
for ensuring cngoing aperating effectiveness of key contrals.

It is pertinent to note that although effective remediation of the gaps idenified will further strengthen the Bank's existing contr
erwironment, managerment is confident that these gaps do not carey a sigrificant bearing on the Banks existing operatians are
telated contiols, Further, the Bank's aperational model selies prinarity on a state-of-the-art, award winning technalogy solution which
has strong built-in risk rritigating features such as access controls, segregaticn of duties, necessary maker-checker concept and
extensive maonitoring / IS tools keeping the overall operativnal risks 1o an acceptable level,
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While concerted efforts ware made to follow SBP Guidelines on Internal Controls, the identification, evaluation and management
af risks within each of the Banks activities, and evaluation and change of procedures rermains an ongoing process.

Cn an overall basis, Intemal Controls at HabibMetro were operating with reasonabile adequacy throughaut the year endad 31
Decemnber 2014 and reflect improvernent from last y2ar in organization structure, effective adherence with lines of authority,
autornation and effectiveness of processas,

Internal Contrals ahways manage rather than eliminate possitility of process failures to achieve their objectives and hence, can only
provide reasonable assurance against material misstaternants ar lpss,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REMARKS ON THE MANAGEMENT'S
EVALUATION OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

Keeping in view the feedback received by the Beard of Directors from the Audit Committee; reports submitted as to the business
policies and major risks related decision taken by the Management, the Board of Directors endaorses Management’s evaluation of
internal control,

On behalf of the Board

SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ
Karachi: 26 February 2015 Prasident & Chief Executive Officer
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SHARIA'H ADVISOR’S REPORT

Alharndulillah, | have been acting as the Shariah Advisor of Habity Metropalitan Bank since June 2013. The care responsibility rests
with me is to ensure that the procedures and processes employed by the Bank's Istarmic Banking Division are in accordance with
Sharia'h principles.

I iy apinion, HabibMetra has managed and administered its Islamic Banking operations ir accordance with Sharia'h prindiples and
complied with applicable guidelines, rulings and decisians issued by me and the State Bank of Fakistan pertaining to Shariah matters
for the financial year ended 31 December 2074,

In addition, | 3150 confinm that the investenent / financing portfolio of Isamic Banking operation is Sharia'h compliant, which comprises:
1. ljarah and Dirninishing kusharika assets / properties.

2. Murabahs, Musawama, Salam, istisna'a and Al-Bai' transaciions.

3, Liquid assets and placements, which are made in Sharia'h Compliant Investments such as Islamic tutual funds and Sukuk
certificates / bands,

Charity

The earnings that have been realized from sources or by means prohibited by Sharia'h nules and principles have peen cradited w
charity account and disbursed in the approved manner.

Recommendation

The pool management module, implemented during the year, needs to be further strengthened with regards 1o foreign cumency
podl management,

May Allah Taa'a flourish Istamic Banking within Habibhetro Bank in special and in our country in general Alsn may Allah bless

us with the best Tawfeeq to accomplish these cherished tasks, make us successful in this warld and in the hereafter, and forgive
cur mistakes.

MUFTI ABDUL SATTAR LAGHARI
Karachi: 26 February 2015 Sharia'h Advisor
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

W have audited the annexed unconsolidated staternent of financial pasition of Habib Metmopalitan Bank Limited the Bank) as at
31 December 2014 and the related uncensolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive incame,
unconsalidated cash flaw statement and unconsolidated staternent of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
therecf (here-in-after referred to as the 'financial statements’ for the year then ended 21 December 2014, in which are incorporated
the unaudited certified returns from the branches except for eighteen branches which have been audited by us and we state that
we have obtained all the information and explanaticns which, ta the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of aur audit,

Itis the responsibility of the Bank's Board of Directors to establish and mairtain a system of intemal control, and prepare and present
the financial statements In conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirernents of the Banking Companies
Crdinance, 1962 (L¥ll of 1962], and the Companies Oidinance, 1984 (XLl of 1984). Qur responsibility is to express an opinican cn
thete statements based on our audir.

W conducted our audit in aceordance with the International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan, These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obitain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents are free of any material
rrisstatement. An auddic includes exarnining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
staternents, An avdit alse includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as,
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion
and, after due verification, which in case of loans and advances covered maore than sixty percent of the total loans and advances of
the Bank, we report that:

3l inour gpinign, proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Crdinance, 1984 {¥1V| of
1954), and the returns referred te above received from the branchies have been found adequate for the purposes of aur audit

Bt inour apinion:

it the unconsclidated staterment af financial positien and the unconsolidated profit and loss account together with the rates
therecr have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LW of 1962), and the Campanies
Ordinance, 1984 (ALY of 10843, and are in agreernent with the books of account and are Furthe: in accordance with the
accounting pelcies consisteritly applied;

fiy the expenditure incurred during the vear was for the purpose of the Bank's business; and

iii) the buginess conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the
objects of the Bark and the ransactions of the Bank which have came to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank;

¢} Inour opinion and to the best of our inforrmation and acconding to the explanations given t us, the unconsolidated staternent
of financial position, unconsslidated profit and koss acoount, unconsalidated staternent of cornprehensive income, unconsalidated
cash flow staterment and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the rotes forming part thereof conform
with appraved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Banking Campanies
Ordinance, 1962 (LYl of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (LW of 1984), in the manner 5o required and give atrug
and fair view of the state of the Bank's affairs as ai 31 December 2014 and its true balance of profit, its comprehensive income,
its cash fows and its ¢hanges in equity For the year then ended; and

i in our opinion Zakat deductible at source, under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (¥vIl of 1980), was deducted by the Bank
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Karachi: 26 February 2015 Mazhar Saleem
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A% AT 31 DECEMBER 1014

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balanees with other banks

Lendings to fimaneia! institutions
Irrvestrments

Advances

Diperating fixed assets

Beferred tax assets

Cther assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Bortonwings

Deposits and other acounts

Sub-nrdinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject tofinance lease
Deferred tax Tabilities

Other liahilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital
Reserves
Unappropriated prafie

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Mote

11}
11
1

14
15

16
17
]

20

21

22

The annexed notes 1 to 45 and annesxures | & l form an inteqgrat part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

KASSIM PAREKH

20

SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ
Chairman Presidant &
Chigf Executiva Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR

Director

24 2013
Rupess in '(:00

18,640,853 2,208,774
1,869,735 3.552.365

3,408,776 -
221,761,162 142443 682
134,175,636 120,333,937
3,024,588 3,034,564
1,208,527 25347151
13,230,805 8433272
397,380,082 311,454,045
.20 482 3982213
24,583,582 23057002
320023460 247 643,587
12,520,456 2787067
362.629,330 283469 865
34,750,702 27084175
10478313 10478315
11,178,823 10,193,511
2543116 6552512
30,200,254 27364435
4,550,448 615,738
34,750,702 27054176

TARIQ IKRAM
Diractor




HABIBMETRO

UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2014

Note 2014 2013
Fupees in 00K}
Mark-up / return | intarest eamed 4 32,272,905 24528 380
Mark-up / return f interest expensed 25 (21,085,545) (15,576,679
Met rriark-up £ interest ingome 11,187,360 9,051,701

Pravision against nan-perforening loans and advances 126 1,767,199 111110
Prawisfon for diminution in the value of invastrients 113 11,380 MBED
Bad debts written off directly 1281 - -
(1,778,579 {2106 230]
Met mark-up / interest income after prosisions §408,781 £,947471
Non mark-up / interest income
Fee, cirmrnission and brokerage incorme 24027 2231 938
Cividend incorme 51,047 53,093
Inceme from dealing in fereign currendies 1,039,545 864,966
Gain on sale / redernption of securities - net 26 1,875.821 1,235,001
Unrealized gain / {loss) on revaluation of investments
classified as held-for-trading - -
Crther income 27 342,293 305,226
Tonal non mark-up / interest income 5710723 4,794,304
15,115,504 11,736,775
Nen mark-up f interest expenses
Adrmiristrative expenses 28 7352918 6470467
Other provisions / write offs 152 259,000 -
Chher charges 2% 155,266 145 4ty
Total mon mark-up £ interest axpenses {(7B07,184) (6,624.955)
7312320 LI111815
Extracrdinary / unusual iterns - -
Profit befora taxatlon 7312320 £111818
Taxation - Cument 30 {2,756,587) {1.975046)
— Prior years - 574095
- Deferred 14.1 370,827 (185,291
{2,385,760) {1,585.644)
Profit after taxation . 4536560 3,526,172
Unappropriated profit browught forward 6,692,612 6035228
Profit available for appropriation 11,619,172 8,561,400
Baslc and diluted sarnings per shara {Rupees) 31 4.70 337
The annexed notes 1 ta 45 and annexures | & Il formn an integral part of these unconsolidatad financial staternents.
KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ MOHDMED BASHIR TARIG IKRAM
Chairman President & Cirector Director

Chief Exacutive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Mote 2014 2013
Rupeesin 000 ———
Profit after taxation for the year 4,926,560 3526172
Other comprehensive income
ltems not to be teclassified to profit of loss account in subsequent periods:
Actuarial gain £ {loss} on defined benefit plan 348 7,568 {104.448]
Related deferred tax {charge) £ reversal (2,645) 365,557
429 (67851
Comprehensive income transferred to sguity 4,931,479 34558.281
lverns nok to be reflectad in equity:
Surplus / {deficity arising on revaluation of availabie for sale securities 5,977,512 (2,350,606)
Related deferred tax fchange) £ reversal (2,046,802} 784139
3,930,710 (1,566,467}
Tetal comprehensive Income 8,862,182 1,601 814
The annexed notes 1 to 45 and annexures | & Il form an integral par of these unconsolidated financial statements.
KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ MOHOMED BASHIR TARIQ IKRAM
Chaimman President & Director Director

Chief Executive Officer




HABIBMETRO

UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDIED 31 DECEMBER 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit befare taxation
Less: Dividend inconme

Adjustments
Clepreciaticon
Provision against non-perfarming foans and advances - net
Prowision against other assets
Prowision for diminution in the value of investments - ret
Met gain ar sale of fised assets

{Increase) / decreasa in operating assets
Lendings to financial ingtitutions
Advances
Other assets (excluding advance taxstion)

Increase f {decrease]) in oparabing liahilitles
Bills payatsle
Barrowings
Deposits and ather accourts
{Other liabilities

Income fx paid
Net cash generated from / {used in} operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Met investments in available-for-sale secuities
Met investments in held-to-rmaturity securities
Dividend received
IFsestments in operating fixed assets
Fraceeds from sale of fived assers

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cividend paid

Mot cash used in flnancing actlvities

{Decraase) / increase in cash and cash aquivalents
Cash and cash equivalants at the beginning of the year
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 1 1045 and annexures | & | form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial staterments,

KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZ1Z
Chairman Prezident &
Chief Exacutive Officar

Note 2014 2013
Rupees in ‘000 ———
I3 51118168
(51,047 (53,093
7,261,273 5058723
132 525,650 470118
126 1,767,199 2111110
152 265 000 _
{30,804 {3,258}
27 [17,447] {6,658}
2,543,607 2441370
9,804 880 7490003
(3408,776) -
1&,108,898) (27,500,849
{5,004, 787) (2691 567)
{14,522,461) 24193418
1219 269 (116055
1470,763 (21,926,525
72379873 29,845,833
31738628 GL074
78,808,543 79052327
74090962 8,788,199
{2,245.885) [20351,529)
245077 (10839725}
(54 B62.107) 25,763 584
(8,447,057 {0.524574)
43699 53093
(551,325} {558,750
53,083 110,471
(73,758,701 15,743 495
{2.053,344) (2003214
(2,093,344) [250593,214}
{4,606,958) 2810556
23,673,563 M58520
568,478 B46,765
32 19635073 24242041
MOHOMED BASHIR TARIQ IKRAM
Director Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Reserves

. Un-
Share Share Sratutory Special REvense .
Capital Prammium Reserve Aesarve Resgrde app{:‘urgﬁltated Tokal

Bupeesin "00G

Balarce as at 1 January 2013 12478315 23L00983 5196931 240361 1,500,000 A035,228 26001 Bid

Changes in equity for the year
ended 31 December 2013

Total comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December
2013 - preffit for the year - - - - - 3926172 3526172

Qither comprahenshe incone
— rvet of tax - - - - - (67,691 (5789

Transactions with owiness,
recorded direcily in equity

Cash dviderd (Rs. 20K per share]

forwear ended 31 Decembei

mz - - - - - [2.0%54663) (2095863
Transfar o statutony resane - - 705,234 - - [F5.234] -

Balance as at 31 Decerrsber 2013 10478315 2550985 5902163 240,367 1,500,000 BEALE1E 27364438

Changes in &g
r anded 31

Tt compeehersive income for
the yea: ended 31 Decernber
2014 - prafit far the year - - - - - 4026560 4926550

rner comprehensiie incomea
— et of tax - - - - - 4914 4019

Transactions with owners,
racorded directly in equity

Casi elividerd] (Rs. 200 per sharg)

for year ended 31 Decernber
w13 - - - - - {20095663) (2093663

1985312 -

Transfer to statutory resena - - 985312 -

Batance as at 31 December 2014 10478315 2550985  GOH7 477 24 361 1,53 000 8543110 30,200,254

The annexed notes 1 145 and annexures | & [l form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial staterents.

KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZ\ MOHOMED BASHIR TARIQ IKRAM
Chairman Prazldent & Director Director
Chief Executive Officer
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HABIBMETRO

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2014

1.

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Habil: tetropalitan Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorparated in Pakistan on 3 August 1992, a5 a putic irites corpary, onder
the Companies Crdinance, 1984 and is engaged in commercial ban king and related services, |t shares are listed an 2l the three
stock exchanges in Pakistan, The Bank aperates 201 (2003 #74) branches, inchuding 10 (2013 &) Isfarmic barking branches and
35 {2013:40) sub branches in Pakistar. The Barkis a subsidiary af Habib Bark AG Zurich - Switzerland (the hatding compariy
with 51% shares in the Bank) which is incorporated in Switzerland.

The registered office of the Bank is situated at Spencer’s Building, £l. Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1 These uncansolidated financial statements represent separate financial staterments of the Bank, The cansalidated francial
staternents of the Bank and its subsidiary compariy are being separately issued.

2.2 Inaccardance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding shifting of the banking systermn to lsarmic modes,
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has issuad various ¢irculars from: time to time. Permissible forms af trade ralgted raaces
of financing include purchase of goads by the Bank fram their customers and immediate resale to thern at ARpIOpTiate
mark-upin price on a deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales anising urder these zrrangements ane not reflected
in these unconsolidated financial statements as such but are resiricted to the amount of facilty acluglly utilized and Lhe
appropriate partion of mark-up therean,

2.3 Thefinarcial results of the Islamic Banking branches of the Bank have been inch:ded in these unconsclidzrad financizl
staterments for reporting purposes, after eliminating matenal inter-branch transactions / bafances, Key financial figures
of the Islamic Barking branches are disclosed in note 43 to these uneonsolidated financial statements.

2.4 Basis of measurement
Accounting conwvention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost corvention except that certain
imvestments are stated at market value and derivative financal instruments are carried at fair values as drsclosed in notes
2.3 and 5.6 respectively.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3.1 These unconsafidated financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with approved aceounting standards as
applicab'e in Pakistan, Appraved accounting standards camprise af such lmiernational Financial Reaaorting Standards
{IF&5} issued by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (IASE and Islamic Financial Accounting Standsrd (145
issued by the nsiitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (1CAP) as are natified under the Campanies Ordinance, 984,
prowisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinarice, 1984 and the Ba nking Companies Ordinanae, 1562 and
the directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case the requirements iffer, the provisicns of and directives issed under
the Companies Crdinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1982 and the directves issued b SEP shall prevail.

3.2 The SBP vide 650 Circular Mo, 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Slendard
(IA5) 35 Firandial Instruments: Recoagrition and Measurement” and 145 40 "Investmant Property” for banking compan es
1l fuether instructions, Further, arcording to a natification of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan [SECM
through SR Mo 41100/2008 dated April 28, 2008, 'FRS 7 "Financial nstruments: Disclosures” has not been made applizable
for banks, Accardingly, the requirements of these standards have nat been considered in the preparation of thess
unconsofidated financial statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the
requirernents of various circulars issued by the S8R
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATICN UNCERTAINITY

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial staternents in conformity with appioved accounting standards requires
managerment to make judgments, estimates and assurmpticns thit affect the reparted amaunts of assets and fiabilities and
incame and expenses. It also requires managernent to exercize judgment in the application of its accounting policies. The
astimates and assurmptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are belisved to be regsonable
under the circurnstances. These estimates and assurmptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis. Revisians L ACCOUNTING estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affacts only that period, or in the period of revisian
and future periods if the revision affects bath current and future periods,

Significant accounting estimates and areas where judgments were made by management in the application of accounting
policies are as fallows:

!

i)

i)

)

Classificatlon of investments

- In classifying imeestments as "held-for-trading, the Bank has determined securities which are acquired with the
intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate mavements and are & be sold within
90 days.

- Inclassifying investrents as "held-to-maturity”, the Bank follows the guidance prgvided in SBP circulars on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed rmaturity. In rnaking this judgment,
the Bark evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investrments 1o maturity.

- The investments which are not classified as held for trading or held to maturicy are classified as avallable for sale.

Provislon against non performing loans and advances and debt securities classified as Investments

The Bank reviews its loan portfolio and debt securities chassified as investments 1o 55255 amoLnt of rien-perfomming kans
and adwvances and debt securities and provision reguired there-against. While assessing this requirement various factors
inclading the delinquency in the account, financial position af the borrower and the forced sale vatue of the securities,
ete, 25 per the reguirement of the Prudential Regulations are cansidered, For portfiolio impairment prosision on Consumer
and srmall enterprise advances, the Bank follows the general provision requirerent set out in Pruglential Regulations. in
addition the Bank also maintain a general provisian against its loan portfolio discussed in note 54

Valuation and impalrmant of avallable for sale aquity investments

The Bank deterrmines that available-for-sale equity investments and held to maturity are impaired when there has been
a significant or prelonged decline in the fair value below its cost, This determination of what is sigmificant ar protonged
requires judgrment. n making this judgment, the Bank evaluates among other factars, the normal volatility in share price,
In addition, irnpaierment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the irmvestes,
inclustry and sector performance, changes in technalogy and operational and financing cash flows,

Impairment of non-financlal assets (excluding deferred tax asset)

Non financial assets are subject to impairment review if there are gvents a1 changes in circurnstances that indicare that
the carrying arnount may not be recaverable. If any such indication existe, the Bank estimates the recoverable armount
of the asset and the impairement loss, if any. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less Costs to
sell and its value in use, Yalue in use is the present value of future cash flows frorn the asset discounted at a rate that
reflects market interest rates adjustad for risks specific to the asset. If the recaverable arnount of an intangibile or tangible




HABIBMETRO

¥i)

vid)

asset is less than its Catrying value, an impaimment loss is recogrised immediately in the profit and logs account and the
carrying valug of the asset reduced by the amount of the loss, A reversal of an impairment loss on intangible assets is
recoqnized as it arises provided the increased carrying value does not exceed that which it would have been had no
impaiimnent 1955 been recognized.

Income taxes

In making the estimates for incorme taxes currantly payable by the Bark, the managerment looks, 3t the current income
tax laws and the decisions of appeliate authorities on certain issues in the past.in rnaking the provision for defered taxes,
estimates af the Bank's future taxable profits are taken into account.

Fixed assets, depreciation and amortisation

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortisation method, the managermert: uses method which reflects the pattern
in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The method applied is reviewed at each financial
year end and if there is a change in the expected pattemn of consumption of the future economic Benefits embadied in
the assets, the methad would be changed to reflect the change in pattern. Such cha nge is accounted far as change in
acounting estimates in accordance with Intemational Accounting Standard - &, ‘Aecounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Enors”.

Defined benefits plan

Liability is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Acturial Cost Methad, as fully
disclased in note 34 to these unconsolidated financial statemeants,

vlil) Compensated Absences

The bank uses actuarial valuation for the determination of its compensated abserces lia bility. This method makes certain
assurnptions, which may change, therebw effecting the profit and loss account of future period.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Bank are as fofllows:

5.1 Cash and cash aguivalents

For the purpose of cash Aow staternent, cash and cash equivalents inclhude cash and Balances with treasury barks and
halancas with other banks less everdrawn nostrio and local bank aecounts,

5.2 Lendings to f borrowings from financial institubions

The: Bank enters into transactions of borrawing (Fe-parchase) from and lending reverse re-purchase) ta financial fristitLtions,
at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are recorded as under:
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Sale under repurchase obligation

Sarurities sold with a simultanecus commitment ta repurckase at a specified future date {repas) coftinue to be recognised
in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with accounting pelicies fr investenents and
counter party liability is included in borrowing fram financial institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase
price is amartised as an expense auer the term of the repo agreement.

Purchase under resale obligation

Securities purchased with a comespanding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repos) are nat
recoanised in the statement of financial position and instead amounts paid under these arrangarments are included in
tendings to financial institutions, The difference between purchase and resale price is acceued as income over the term
of the agreement.

Other borrawings including borowings from SBP are recorded at the praceeds received. Mark up on such bormwing is
charged to the profit and lass account on a time proportion basis.

Investments

5.9.4 Investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less provision for impairrnent, if &y,

5.3.2 Otherinvestrents are classified as fallows:
Held-for-trading
These are securities, which are either acquired for generating profit from shorl-term fluctuaticn in rnarkst prices,
interest rate movernants, dealers rmargin or are secutities included in a partfolic in which a patten of short-term
trading exists.

Hald-to-maturity

These are sacurities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that are held with the posithe
intention and ability to hold tll maturity,

Available-for-sala
These are investments that do aot fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-rmatuity categories.

533 Investments (other than held-for-trading) include transaction costs associated with the investments, In cage of
held for trading investments ransaction costs are charged 1o profit and lass account.

Ir accordance with the requirernents of the SBR quoted securities, ather than those classified] as held to rratueity
and imvestrment in a subsidiary, are carried at market value, Investments classified as held to maturity are carried
ar amartized cost whereas investment in a subsidiary is carried at cost less impairrnent losses, if any.




HABIBMETRO

Unrealized surplus / deficit arising on the revaluation of the Bank's held far tracling investrnent partflio is taken
to the prefit and loss account. Surplus / deficit arising an revaluation of quoted securities classified as available
for sale is kept in 3 separate account shown in the Statement of Financial Position below equity, Surplus / deficit
arising on these securities is taken to the profit and lass account when actually realised upan disposal or when
the investment is considered to be impained.

Unguoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and brea k-up value. Subsequent decreases in the
carrying value are charged to prafit and lass account Break-up value of equity securities is calculated with reference
te: the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial staternents, Investrnents
in other unquoted securities are valued at cost less Impairment losses, if any,

Prowision for dirminution in the value of tenm finance and Sukuk certificates are matde as per the Criteria prescribed
under prudential regulation issued by State Bank of Pakistan,

Provision for impairment in the value of svailable for sale and held o maturity securities [other than bonds and
terrn finance and Sukuk certificates} is made after considering hjective evidence of fropainment, if ariy, in their
value (as a result of ohe or more events that may have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
investmients], A significant or prolonged decline in the Fair value of an 2quity investrent below its cost s alsa
considered an objective evidence of impairment, Impairment fosses are taken to profit and loss account.

Al “regular way” purchases and sales of investments are reconized on the trade date, ie, the date thar the
Bank commits the purchase ar sell the asset, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases of sales of
investments that reguire delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation orconvention
in the market place.,

3.4 Advances (including net investment in finance lease and ijarah arrangements)

Loans and advances

Loans and advarices and net investments in finance lease are stated net of prowision far loan losses against non - performing
advances, Provisian for loan logses is rade in accordance with the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP and is charged
ta picfit and loss account. The Bank alse maintains general provision in addition to the requirements of the Pruderitial
Regulations an the basis of managerment's assessment of credit risk characteristics and general banking risk such as nature
of ceedit, collateral type, industry sectar and other relevant factors, Murabaha receivables are statad at grass amount
receivable iess deferred income and prowisions, if any,

Flnance lease receivables
Leases, where the Bank transfers substantially ail the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset 1o the lessee

are classified as finance lease, & receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease
payments including guararteed resicual value, if ary, Finance lease recaivables are included in athvances to the custormers,
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liarah

In accardance with the requirements of Islamic Financial Accounting Standard {IFAS) 2 for the accounting and financial
reporting of “jarah”, liarah arrangernents by the Islamic Banking branches are accounted for as "Assets held under jarah'
and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, residual value and irnpairment fosses, if any, Accordingly assets
subject to ljarahs have been reflected in note 12 to these unconsolidated financial staternents Lnder *Advances' Rental
income on these ljarahs is recognised in the Bank's profit and loss account on a tirne propartian hasis, while depreciatian
is caleulated on ljarah assets on a straighi line basis over the period of ljarah from the date of delivery of respective assets
to mustajir lessee) up to the date of maturity / termination of ljarah agreement and is charged to the prafit and loss
accaunt. The classification and provisioning of liatah assets is done in Tine with the requirements laic] dowen iny the Pruderttial
fequlations and are recognised in the profit and loss accaunt.

Advarices are written off when there are na reglistic prospects of recovery.
Flxed assets
Tangible - owned {operating)

Thesa are stated at cost less accurnulated deprediation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except for frechold
land which are stated at cost [éss accumulated irnpaimment losses, if any.

Crepreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset at the rates specified In note
132 Depreciation on additions during the year is calculated from the date of addition. In case of disposals during the
year, the depreciation i charged up till the date of disposal. Depreciation on jarah assets referred 1o in note 12315
calculated on a straight line basis over the period of jarah from the date of delivery of respective assets 10 the mustajir
llessee] up 1o the date of maturity £ termiriation of farah agreed.

Subsequent cost are ingluded in the asset's catrying amount onty when it is probable that future economic benefirs
associgted with the itern will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be rreasured reliably. All other repairs and
rraintenance are charged 1o the profit and loss account.

An itern of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when na future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition ¢ the asset is recognized in the profit and loss accaunt
in the year the asset is derecogrized.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewad and changes, if any, are treated as change in
accounting estimates, t each Staternent of Financial Position date,

Intangible

Thase are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. The cost of intangible 2ssets are amortized
from the morth when the assets are available for intended use, using the straight line methid, wheteby the cost of the
intangible asset is amortised over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Bank,
The useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, T appropriate, at each Statement of Anandal Position date.

Capltal work-In-progress

Thase are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
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5.6

6.7

5.8

Derivativa financial instriments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the date on which the derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, All derivative financial instruments are carried s asset when fair value
Is pasitive and ligbilities when fair value is nagative, Any change in the value of derivative financial instruments is taken
to the profit and loss acoount,

Provisions

Provision against identified non-funded losses is recagrized when intimated and reasonable cerainty exists for the Bank
to settle the obligation, The loss is changed to the profit and loss account net of expected recovery and is classified under
other liabilities,

Other provisions are rcognisedd when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past eveets and itis probable
thatan cutfiow of rescurces will be required 1o settle the obligation arv a refiable estimate of the amount =an be made. Provisions
are Feviewed at each Statement of Finandal Position date and are adjusted to reflect the curmant best estimate.

Taxation

Incomne tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Incorne tax expense is recognized in the profit and Ipss account
except 1o the extent that it relates to the items reconnized directly in eyuty, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current

Provision for currant taxation is based on taxable ncome for the year at the current rates of taxation after taking into
consideration available tax credits and rebates. The charge for the current tax also includes adjustments where considered
necessary, frelating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalized during the year.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognisad using the balance sheet liability methad o al major temporary differences between the
camying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred
ta is measured at the tax rate that are expected to be applied an the temparary differences when they reverse, based
on the t2x rates that have been enacted o substantially enacted at the reporting date,

A deferred tax assetis recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the futurs taxable proflt witl be available against
which the asset can be utilised. Deferrad tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benafit will be realised.

The Bank also recognises deferred tax asset / liabliity on deficit / surphus on revaluation of assets and actuarial gain / losses
recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’, which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus,
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58 Employees’ benefits

54941

59.2

Retiremant heneflts

Defined benefit plan

The Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent ernplayees. Retirement benefits are
payable to the members of the scheme on the completion of prescribed gualifying period of service under the
scheme, Conttibution is made in accordance with the actuarial recommendation, The actuarial valuation is carried
out annuially as at the statement of financial position date using *Projectad Unit Credit Acturial Cost Methad”

Al actuarial gains and losses are recognised in "Other Comprehensive ncame’ as they coour.

Past service cost resulting from changes to defined benefit plan is recognized inthe profit and loss aceounts.
Defined contributlon plan

The Bank operates a recognised provident fund scheme for all its regular em ployeas, which is administered by
the Board of Trustess. Conttibutions are made by the Bank and its employees, 1o the fund at the rate of 10% of
basic salary.

Compansated absences

A provision is made for estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by the employees
against unavailed leaves, as per term of service contract, Up to the statement of financial position date.

The actuarial valuation under the Projected Unit Credit Acturial Cost Method' has been carried out by the Banik for
the detarmination of the liability for compensated absences. Liability so determined is fully recogrised by the Bank,

5.10 Ravenue recognition

Revenue is recogrized to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be reliably
measured, Thiese are recognized as follows:

a)

Advances and Investments

Mark-up / teturn on regular loans / advances and debt securities investments is recognized on a time propoTion
basis that take inte account the effective vield on the asser, Where debt securities are purchased ak prerium or
discount the same is amartized through the profit and loss accaunt using the effective interest rate method.
Interest o mark-up fecaverable on lassified loans and advances ared investrents is recogrized on receipt basis,
Initerest / requrn ¢ mark-up on classified rescheduled / resteucturad loans and agvances ang investments is
recognized as permitted by the regulations of the State Bark of Pakistan.

Bividend income is recognised when the Bank’s right 1 receive the dividend is established.

Gains and lasses on sale of irvestments are recognized in the profit and loss account,

Incame on bills discounted are recognised over the period of the bill




bl  Lease financing / ljarah contracts

Financing method is used in accaunting for incame from leass fina neing. Under this method, the unesrned lease
income (excess of the sum of total lease rentals and estirated residual value over the cost of leased assers) s
deferred and taken to income gver the term of the lease peried 50 a5 to produce a constant periadie rate of letum
on the cutstanding net investment in lease. Unrealised income on classified leases is recagnized on neceipt basis,

Rental incorme on [jarahs executed by the lslamic Banking hranehes and accounted for under [FAS 2 {refer note
54) is recognised in the profit and foss accaunt on a tirme proportion basis.

Gafns / losses on termination of lease contracts and ather lease income are recogrized when realizad,
c] Fees, brokerage and commisslon

Fees, commizsicn and brokerage except income figm letters of guarantes is accounted for an recei it basis, Incorne
from letter of quarantee is recoqnised on an accrual basis over the period of the guarantes.

5.11 Off satting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the ret amount is reparted in the financial statements when there
is a legrally enforceable right to set off and the Bank intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the assate ahed to
setile the liabilities simultanecusly.

512 Foreign currencies
Foveign currency transactions are translated inta local curmency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of trarsaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign cumencies are wanslated inw rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the
statement of financial position date. Forward exchange contracts are revalued wsing forwarg exchange rates applicable
tar their respective remaining maturities. Bxchange gains or losses are included in income currently.
Commitrnents for autstanding forward foreign exchange contracts disclosed in these financial statements are translated
at contracted rates, Contingent labilities / comrmitrnenits for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in
foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of excha nge ruling an the statement of financial position date.

5.13 Segment reporting
A segmentis 3 distinguishable compenent of the Bank that is engaged in praviding product or services (business segrnent],
o in providing products or services within a particular economie environment {geographical seqment), which is subject
te risks and rewards that are different friom those of ather segrments. The Bank's primary format of reporting is based on
the following business sagments,
Businass segments

a) Trading and salas

This segrment undertakes the Bank’s treasury, money market and capital market activities,
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b) Retail banking

Retail banking provides services (o small Bomowers Le. Consumers and srmall and medium enterprises (SMES), It
includes ioans, deposits and other transactions with retail custorners.

¢] Commercial banking

This includes loans, deposits and other ansactions with corparate customers, and SME custamers other than those
included in retail banking.

Geographlcal segments
The Bank canducts all its aperations in Fakistan,
5.14 Dividend distribution and appropriations

Banus and cash dividend and other appropriations (except for the appropriations required by Taw), declared / approved
subseguent to staterment of financial position date are considered a5 non-adjusting event and are not recorded in
unconsolidated financial statements of the current year. These are recognized in the period in which these are
declared f approved,

E.15 Eamings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted eamings per share {EPS) data for its arclinary shiaras, Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or Ioss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bark by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the prafit of loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ardinary sharas,

5.16 Impairment of assets (other than loans and advanges and investments}

A each staternent of financial position date, the Bank reviews the carrying amaunt of its as3ets (nther than deferred tax
asset] ta determine whether there is an indication that those assets have suftered an impairment loss. Wary such indication
exists, the recaverable amaunt of relevant asset is estimated. Recovera ble amount s the graater of the net selling price
and alue in use. If the recaverable amount of an asset is estimated to e less than its carrying amount, the carnying
arnaunt af the assets is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss s recognized as an expense
immediately. An impaitment loss s reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairrent loss was recognised,

Datails of the basis of determination of impairment against loans and advances and investments have bean discussed
in their respective notes,

£.17 Financial instruments

Al financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Bank becomnes 2 party 10 the contractual provisions
of the ingtrurment. Finamcial assets are derecognized when the Bank loses control of the ¢ontractual fghts that compise
the financial assets, Financial iabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished ie. when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain of loss on derecognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities is taken to profit and loss account. Financial assets carried on the staternent of financial position include cash
and bank balances, lendings to financial instinutions, investments, advan<ces and cenain receivables. Financial liabilities
include biorowings, deposits, bills payable and other payables, The particular recognition methods adopted for significant
financial assets and financial liabllities are disclosed in the individual policy notes assaciated with them.
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5.18 Murabaha

Murabaha transactions are reflected as receivable at the invaiced amount, Profit on sale of g commodity not gdue far
payment is deferred by recording 3 credit to the "Deferred Murabaha Income” account [and net against the receivable
balante]. Fnds disbursed under Murabaha arngements for purchase of goods are recorded as advanice against turabaha.

5.19 Diminishing Musharika
In Diminishing Mushariks based financing, the Bank enters inte a Musharika based on shirkat-ul-milk for financing an
agreed share of fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or rmachinery) with its customers and enters into petiad profit payment

agreement for the utilization of the Bank's Musharik share by the custormer. incorme from these transactions are recarded
or accnual basts,

5.20 Istisna

In istisna financing, the Bank places an crder to purchase some specific goods / commudities from its customers to be
deliverad 10 the Bank within an agreed time. The goads are then sold and the amount financed is paid back to the Bank.

3.21 Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

The Bank occasionally acquires assets in settlerment of certain advances, These are recorded at the lower of carmying value
of the related advances and the current fair value of such assets.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These unconsclidated financial statements are presented in Pakistari Rupees, which is the Bank's fungtional currency, Except
as indicated, financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded ta nearsst theusand,

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accaunting
periads beginning as specified below;

- Amendments ta 145 19 Employes Benefits Employee contributions — a practical approach (effective for annual petiods
beginning on ot after July 01, 2014). The practical expadient addresses an issue that amse when amendrments wers made
in 2011 to the previous pension accounting requirernents, The amendments introduce a relief that will reduce the
complexity and burden of accounting for certain contributions from employees or third parties. The amendments are
relevant only 1o defined benefit plans that involve contributions from employaes or third parties meeting certain criteria,

- Amendments k1A% 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment feffective for annuat periods beginning
on or after January 01, 2016} introduce severe restrictions on the use of revenue-based amortization for inta ngible assers
and explicitly state that revenue-basad methods of depreciation carnot be used for property, plant and equipment, The
rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation methods for intangible assets is inappropriate can
be avercome anly when revenue and the consumption of the sconomic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly
corelated, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue. The amendrmeants are nat likely to have
an impact on Bank’s finarcial statemants.
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IFRS 10 onsolidated Financial Statements’— (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after January 011, 2015 replaces
the part of 145 27 Consglidated and Separate Financial Statements. RS 10 introduces a new approach o determining
which investees shauld be consalidated. The single model ta be applied in the cantral analysis requires that an investar
controls an investee when the investar is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its nvolvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. IFR5 10 has made consequential changes
to]A5 27 which is now called ‘Separate Finandial Staternents and will deal with only separate financial staternents. Certain
further armendments have been made to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 clarifying the requirements relating ke acrounting
far investment entities and would be effective for annual pericds beginning an or after January 31, 2016 Managernent
of the Bank is currently assessing the likely impact of this IFRS on the Banl's financial statements,

IFRS 11'Jaint Arrangemments (effective for annual periads beginning & or after January 91, 2015) replaces 145 31 Interests
in Joint Ventures, Firstly, it carves out, from 145 31 jointly controlled entities, those cases in which although there is a
separate vehicle, that separation is ineffective in certain wiiys. These arrangements are treated similarly to jointly controlled
assetsfoperations Under 145 31 and are now called joint operations. secondly, the rermainder of 185 31 jointly controlled
entities, nowe called joirtventuras, are stipped of the free choice of using the equity methoed or propartionate consalidation;
they rmust now ahways use the equity method, IERS 11 has alse made consequential changes in A5 28 which has now
been named Investment in Associates and Joint Yentures: The amendments requiring business combination accounting
to be applied to scquisitions of interests in & joint aperation that constitutes a busiress are effective far annual perieds
beginning on ot after January 01, 2016. The adopticn of this standard is not likely to have an Banks financial staternents.

IFRS 17 Disclosure of Intetest in Other Entities’ (effective for abnual periods beginning an or after Janwary 01, 2015
cormbines the disclosure requirernertts for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arangements {1e, Joint operations
o joint ventures, associates ameldor uncamsolidated strugturad entities, into cne place. The adoptian o this stanclard is
not likely to have an impact on Banks inancial statements.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’ effective for annual perinds beginning on or after January 01, 2015) defines fair value,
sctablishes a framewark for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure requirernents far fair valug measurements. IFRS
13 explains how ko measure fair value when it is required by other IFR3s. It does nat introduce new fair value measuismments,
wor daes it eliminate the practicabiity exceptions to fair value measurements that cusrently exist in certain standards.

amendment 1o 1A% 27 Separate Financial Staternent’(effective for annual pericds beginning on or after January (1, 2016},
The amendments ke 145 27 will allow entities to use the equity methed 1o account far investments in subsidiarnies, joint
wenklres and associates in their separate financial starerments.

Agricultura: Bearar Plants [Armendrment t 1A% 16 and |AS 41] (effective for annual peringds beginming on or atter January
01, 2016} Bearer plants are now in the scope af 145 16 Praperty, Mlant and Equipment for measurement and disclosure
purposes. Therefore, 3 company can elect 10 Measwre bearer planits t cost. However, the produce growing on bearer
plants will continue to be measuied at fair valle less costs 10 sell under 145 41 Agriculture. & bearer plant is a plant that:
is used in the supply of agricuitural produce; is expected ko bear produce for more thian one period; and has a remate
tikelihood of being sold as agricultural produce. Befare rmaturity, bearer plants are accolinted for in the same way as self-
constructed iterms of praperty, plant and eguipment during construction.

cale or Cantribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate o Joint Venture (Armendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 [effective for annual pericds begineing on or after January 01, 2016] The main consequence of the amendments is
that a fuil gain or loss is recognised when 3 tansaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not).
A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not canstitute a business, even if these assets
are hioused in 4 subsidiary,




HABIBMETRO

- Annual Improverments 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 cycles (most amendments will apply prospectively for anrual pericd
beginning on ar after July (1, 2014). The new cycle of impraverments contain amendments to the following standards;

IFRS 2"Share-hased Payment’ IFRS 2 has been amended ta clarify the definition of vesting condition” by separately
defining 'performance condition”and ‘service condition!

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations. These amendments clarify the classification and measurement of contingent
consideration in a business combingtior,

IFRS 8Cyperating Segrments” has been amended to explicitly require the disclosure of Judgments rriade by management
in applying the aggregation criteria,

Amendmenits 16 145 16 Froperty, plant and eqguipment’and 185 33 Intangible Assets: The amendments clarify the
requirements of the revaluation modsl in 1AS 16 and 145 38, recagnizing that the restatement of accurmulated
depreciation famortization) is not always proportionate to the change in the gross carmying amount of the asset.

45 24 Related Party Dischosure’, The definitlon of related party is extended to include 3 ma nagement entity that
provides key managerment personnel services to the reporting entity, either directly or through a group entity,

A5 40 Tnvestment Property” 145 40 has been amended to clanfy that an enitity should: assess whether an acquired
property is an investment property under IAS 40 and perform a separate assessment under IERS 3 to determing
whether the acguisition of the investrment property constitutes a business cambination,

- Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycles (amendments are effective for annual periods baginning on of after January
(1, 2016}, The new cycle of improvements contain amendments to the following standards:

IFRS 5 Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. IFRS 5 is amended 1o clarify that if an entity
changes the method of disposal of an asset {or disposal group) ie. reclassifies an asset from held for distribution
to awners 10 held for sale or vice versa without any time g, then such change in classification is considered as
continuation of the original plan of disposal and i an entity deterrmines that an asset {or disposal group) no langer
meets the criteria to be classified as held for distribution, then it ceasas held for distribution accounting in the sarme
way 35 it would cease held for sale accounting,

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments- Disclosures. IFRS 7 is amended to clarify when Servicing amangerments are in the scope
of its disclosure requiremertts on continuing involvernent in transferred financial assets in cases whan they are
derecognized in their entirety. IFRS 7 is also amended to clarify that addftional disclosures reguired by Disclosures:
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS7) are not specificatly required for incluslion
in condensed interim financial statements for all intedrn periods,

A5 19 Employes Benefits” 145 19 s amended to clarify that high quality carporate bonds or government bonds
used in determining the discount rate should be issued in the same cu mency in which the benefits are to be paid.

A5 34 Interim Fimancial Reporting’ 1A% 34 is amended to larify that certain dischosures, if they are not included in
the notes to interim financial staternents and disclosed elsewhere should be eross refierred,

The Bank expects that the above mentioned improvernents will nat have a material impact on the Bank's financial staternents
in the period of initial application.
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8. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

Mote 2014 2N3
— Rupees in Q00—
In hand
Local currency 3,893,745 3,504 818
Foreign cumencies 1,1B4.734 1,287,906
5078479 4,752,724
With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local cumancy cument accounts 8.1 3,885,122 9,127 680
Foreign currency cutrent account g2 102,111 134,530
Foreign curmency deposit accounts
- cash reservé aCCounts 83 2,330,002 1,740,700
- special cash resense acoounts 84 5865407 5,120,250
13,183,642 16,123,170
With National Bank of Pakistan in
Lacal currendy cumant accounts J6h118 275873
National Prize Bends 12614 16,005
18440,853 21208774

B.A Thase accounts are maintained to comply with the statutory cash reserve requirements and indude Rs. 1,191,445 thousand
{2013: Rs. 574,408 thousand) in respect of the Istamic Banking branches of the Bank

8.2 Represants US Dallar collection / settlement account with 5BP.

8.3 Represents cash reserve maintalned with SBP against forelgn cumrency deposits and nclude amount of Rs. 62,132 thousand
(201 3: Rs. 55,506 thousand} in respect of the Isfamic Banking branches of the Bank

8.4 Represents speclal cash reserve maintained with SBP against foreign currency deposits and include amount of Rs. 82,798
thousand (2013 Rs. 64,660 thousand in respect of the Islamic Banking branches of the Bank.

9. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan
On ausrent accounts 345083 480,181
Oin deposit accounts 21 548,662 23,880
803,745 454,061
Outside Pakistan
On aurrent accounts 92 375,990 1488635
Cin deposkt accounts 1579809
475,990 3.0658,504
1,865,735 3552565
9.1 These camy mark-up rate ranging from 6.50% to 2.00% (2013: 7009} per annum

9.2 Include balances in current accounts of Rs. 33,711 thousand (2013:Rs, 934807 thousand) with branches of the helding
COMmpay.




HABIBMETRO

18, LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Note 2014 2013
{Rupees inD00} ——

Call money lendings 102 1,500,000 -
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repol 193 1,008,776 -

3408776 -

10.1 Particulars of lendings
In bacal cumency 3A0BT76 _

10.2 This carry mark-up rate 10.75% (2013; Nil) Per annum, with maturlty upto 14 January 2015,

10.2 Securities held as cellateral against lending to financlal institutions (Reverse repo)

Note 2014 2013
Held by Given as Total Held by Given as Tortal
Bank collateral Hank collateral
(Rupees in'000)
Marketreasury bills 1032 1,908,776 - 1.908.776 - - -

10.3.1- These iendings carry mark-up rates ranging from 9.75% to 10.00% {2013; Nil} PET annilem, with maturity uptm
2 January 2015,

10.3.2 Market value of securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions amounted to Rs. 1,908,776
thousand (2013: NI,
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11. INVESTMENTS

11.1 Investments by types

Mote 2014 2013
Held by Glven as Held by Given as
Bank  collateral Total Bank collateral Total

Avallable-for-sale sacurities (Rupees in O]
Market treasury bills 15 B5,129.747 - 85,129,747 54,387,024 - 54,387 024
Pakistan investernent bonds 116 F7AB7150 - FFABT 150 4L BB 129 - 45828,229
Crdinary shares of listed

cormpanies 973,924 - ay3024 2530409 - 230,409
Ordinary shares of unlisted

companies 104,205 - 104,205 104,205 - 104,205
Preferance shares of listed

Cornparty - - - 40,000 - 40,000
Listed tetrn finance

cenificates 1,094,653 - 1,094,653 BbE305 - 566,305
Unlisted term finance

cerificates 4401395 - 440,395 582063 - 552903
Sukuk, certificates and bonds 17,314,358 - 17,314,358 14,006,738 - 14,096,753
Open end mutual funds 9856828 - 0856828 11415046 - 11,415,048
Close end mutual funds 3818 - 3 - - -

192,413,076 - 192 113,076 127,550,964 - 127,550,960

Held-to-maturity securitins
Pakistan investment bonds 1.7 22,559,359 - 22559359 14112302 - 14112202
Subsidlary
Habib Metropolitan Financial

Senvices Limited - 29,595,997

(2013 29,999,597 ordinary

shares of s, 10/~ each 300,000 - 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
Investmants at cost 215,272,435 - N5272435 141963271 - 141,963,271
Prowision for diminution in the

value of imestrnents 13 {160,180 - {1640,180) (190,984 - §150,984)
Investments - net of provisions 215,112,255 - 215112255 141,772,287 - 141 772287
Surphus £ (deficit) on revaluation

of available-for-sale

secyrities - net 21 6,648,907 - 5,648,507 671,395 - 671,305
investmants after
ravaluation of avallable-

for-sale securities 062 - 221,761,162 -

142 445,682

142443 682




HABIBMETRO

Mote 2014 2013
Rupees in 000 ~——
11.2 Investments by segments
Federal government sacurlbes
= Market treasury bills 85120747 54387024
= Pakistan investrment bonds 100,026,509 58,940,531
- GOFijarah sulak 15,519,169 12,437,255
200675425 126,764.850)
Fully paid up ordinary shares
- Listed companies 973,94 230405
- Unlisted companies 104,205 104,205
1078129 334614
Fully pald up preference shares
- Listed cormpany - 40,000

Tarm finance certificates, sukuk certificates and bonds

- Listed term finance certificates J 1,094,653 866,305
- Unlisted term finance certificates 440,395 SE2 963
- Sukuk cenificates / bonds 1,795,189 1659493
3,330,237 ERL
Mutual funds -
- Cpenend 9856828 11,415,046
- Closeend 31,815 -
9,838,644 11415045
Subsidiary
- Habib Metropolitan Finandial Services Limited - 29.999,597
(2013: 29,999.907) orelinary shares of Bs, 10/~ each 300,000 300000
Invastments at cost 215,272,435 141,963 271
Prowvisian for diminution in the value of investrments 113 {160,180 (190 SR
Investments - net of provisions 215,112,255 141,772,267
Surplus o revaluation of available-for-sale
sECUnties — net 21 0,048 807 £71,395
Investments after revaluation of available-for-sale securltes 221,761,162 142 443 682
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2014 23

Rupees in UK ——
14.3 Particulars of provislon for diminution
in the value of investments
Opening balance 190,534 274.24]
Charge for the year : 24,487 431
Reversal for the year {13,102) 6.203)
Net charge / {reversal) for the year 11,280 {1,280
Reversal of provision on disposal of invesiments {42,184) (81.378)
Chosing batance 160,180 190,554
14.3.1 Particulars of provision for diminution In
respect of type and segment
Available-for-sale securities
Fully paid-up ordinary shares
Unlisted campanies 74,353 72356
Fully paid-up preference shares
Listed compary - 38,360
Term finance certificates, sukuk certificates and bonds
Listed termn finance certificates 22,486 -
Unlisted term finance certificates 33,063 28290
Sulkuk certificates / bonds 40,278 51,978

160,180 1901584

11.4 Iinformation relating 1o investments in federal govemment securities, oidinary and preference shares of listed and unlisted
companies, listed and unlisted term finance certificates and sukuk certificates / bonds and open and close end mutual
funds required to be disclosed as part of the financial staternents urder the SBP's B30 Circular Mo. 4, dated 17 February
2006, is given in Annexure 1" and is an integral part of these unconsofidated financial staternents.

11.5 These canry mark-up rates ranging frem 9.43% to 10.10% (2013 8.95% to D.91%) per anhum, with maturity upto
24 December 2015,

11.6 These camy mark-ug rates ranging from 11.25% 1o 12.000% (20131 1.25% to 12.00%) per annurn and will rmature up to
17 July 2024, These indudes 158,500 thousand (2013: Rs. 158,500 thousand} pledged with State Bark of' Fakistan and
National Bank of Pakistan against TT/DD giscounting facilities and demand loan facilities.

11.7 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 11.25% to 12.00% (2013: 11.25% 10 1 2.00%} per annum and will mature up 1o
19 July 2022,




HABIBMETRO

Mate 2014 2013
Rupees in 00} ——
12. ADVANCES
Loans, cash credits, unning firances, stc.
In Pakistan 114,871,053 TBEYE 461
et investrnent in finance lease / ifarah financing
I Pakistan 122 476918 490,079
Assets held under ljargh 123 247,988 17451
Bills discounted and purchased
{exduding market treasury bills)
Payable in Pakistan 8,089 663 5511266
Payable outside Pakistan 24,378,556 19,269,533
34468219 24,780,599
Advances - gross 150,164,178 144,143,950
Provision agalnst non-performing advances
- specific (15,661,846) (13455861)
- general {326,696 (354,152)
126 (15,988,542) (14310013
Advances - net of provisions 134,175,636 129833937
12.1 Particulars of advances - gross
1211 mnlocal cumency 109,531,066 115,692,349
In foreign currencies 40,633,112 28451,601
150,164,178 144143550
12.1.2 Shart term {for upto one year) 137,077,541 130,784,830
Long term {for over one year) 13,086,637 13,359.120
150,164,172 144,143,950
12.2 Net investment In finance lease / ifarah finanging
an4 M3
Motlater  Laterthan  Over  Total Metlater  Laterthan  Over  Total
thanone  oneandless  five tenone  pneand  five
year thanfive  years year bessthan  years
years five years
Rupess [n D00
Lease rentals receivatile 186,556 232,770 30764 450090 134122 799 MR 476503
Resldual value 32,066 64,487 478 97024 2039 68,171 99s  BOSES
Minimum lease payments 218,622 207357 3240 S4T110 54521 3GLOPM 25577 566068
Finarw:ial charges for future
periads {25419 (36,127)  {B,655) (7020} 16497}  @5920) [i3578) (75989
Present value of minimum
lease payrnents 193,203 261,130 22585 476NB 138074 MO0S0 12005 490079

12.2.1 These finance lease receivables includa the ljarah contracts exearted hefore the promulgation of IFAS 2 (and
written up to 31 December 2008),
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124

12.5

12.6

Net baaok value of investrnents in ljarah under IFAS-2 is net of depreciation of Bs, 144,141 thousand (2013: fis. 359,201
thousand),

Artvances Include Rs. 19,325,134 thousand (2013 ; Rs. 16,973,536 thousand]) which have been placed under non-paferming
status as detalled below:

2014 20713
Category of Classified  Provision  Provision Classified  Provision  Provision
classification advances  required held advances required held
Rupees [n ‘T
Substandard 553,749 85,580 83,530 14,353 £ 386
Diou bt 1408214 664 454 65,454 134,771 29102 29102
Loss 17,323,171 14907812 145907812 16824712 13426373 13426373

19,325,134 15661,846 155607844 16573536 13455861 134558401

Consideration of forced sales value (FSV) for the purposes of provisioning against non-performing
loans

During the current year, the Bank decided to avail additional foroed sale value (F5V) benefit under BSD Circular No. 1 of
1 Octeber 2011, This has resulted in reduction of provision agalnst non-performing laans and advances by Rs. 594,668
thausand, Further, as of 31 December 2014, had the benefit of FSYs {including those availed into previous year} not been
taken by the Bank, the specific provision against non-performing advances would have been higher by Rs. 2513871
thousand (2073; Rs. 3,448,343 thausand) and accurnulated profit wauld have been lower by Rs. 1 G346 thousand (2013
Rs, 2,241,423 thousand), This amount of Rs. 1634016 thousand is not available for distribution of Inan and stock dividend
to the shareholders and bonus to employees.

Particulars of provision against non-performing advances

Mote 4 2013
Spacific General Total Specific Gerveral Tatal
Rupass in D00
Opering bakance 13,455,841 854,152 143100113 12035322 ISE674 1238899
Charge for the year 3,244,544 - 3244544 | | 2182078 500478 2582556
Reversals [a40.8801| | (527.456) [ ](1,477,345} 571,446 - (571,446)
Met charge for the year 2,294 655 (527456} 1,767,199 1610632 51478 21111010
Armount writien off 128 {88,670 - {88,670 {190,093) - f190.093]
Closing balance 127 15661846 126606 15988542 13455861 854,152 14310013

#2.6.1 General provisian includes pravision of Rs. 2,178 thousand {2013: Rs. 2 894 thousand) made against Consumer
portfolia maintained at an arnount equal e 1.5% of the fully secured performing portfolio and 5% of the unsecured
perfanming portiolio as required under the Prudential Regulations issuied by the State Bank of Pakistan, Moreower,
general provision also includes provision of Rs. 31,041 thousand (2013 Rs. 37,450 thousand) made against small
enterprises maintained at an amount equal to 1% of the fully secured performing portfolio and 2% of the
unsecured performing portfolic.




12.7 Particulars of provision against nen-performing advances

2014 2013
Specific General Total Specific General Total
Rupees in 000
Agafnst local currency exposure 15,257,998 326,096 1345558 AR4152 14099750
Against foreign currencies expasure 403,848 0283 - 210,283
15,661 846 326696 13455861 B54152 14310013
Note 2014 2013
Bupees in 000 ——
12.8 Particulars of write-offs
12.8.1 Agairst provisions 1268 8BGO0 180,093
Cirectly charged 1o profic and loss account - -
88,670 150,003
12.8.2 Write-offs of Rs, 5000004 and above 87,921 184,555
Write-offs of below Rs. 500,000/~ 730 538
150,053

12.9 Deaiails of loan write-offs of Rs, 500,000/ and above

REGT0

I terms of sub-section (3) of section 334 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the statement in respect of wiiten-of

laans or any other financial relief of Rs, 300,000 or above
2014 is enelosed as Arnesure i,

12.10 Particulars of loans and advances to directors,
assoctated companies, subsidlary etc.

Debits due by directors, executives or officers of the Bank
ar arty of them either severally or jointhy with any
other persons

Balance at beginning of year
Loans granted during the vear
Repayments

Balance at end of year

Debts due by comnpanies or firms in which the directors
of the: Bank are interested as directors, partners or
in the case of private companies as members

Balance at beginming of year
Loans granted during the vear
Repayments

Balarce at end af vear

4

121641
¥53,395
(410,989

1,758,827

202003
38405253
(38.584,881)

1,840,385

allowed ta the persons during the year ended 31 Oecernber

947147
626,455
(357.664)

1216421

1,602,820
37133684
(36,716,491

21120013
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Mote 2014 2013
Rupees in 000 ———
13. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
Capital wiork-in-progress 131 £,996 40,100
Property and eguiprrent 13.2 3,017,592 2,904 454
Intanditle assets 133 - -
sonases 304564
13.1 Capital work{n-progress
Civil works 1341 6,996 16635
Eqjuiprnents - 23,465
6,996 40,100
13.4.1 This represents advance against rengwation being carnied out at various lacations.
13.2 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Cast Dapreciation 3:&;
As at n Asat31 mat  Chargefor  Asst3l  Asat3t et
1 lanuary ?ﬁ:tws; Decernber 01 January  theyeay  December  December d_epre;l
24 Eletien 2014 04 [detetions) 1 2014 ’:'ﬂ;‘:’
Fupess in HX
Leazehald land 7488 - 7488 1229 112 1241 6147 149
Buildings £ office premises §34.313 - £34313 156,410 23423 180,033 454,280 4
on freehold land
Buildings / office premises 1,922,797 - 1,922,747 547,502 63,785 616290 1,306,507 4
ar leasehgid land
Furninare and fiztures, office
and¢ armputer £Uipment 1,245,583 336,039 1492181 FH2848° 200331 040,473 558718 15413
{B2,431) (51,706}
YWehicles 16,858 845 15382 12,1493 1,800 12,566 3326 it
{1,811] (1435
Leasehgdd fenprovements 1,503,571 247,545 1,746,978 836,159 223,005 1,058 364 AES,614 paly
{4,538) -
2014 5331410 SE4 429 5826659 2336544 525,659 2800067 372592
(88,780 (53,138}




HABIBMETRO

Cast Depreciatian E::ﬂﬁ
A ar . s at 1 A at Charge for A 3t 41 psary  FAwEof
Additons/ depie-
01 Jarua Decembar 91 Januar the year Decermber [cember  USF
o Gdelerions) 2013 W3 deketions) 2013 a3 e
Rupees in OOG
Leasehald Fand 7453 - FA25 1117 112 1229 f,259 i49
Buildings / office prarnises 634,313 - 634,213 133182 13433 1536510 477203 4
or freehold land
Buildings / office premises 1881032 - 1932 a7 423371 0 547 5032 1,375,295 4
on leasehiold Jand (58 235) 15,329
Furmituee and fixtures, office
and computer equipment QB 050 JEDAST 1245583 621467 178662 7B2 B4R 402735 1584325
{19,024 17,281
Vehicles 15545 1037 16,858 10547 1,71 2108 4580 a0
[1d4) 120
Leasehald improverments 1243751 250,201 1,503,971 40,121 146039 835,159 £67,812 20
(] [
m3 . 866,579 H1.935 5331010 1890.t61 70114 2336545 264 404
{7750 (23731}

13.2.1 The cost of fully depreciated assets still in use is Rs. 1,120,518 thousands (2013 R, 894,427 thousands),

13.22 Canying amount of idle property held as at 31 December 2014 is Bs, 278,386 thousands (20H2: s, 201 560
thousands). These praperties has been temporarnily kept idle.

13.2.3 Derails of fixed assets deleted with original cost or book value in excess of fs, 1,000 thousand or s, 250 thausand

respectively are a3 follows:
Farticulars Cost  Book  Sale Mode of disposal Particulars of purchaser
value proceed
— Rupeesin ')} ———
Furniture and fixtures 350 n mn b per the Banks palicy Mubiarmmad Farez Hader
350 311 T (Bank's ex-emaloyes)
13.3 Intangible assets

Trl;lgucost of fully amortised intangible assets (computer software) still in Use is Rs, 27,875 thousands (2013: Rs, 27,875
thousands),
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14. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferrad tax debits arising in respect of:
— Provision against diminution in the value of investments
— Provisions against nor-performing advangss (including

Note

off-balance sheet obligations) 303
— Pravision against ather assers
— Deferred liability on defined benefit plan
Deferred tax cradits arising due 1o
- Surplus on revaluation of investrment securities
- Arcelerated depreciation
Net defarred tax asset 141
14.1 Reconciliation of deferred tax
Salance  Recognised  Recognised  Balandce as
as at in prefit in egulty ai
1 January & loss Decembear
2013 00ount M3
Fups2es in ‘000
Deferred tax debits
arising In respest of
E‘muision against
" diminution in value
of imwvastrnents 65,050 (#8795 57255
Frewision against non-
perforring
achvances {incuding
offbalance sheet
obsligations) -
nate 303 1424087 (293042 3,131,045
Propision against other
ansets 56,250 - 96,250
Defaprad liakility on
defined benefit plan 36,406 3,970 36,557 105,333
3623,055 [26%,357) 36,557 3,349,883
\Deferred tax cradits
arising dua to
Surpdus on revaluation
of investrent
securities (435796 - 7a4.134 (51.657)
Aoceleraved
depredation 1475,651) B4SHE {351,075}
(1311447 B, 276 74,139 (442730
Net deferred tax
assel 2311, 748 [185,291) B A6 2047151

2ng 2013
Rupees in 000 ——
56,003 57,255
3,408,940 3.131,045
200,900 Q5,250
9,549 ) 105333
3,735,483 3389383
(2,098,459 (51,6573
(368,457} (391,075
{2,456,9561_ 442733
1,268,527 2847151
Recognised  Recognised  Balanceas
in profit in equity at 3
& loss Decenber
accownt 2014
(1,152} - 26,063
FEERY. - 3,408,971
104,650 - 200,500
(33,135} 12049) 69,545
38 249 {2649 3735483
- (2046800 [2098,459)
2578 - (368,437
22,578 (2046.502) [2,466.950]
370,827 (2049451 1,268,527




HABIBMETRO

Note 2074 2013
Rupees in 000 ——
15. OTHER ASSETS
Incorme £ mark-up £ profit accrued in local curreney 8,567,025 4870280
Income S rmark-up / profit accrued in foreign cumencies 68851 57706
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 409047 404 544
Arfvarce tax (payments less provisions) 430470 341172
Brarch adjustment account 11,550 4458
Urrealized gain on forward foreign eschange contracts 2,029,943 1224538
Feceivable from the SBP anainst encashment of
{wErnment securities 46,833 103318
Staticnery and stamps on hang 33,783 3581
Advance payments against ijarah 4341 4586
Advance payments against diminishing rmusharika 215,544 197480
Advance payments against murabaha 245,785 379
Advance payment against istisna B5,000 -
Dividend receivable 2,348 -
tlon-banking assets acquired in satistaction of claims 15.1 1211976 1,170,031
Others 337,705 282,343
13,804,805 8708372
Provision argainst other assets 152 (574,000) {275,000
13,230,805 843
15.1 warker value of non-banking assets arquired in
satisfaction of claims 1,406,528 1,308,975
15.2 Provision held against other assets
Jpening balance 275,000 275000
Charge for the year 259,000 -
Closing balance 574,000 275,000
16. BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan 5,201,482 3982213
17. BORROWINGS
In Pakistan 20,125,035 20,732,048
Qutside Pakistan 4,758,947 2374064
24,583,982 23057002
17.1 Particulars of borrowings
In local currency 20,125,035 20,732,048
I foraign cumencies 4,758,947 2324954
24,883 982 23057002
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Note 24 2013

Rupees in 1000 ——
17.2 Detalls of bomowings
Secured
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan
—  under expoit refinance scheme 17,605,949 18579476
— under long term financing - export onented projects 63,659 136,751
— under long term financing facility - locally
manufactured plant and machinery 1,394,143 1,796,348
1721 19,063,781 20612575
Due against bills re-discourting 1722 4,032,083 1925,129
23,095,809 22537704
Unsecured
Bai Muajjal 1723 912,598 -
Overdiawn nostra accounts 726,858 399825
Overdrawn kocal bank accounts 148,656 112473
1,788,113 519298
24,863,962 23057002

17.2.1  These carrying mark-up rates ranging between 5.00% to 11.00% (2013: 5.00% to 11.00%) per annum which is
payable quarterly or upon maturity of Igans, whichever is earler,

17.2.2  This represents the obligation ta the conresponding Banks an the discounting of forelgn documentary bills
purchased by the Bank The balance catries discount rates ranging from 1.00% to 1.25% (2013: 0.75% to 1.25%).

17.2.3  This represents unsecured borrowing from the finandial institutions, carrying mark-up rates ranging between
93504 to 9.40% (2013; Nil}, with matutity upto 9 Aprl 2015,




HABIBMETRO

18.

18,

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers

Fixed deposits

Savings deposits

Current accounts (non-remunerative) -
Cthers

Financial institutlons

Rernunerative deposits
Mon-remunerative deposits

18.1 Particutars of deposits
o local currency
Inforefgn curencies

OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / retum / interest payable in local currency
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign cumencies
Unearmed commission and incorme on bilis discountad
Accrued expenses

Prowision against aff-batance sheet obligation
Unclairmed dividend

Unrealized loss on farward forsign exchange conitracts
Wirkers' weifare fund

Excise duty pavabile

Locker deposits

Advance against diminishing musharika

Adwance rental for jarah

Security deposits against leases / ijarah

Sundry creditors

Withhalding tax / duties

Prossion for compensated absences

Defemed liability on defined benefit plan

Otiers

Note

291

343

2014 2013

Rupees in B0 ——
130,176,979 10084176
93481 501 73,259,593
86,851,170 66,060,951
2,268,708 3,085,411
312,608,258 24330013
5,716,190 3758777
1499012 [ SB4.679
7,215,202 4,343,456
320,023 460 247 643 587
272,604,833 212562402
47 AB627 35081185

320,023,460

7.543,558
246,453
133,893
479,536

98,727
B781

2740816

213,501

3.801
541,928
88,987
25975
166,854
171,681
124,434
77312
198,712
275,404

12,520,456

247 43,587

4,786,458
108,035
127,402
328379

98,727
§.463

1,180,240

3254676

1,445
492477
55,040
8725
172,750
150,295
72,650
185,985
497,624
388,686

Braroes
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2.

52

SHARE CAPITAL

20.1 Authorised capital

2014 2Mm3 2014 2012
fNumber of shares) Rupees 000 ——

1,200,000,000  1,200:000000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each 12,000,000 12,000,000

20.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10#- each

300,000,000 30,005.000 — issued for cash 300,000 300,000
52,500,000 g2 500,000 - ssued upon amalgamation 925,000 925,000
925,331,480 §25,331,480 ~ igsued as honus shargs 953,315 5253315
1,047,821,430 1047831480 10478315 10478315

20,3 As of the date of staternent of financial pasition, the holding company held 534,394 thousand (2013: 534,34 thousand)
ordinary shares of Fis, 10/~ each [51% holding].

SURPLUS / [DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX
Availabla-for-sale securities

Federal government secutities

Market treasury bills 138,751 91,675
Pakistan investrnent bands 5,435,582 {92,551}
(CP ffarah sukuk 28,753 128978
Fully paid-up ordinary shares and mutual funds
Listed shares and mutual funds 1,016,261 T26504
Fully paid-up preference shares
Listed compary - 6,720
Term finance cerificates, sukuk certificates and bonds
Listed term finance cenificates 11,332) (177510
Unlisted term finance certificates a,554 16,512
Sukuk certificatas £ bonds 30,934 {5442
6,643,907 671,395
Related deferred tax lability - net £2.098,459) (51657
4,550,448 519,738

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22 1 Direct credit substitutes 2014 2012
Rupeesin 00—

Barik guarantees of indebiriess in favour of:
- Banking comparigs and other finangial institutions 16472 31,670
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2014 2013
Fupsees in 00 ———

22.2 Transactlon-related contingent liabilities

Includes performance bonds, bid bonds, advance payment guarantees and shipping guarantees Favouiringy;

) Government 14,820,687 16417,161

i} Banking companies and other fimancial institutions 36,395 170,040

i) Others 6,035,560 3 566,742
20,892,651 20,153,943

22.3 Trade-related contingent liabilitias

Lenters of credit 58,779,685 60,413,234
ceptances 12,513,547 10821099

22.4 Commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts

Purchase 100,046,711 58,504,354
Sale 102,205,035 60,959,246

22.5 Commitments [n respect of operating leases

Mat later than ane year 16,371 18492
Later than one year and not later than five years 18,732 222

35103 41404

The Bank has entered into non-cancellable lease agreements with a Modaraba which has been duly approved by the
Religlous Board as ijarah transactions. The monithly rental instalments are spread over a period of 36 manths. When a
lease is terminated before the lease period has axpired, any payment required 1o be made to the lessor by way of penalty
is recognized as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

22.6 Commitments for the acquisitlon of operating fixed assets 9572 19,791
22.7 Claims against bank not acknowledged as debt 2184916 2154916

22 B Commitments in respact of forward lendings

The Bank makes commitments to extend cradit in the nomal course of its business, but none of these commitmanis are
irevecable and do not attract any penalty if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn,

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Bank deals in derivative fingncial instruments namely forward foreign exchange cortracts and foreign currency swaps with
the principal view of hedging the risks afising from its trade business.

As per the Bank's policy, these contracts are reported on their fair value at the staternent of financiat position date. The qairs

and Josses from revaluation of these contracts are inciuded under “income from dealing in foreign currendies Unrealized gains
and Ipsses o these contracts are recorded on the statement of financial position under other assets 7 other liabilities”
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25.

26.

These products are offered to the Bank’s customers fo protect from unfavourable movernents i fersign currencies, The Bank

hedges such exposures in the inter-bank foreign exchange market.

These pasitions are reviewed on a reqular basis by the Bank' Asset and Liability Commitree (ALCC.

MARK-UP / RETURN ! INTEREST EARNED

0n loars and advances
Custorners
Financial thstitutions

O inestments in:
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-rnatLrity securities

£3n deposits with inancial institutions
On securities purchased under resale agresrnents {reverse repo)

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits

securities sold under repurchase agreements
Short term borrowings

Long terrm borrowings

GAIN ON SALE | REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES - NET

Faderal government securities
kharket treasury bills
Fakistan investrnent bonds
GOP ijarah sukuk

Fully pald-up ordinary shares
Listed companies

Term finance certificates, sukuk
certificates and bonds

Mutual funds

2014

11,157,916
204,330

11,362,246

17,741,880
2,470,273

20,212.162

283,937
414,560

32,272,905

16,638,637
1,334,443
2977392

135,073

21,085,545

96,839
4484634
4017

50,249

129,369

1,146,713

1,875,821

2013

Fupees in 000 ——

18,817 (85
8577

10,855,662

11,612,868
1,2384678
12,8357 4%

353,333
523,585

24628380

11,662,212
1,163,232
2592238

158,997

15,576,670

196,186
134662

20%5701

45075

574,193
1335091
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27. OTHER INCOME Note 2014 2013
Aupees in 000 ——
Eent on oroperties 34,4 YR
et gain an sale of fived assets 17447 Sh593
Recovery af charges from custamers &1 196,715 151,205
Incidental and service charges 72,397 £3.212
Gain g sale of jarah assets 1,090 1273
Gain on sale of other assets 830 -
Bad debis recovered previousty written off 18,200 -
seall notice period and ather recoveries 1,143 1,692
342,293 305,226

271 Includes courier, tolephane and swift charges etc. recavered from custamers.

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Mote 2014 2013
Rupees in 000} ——

Salaries, allawanges et 3489337 3186558
Charge for defined berefit p'an 345 132,810 91,344
Contribution 1o defined contribution plan 124,833 113960

Man-ceecutive directors' fees, allewances and
other cxpenses 9,000 8110
Brakerage and cornmmission 102,530 Bl.oay
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 1.093,289 029322
Legal and prafessional charges 118,118 111,060
Comrunication 231,481 227,354
Repairs and maintenance 247,198 202,340
Rentals of operating leases 20,587 12219
Stationery and printing 136821 6,507
Mianagernen: fee 206,297 168,687
Advertisernent and publicity 815946 75,202
Dionations 282 44 BOQ 35462
Auditors rermunetaticn B3 8746 4021
Deareciation 13.2 525659 47,116
Security charges 265,673 214820
Travelling and conveyance 135,214 136,580
Cornputer software maintenane 49,735 45620
Subscriptions 103,594 127,689
Others 225,250 158,704
73528 6479462

28.1 The administrative expenses inclugdes Rs. 7,454 thousand incurred for providing office premises and support staff to
the Chairman for cazrying out his duties as chairran of the Board.
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28.2  Donations paid in excess of Rs, 100,00¢ to 2 single party during the year are as follows:

DONEE 2014 2073

Rupees in D00 ——
The Cltizens Foundation 10625 0,900
Habiby University Foundation 6,000 6,000
Mermean Health and Education Foundation 5000 SO0
Sindh Institute af Uralogy and Transplantation 2500 2,000
Moharmedlali Habib Welfara Trust 2,000 -
Abbas-e-Alamdar Hostel 1,020 00
Fatimiyah Education Metwork 1,000 1,000
Habib Charitable Trust 1,000 _
Habib Medical Trust 960 950
Habib Poor Fund 960 950
Al-Sayveda Benevolent Trust S60 S50
FahmatBai Habib Food & Clothing Trust S60 Q50
RahmatBai Habib Widows & Orphan Trust 960 9a0
The Saciety for the Rehabilitation of Special Children 800 -
Institute of Business Administration 750 _
Hakib Education Trust 700 _
Pakistan Memon Educational & Welfare Society 600 600
Dharaji Youth Services Foundation 00 _
Bait-ul-5ukoon 500 500
Abduyl Savtar Edhi Foundaticn 500 500
Memon Educational Board 500 500
Fakistan Mernon Women Educational Society 500 500
Child Aid Association 500 _
Patients' Aid Foundation 300 700
Chaoraji Association 300 00
Rotary Club of Karadhi Continental 300 _
Ahrmed EH. Jaffer Foundation 300 -
G #6 Children Critical Cane Foundatian 290 -
Al-Umeed Fehabilitation Association 250 350
Anjurnan Behbood-a-5amart-e-Atfal 250 250
Bantva Memon Jarmat 250 250
Bantva Memon Rahat Committee 250 250
Dar-ul-Sukun 250 250
The Indus Hospital 250 250
Marie Adelaide Leprosy Centre 250 100
Publicar Alurnni Trust 250 _
Al-Mustafa Welfare Society Trust 250 -
Zehra Homes 210 750
Ahmed Abduliah Foundation {MA Ayesha Memorial Centre) 200 200
Kashmir Education Foundation 200 200
Bantva Anjuman Himayat-e-|slam 150 150
Acaderny of Guaranic Studies 120 120
Caravan of Life [Pak} Trust - 500
The Kighey Centra - 500
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DONEE

Afzzal termorial Thalassernia Foundation

Aziz Tabba Foundation {Tabba Heart Instituta)

Developments in Litetacy

Pak Medical and Wekare Trust
Shaukat Khnanum Mermoral Trust
Saylani Welfare International Trust
The Arman Fourdation

1044, Rieu Poor Welfare Association
sanjan Nagar Public Education Trust
Milastone Charitable Trust

2014

2013
Rupees in ‘000 ——

500
500
250
250
250
250
250
200
200
142

Hone of the directors, executives and their spouses had interest in the denations dishursed d uring the years 2014 and 2013,

except for donations paid to -
Name of Dones
Habib Charitable Trast

Habib Education Trust

Habib tedical Trust
Habib Foor Fund

Habily University Foundation

toharmedali Habil Welfare Trust
RihrnatBai Habib Food & Clothing Trust
RahimatBai Habib Widows & Orphan Trust
Shaukat Khanum Merngrial Trust

28.3 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fae
Review of half-yearly financial staterments

Directors

tr. Al 5. Hakib

Mr. Ali 5 Habib

Mr Moharnedali B, Habat
kir. Muhammad H. Habib
Mr. poharmedali R Habib
tdr, Mohamedali B, Hakib
Mr, Ali 5. Habib

#r. Maohamedali R, Habib
fdr, Mokomed Bashin

Mr. Mubarnrnad H, Habib
tr. Ali 5. Hakity

Wi, tiharmedsli B, Habib
Mr. Muhammad H, Habib

Mr. &li 5. Habil

Centifications and agreed upon procedures engagements

Out-of-packet expenses

Interest in Donee as

Membser of the Board of Trustees

terriber of the Board of Trustees
Mernber of the Board of Trustees
Member of the Board of Trustees

tember of the Board of Trustess:

Member of the Board of Trustess

dernber af the Board of Cirectors
Member of the Board of Directaors
Member of the Baard of Directors
Mernber of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Trustees

Mermber of the Boand of Trustees

Member of the Board of Trustees

tdember of the Board of Governors

2074

1,850

600
5,045
1,251

8,746

2013

Rupees in ‘00 ——

1.750
572
875
iM

4021
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29. OTHER CHARGES Note 2014 203

Rupees in 00 ——
Penalties imposed by the SEP £14,734) 17.254
Workers' welfare fund 29 170,000 128,243
155,260 145497

29.1Under the Wokers' Welfare Fund Ordinance {WWF) 1571, the Bank is liable to pay workers welfare fund @ 2% of accounling
profit before tax or tavable income, whichever is hig ha.

30, TAXATION
For the year
L urfent 2,756,587 1,575,046
Deferred (370,827 {466,639
2,385,760 1,508,407
For priar years
Current I5 74607
Defered 651,930
- TR23T
0z 2.385 750 1,555,644

58

0.4 incorne tax assessments of the Bank have been finalised up to the tax year 214 (comresponding to the agcounting year
ended 11 Tecermnber 2013), Certain appeals are pending with the Lommissicner of Inland Revenue (ppeal) and Appehate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATR). However, adequate provisions are being held by the Bank,

30.2 Relatlonship between tax expense and accounting profit

2014 2013

Rupeas in "0 ——
Piaifit before tax 7312320 ERRRE-1
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 35% (2003 35%) 2,554,312 1,789,126
Tax effect of income Laxed at reduced rates (180.617) (225 206
PTiCr years Tanation - 77237
Cithers 7065 150,923)
Tax charge for the year 2,285,760 1585644

30.3 Trrough Finance Act, 2010 Ceriain amendrnents have been inteduced in Seventh Schedule to the Ingeme Tax Crdinance,
2001, The provisian for advances & off balance sheet items are allowed at 5% of total gross advances for cansurmer and
ShAFs (as defined in SBP pradential Regulation). The provision for advances and off balance sheet iterrs ather than those
fafling in definition of consumer & SMES are aloweed up to 1% of such total gross advances.
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Furthed, Rule B(A) of Seventh Schedule allows for armounts provided for in tax year 2008 and prior to said tax year for

deubtful debs, which were neither dairmed nor allowed as tax deductible in any year shall be allowed as deduction in
tax wear in which such doubtful debts are written off

With reference to allowability of provision, the ma nagement has carried aut an exercise at period erd and concluded that

full deduction ef provision in succeeding years would be allowed ang accordingly recognized deferred tax asset on siuch
provision amounting to Rs. 3408571 thousand (2013 s, 3,131,045 thausa ned).

Note 2014 2013
Rupees in 000 ———

31. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Frofit aftar taxation 4 926,580 3526172

— [Nurmberin 000) ——
Weighted average number of ardinary shares

1047 831 1,047 231
(Rupees)
Banic and diluted samings per share 470 337
32, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rupees in "000 ——
Cash and balances with treasury banks a 18,640,853 21,208 774
Balances with other banks 9 1,869,735 3,552 565
Overdrawn Rostro acoounts 172 (726,855 (394525
Creardrawn local bank accounts 172 {148.656) (119473
19,635.073 24243041
33. STAFF STRENGTH
(Murmber)
Perrmanernt 2,936 2650
Temparary / on contractual basis 303 3G
Banks cwn staff strength at end of the vear 3.289 2566
Dursayrged 625 593
Total staff stiength 3,914 ‘3550

34, DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

34.1 Ganeral description

The benefits under the funded gratuity scherne are payable on retirement at the age of &0 or earlier cessation of service.
The Benefit is equat to one month's fast basic safary drawin for each year of eligible service subject to a maximurm of 24
vears [ast drgwn basic salany, The mirimum qualifing periad for eligibility under the plan is five years of continuous service,
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14,2 Principal actuarial assumptions

The latast actuarial valuation was carried out on 31 December 2014 using "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method”.
The main assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were as follows:

2014 213
Discount rate - percent {per annurmn) 1150 1300
Expected rate of rerum on plan assets - percent {per annurm} 1150 1306
Long termn rate of salary increase - percent {per annLimy 10.50 12
Note 2014 2013
Rupees in ) ———
34.3 Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan
Fair value of plan assets 348 762504 518304
Present vaiue of defined benefir obligations 347 [961,616) #1608
Amourit payable (o the plan {deficit) {198,712) {297 524)

The above balance includes actuarial gain of R, 7,568 thousand (207 3: acturial loss of Rs. 104,448 thousand).

14.4 Mevement in payable to defined bensfit plan

Opening balance {acutarial losses) 297,624 101,832
Deefined benefit charge to profit and loss 345 132810 9,344
Definzd benefit charged 10 other comprehensive

income - actuarial (galn) / koss for the year 8 (7,568 104,448
Conitribution 1o the fund 346 {224,154 -
Chosing balance 198,712 YR

34.5 Charge for defined benefit plan

Current service cost 347 100,056 79634
Met interest 37 103,419 69,056
Expected retum on plan assets ME { 70,665 {57346}
Tatal charge recognised in the profit and loss account 132,810 91344

24.6 Movemant In fair value of plan assets

Gpening balonce 518,394 512,140
Expected retum on plan assets 345 70,665 £7346
Actuarial loss recogrised in 'Cther Comprehensive Income’ 348 {9,327) (24,126
Berefits paid W7 (40,982) {26,966)
Contribution to the fund 34 224,154 -

Closing balance T 762504 5183M
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34.7 Movement in present valug of defined benefit
obligation

Opening balance

Curent service cost

[nierest cost

Actuanial fgain) / loss recognised in ‘Other
Cornprehensive Income!

Benefit paid

Closing balance

34.8 Annual actuarial loss recognised in
‘Other Comprehensive Income’

Experience (gain) / loss on obligation
Experience loss on plan assets

Total {gain) / loss recognised during the year

34.9 Actual return on plan assets

34.10 Plan assets comprise the following:

Bank depasits
Federal government securities
{Pakistan Imvestrnent Bongs)

34101 The amount represents balance which is deposited with the branches of the Rank,

34.11 Re-measuremants recognised in ‘Other
Comprehensive income’ durlng the year

Actuarial gain / lss on obligation

= Demegraphic assurmnption

- Financial assurnptions

- Experience adjustment

Return on plan assets aver interast incame
Adjjustrent for mark-up

Total se-measurements recognised in Other
Camprehensive ncome

Mote

345
35

343
3445

47
346

344

34000

.8

2n3

2014
flupees in 000 ——
816,018 613,572
100,056 749,634
103419 a8 056
{15,895) 80,323
{40,552] {26,968}
961,615 BleMa
{16,305} B0332
9327 126
(7,568) T 104448
61,338 33220
2014 2013
{Rupeesin o {Rupeasin %
L] LLLl)!
450 404 5% 20923 48%
312,500 41% MFATT 52%
FE2504  100% 0&304 0%
24 203
Rupees in {00 ——
- 3313
[2613) 91931
{7.282} 181,566
{61,338 £33.220)
FOa65 57346

(7,568

104,448

&1



34.12 Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying ane assumption keeping all other assurnptions constant and
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit
schemes. The increase / {decrease] in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each
assurnption is summarized below:

2014
Rupseses in 000
Incredse in Discount Rate by 1% {88,992}
Decrease in Discount Rate by 1 % 104,737
Increase in expectad future increment in salary by 1% 107,009
Decreass in expected future increment in salary by 1% (52,333}
Incraase in expected withdrawal rate by 10% 973
Decrease in expected withdrawal rate by 10% {1,002}
Increase in expected maortality rate by 1% 342
Decrease in expected mortality rate by 1% [343)

Although the analysis does not take actount of the fult distribution of expected cash flows, it does previde an
appraximation of the sansitivity of the assumptions shown.

34,13 Historical Information

2n4a 2013 202 201 210
Rupees in ‘000
Present value of defined Denefit abligation 951,616 26018 613972 S0E,B45 420,087
Fair value of plan assets (762,004}  (518394)  (51204D)  {436,189)  (337.029)
Dwficit 198,712 297624 101,832 L 83,062
Actuarial fgaint / loss on obligation (16895 80322 27416 A70) T 3%
Actuanial loss / (gain) on assets 0327 24126 7084 (4,071} (14,060

a5. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank operates a contributory provident fund scheme for permanent employees. The employer and employee aach
contributes 10% of the basic salary to the funded scheme every month,
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36, COMPENSATIOM OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

37

President &
Chief Executive Diractors Executives
4 2013 m4 2013 2014 203
Rupees in 000
Faes - - 3000 E110 - -
Managerial remiuneration 48,300 48,300 - - 1,989,340 1,597.323
Charge for defined
benefit plan 2718 1,884 - - 9138 57009
Contributian to defined
contributian plan 2760 2,760 - - 80,500 73138
Utilities - - 1,832 1,756 - -
Bonus G,900 - - - 228,553 198,370
{Cthers - - 6,675 LATS - -
60,678 52044 12,507 15641 2389754 1,025840
Number of persons 1 1 7 .7 1.060 521

36.1 The Chief Executive, Executive Director and certain executives are prcnided with free use of car in accordance with their
terms of emplayment The Chief Executive s also provided with leave fare assistance,

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the armount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liabifity settled, betwesn knowledgeable and willing
parties in an arm's length ransaction.

The fair value of traded investments is based on quoted market prices except for tradabie securities classified by the Bark, a5
"held to maturity”. These securities are being carried at amortized cost in order to com ply with the requirements
of BSD Circular No. 14 dated 24 September 2004, and have been disclosed in "Annesure I°

Fair values of unlisted equity investments is determined on the basis of breakup value of these investrments as par the |atest
available financial staternents,

Fair valie of fixed term loans, other assets, other fiabilities and fised term deposits canriot be calculated with sufficient reliabiliny
due 1o the absence of cument and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regard ing) market rates far similar
instrurnents, The provision for impairrnent of loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with the Bank's accouriting
policy as stated in note 5.4.

The maturity and repricing profile and effective rates are stated in notes 42.5 and 42.4 respectively,
In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities ave net significantly cifferent

from their carrying values since assets and fiabilities are either short-term in nature or in the case of customer loans and depasits
are frequently repriced.
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37.1 Off-batance shest financial instruments

Forward purchase of foreign exchange contracts

Forward sale of forsign exchange contracts

38 Trust activities

204 2013
Contracted Fair Cantracted Fair
Yalue Valug Value Yalue
Rupees in 000
100,046,711 97,978,022 S8.594. 354 57RVA134

102,265,035 100,337,219

50959245 60,198,778

The Bankis currently not engaged in any trust actiilies.

35, SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The segment aralysis with respect to business activities is as follows:

Total income *
Total expenses *

Hat income

Segrnant assets

Segrnent non perfarming loans
Sedment provision required
Segment liabilities

Segment return an et assets (%)
Seqrnent cost of funds %)

Tekal income *
Total expenses *

Met income

Segrnent a5sets

Segrment nan perfarming loans
Segment provision required
seqment liabilities

Segment eturn n net assets (%)
Seqraent cost of funds (%)

*Indudes Rs. 12,100,354 thousand (2013: Rs, 6,463,672 thousand) of inter-segment revenues and expenses.

2014
Trade & Retail Commercial Total
Sales banking banking
Rupees in ‘000
21,317,629 6,317,928 22457425 50,052,982
{17,126,562) {5,324 416) (20,329,684 (42,780,662
4.191,067 993,512 2127741 7312320
234,594 035 1,881,161 160,504 386 397,380,082
- 4385 19,320,749 19,325,134
- 4,106 15,657,740 15,661,846
5820201 95,126,419 261,582,760 362,620,350
9.08% 6.64% 8.58%
7.29% 5.60% 7.3T%
2013
Trade & Petail Commercial Taral
Sales barking branking
Rupes n 000
V422777 F728.160) 13530415 35,886,356
{11,2,951) (6,456,606) §13.314523) (30,774 540
122484 1.2714M f154%0 5,111,815
150,508,360 1,391 052 159554633 311454045
- 4106 16,569,430 16,473,536
- 410G 12,451,755 13455861
2444427 121,372 0 155,652,798 283 469855
245% £,37% A8.73%
711% 532% 8345
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40. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Bank has related party relationships with its holding company, subsidiary, companies with cammon directorship, key
management parsonnel, directors and employees' retirement benefit plans,

Comtributions in respect of employess' retirerment benefits are made in accordance with actuarial valuation and terms of
centribution plan, Salaries & allowances of the key management persennel are in accordance with the terms of their
empioyment. Cther ransactions are at agreed tenms,

31 Ctecermnber 2014

Halding Subsidiary  Associates key Directors  Retirement Total
COMmpany management benefit
personnel plans

Deposits Fupees in 1000
At beginning of the vear 179325 136,023 5,220,156 49,351 106,774 1977055 6,968,685
Received during the year 22,256,037 63314318 1,045,264,405 401,4%0 1,368,482 3990002 1,137.594,734
Repaid during the year  (22,140,393)  [163.363,736) (1,031,308,025) (401,661 (.290007F (3868637 {1,122.577 45%
At end of the year 294 B59 81,805 19,676,536 45,180 385250 1088520 21,585,960
Acvancas
At beginning of the year - - 2,020,013 108,388 - - 2128401
Diskursed curing the year - - 38,405,253 64,877 - - 38,470,130
Recovered during the year - - {38,584,881) {3954} - - (38,554,865)
Atend of the year - - 1,840,385 163,281 - - 2003666
Bank bialances held by the

Bank 33 - 337148 - - - 67430
Cwer drawn bank batances

hetd by the Bank 34,661 - - - - - 34561
Mark-up,/ return Sinterest

receivable - - 8617 - - - 8617
Mark-up / retum / interest

payable - 463 295.0m 1,309 3136 158.0%4 452,013
Management fee payable

fortechmical and

eonsultancy senvices ™ 213,255 - - - - - 213,258
Prepayments f agvance

deposits - - 4797 - - - 4,797
[nsurance premium and

other pavable 30,200 - 47 - - - 30,670
Transaction-relater

contingent liakilities - - 2479183 - - - 2478183
Tracle-related contingent

liabilities - - 563770 - - - 8,637,701

* Management fee is a3 per the agreement with the holding company.
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31 Decermber 2013

Holding Subsidiary  Asscciates Key Cirectors  Retirement Tokal
COrmpany rranagement benefit
personnel plans
Rupeses i T

Deposits
At beginning of the year 91,3490 126923 6010837 24338 151,459 1830080 8235077
Received during the vear 17,804,101 LU AL LT P AT 1) JR05S0 1056460 6,186,611 836,345,706
Repaid during the year (17.516,164) (58545857 (753,364,718} (364,577 (A1, 144) 5939638 (837812094
At end of the year 175325 136023 54K156 48351 306,775 1,077 055 BOERGRS
Advances
At beginning of the year - - 1602820 15668 - - 1628498
Dishursed during the year - - 37133684 196,179 - - 37238863
Recovered during the year - - {36,716,491) {12459 - - (36738850
At end of the year - - 20203 108388 - - 212840
Bank balances held by the

Bank 59480 - HES512 - - - 307,592
O dewn bank balanices

held by the Bank - - 72336 - - - 71336
Mark-up £ return / interest

receivable B - 13048 - - - 1304
Mark-up /Tetum finterest

payable - 6% 131565 3,098 2007 Be.065 PEEYPL]
Maragernent fee payable

for technical and

consuliancy services * 164,330 - - - - - 164350
Prepayrments / advarce

depasits - - 475 - - - 4ns
Insurarce prarmiurn and

ather payable 240 - 983 - - - 25,189
Transaction-related

contingent liabilities - - 2123083 - - - A
Tradesekated contingent

liakllities - - 5,196,352 - - - 51895352
Advance received against

prepaid card - - s - - - 132
* Managlementfee is a5 per the agreement with the holding company,
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Transactions durlng the year

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Holding subsidiary  Associates Key Directors  Retirement  Total
Company management benefit
personngl plans
Rupees inc 000

Mark-up / return / interest earned - - 126,371 10,685 - - 137,056
Mark-up / return £ interest

expensed - 6,319 L1816 2879 30,037 Tig182  1,269827
Carmmission # brokerage /

bank charges recavered 6,764 30 120,529 - - - 127,323
Commission / brokerage /

bank charges paid 419 502 1,240 - - - 2181
Rent income - 1,200 - - - - 1,200
Salaties and allgwances - - - 268,840 - - 268,840
Crirectors' fees - - - - 9,000 - 9,000
Contribution to defined

benefit plan - - - - - 132810 132810
Contribution to defined

contribution plan - - - - - 124833 124,833
Rent expenses = = 16,613 - - - 16,613
INSUrahce premium expenses &,000 - 6,470 - - - 12470
Maintenance, electricity,

stationery & entertainment

ExXpanses - - 47 B87 - - - 47 887
Management fea expense

for technical and

consuliancy senices* 206,297 - - - - - 206,297
Denation praid - - 13,540 - - - 13,540
Profegsional / other charges paid - - 1,981 - - - 1,881
* Managerment fee is as per the agreerment with the holding company,
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Transactions during the year

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Helding Subsidiary  Associates Key Uirectors  Retrement  Total
O Py management Denefit
personnel plans
Rupees In O}

Mark-up £ return / interest eamed & 133 128,747 0429 - - 135,315
ark-up / return £ interast

expensed - 6914 5737RE 1,074 15,738 123236 7813
Cornmigsicn £ brokerage /

bank charges recovered 5,183 169 355,653 - - - 407,005
Commissian / brokerage /

barik charges paid R T 29163 - - - 30,798
Rent income - 1200 445 - - - 1655
Dividend income - 5,000 - - - - 5,000
(ain on sake £ redemption of

securities - - 11,366 - - - 11,366
Salaries arvd allowances - - - 229068 - - 229068
Chrectors' fees - - - - 3114 _ AR
Contribution to defined

benefit plar - - - - - 91,344 91,344
Contribution 1o defined

conmibution plan - - - - - 113,960 113540
Rent £xpenses - - 18,4593 - - - 18493
INSUrancE premium expenses 24,200 - 17,785 - - - 41985
Maintenance, electricity,

stationeny & entertainmnent

ENpenses - - 43535 - - - 43,535
Maragement fee axpense

fer technical and

consulangy services® 169,687 - - - - - 165,687
Cionation paid - - 170 - - - B0
Piofessional / other charges paid - - 34 - - - isH

" Management fee is 3 per the ageeement with the holding compary.




HABIBMETRO

41. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY
411 Scops of Applications

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD Circular No 6 dated August 15, 2013 has issued Basel if Capital
instructians for Banks / DFIs. The revision (o the previously applicable Capital Adequacy requlations pertain to
canponents of eligible capltal and related deguctions. The amendments have been introduced with an aim to further
strengthen the existing capital related rules. Basel Ill instructions have become effective frorn Decernber 31 23
hawever, there is a transitional phase during which the complete requirernents would become applicable with full
implementation by December 31, 2019, This Capital Adeq uacy Famewnork is applicable to the Bank,

The Bank’s capital adequacy is reparted using the rules and ratios provided by the State Bark of Pakistan. The capital
adlequacy Tatic is a measure of the amount of a Bank's capital expressed as a perentage of its risk weighted assets
(R¥As). Banking operations are categorized as either Trading Book or Banking Book and RWAs are determined
according to specific treatrents as per the requirerment of SEP that measure the varying levels of risk attached to
on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. Under the current capital adequacy requlations, credit risk and
market risk exposures are measured using the Standardized Approach and operational risk is measured using the
Bask: Indicator Approach. Credlit risk mitigants are aiso applied against the Bank's exposures based on eligitle collateral

41.1.1Capital management

The objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going congern, [k is the policy
of the Bank to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, depasitor and market confidence and to
sustaln future development of the business, The Bank aims to maintain an optimum level of capital along with
maxlmizing shareholders' return.

Statutory minimum capital requirement and capital adequacy ratio

The SBP through its BSD Circular Mo, 07 dated April 15, 2009 has prescritied the minimum paid-up capital {net of
accurnulated losses) for Banks to be raised to Rs 10 billlon by the year ended Decernber 27, 2013, The paid-un capital
of the Bank for the year ended Decernber 31, 2014 stood at Rs. 10,478 million £2013: s, 10478 millicny and is in
campliance with SBF raquirernents.

Banks are also requined to maintzin 3 rminimum Capital Adeguacy Ratio (CAR) of 10% of the risk weighted exposures
of the Bank. Further, under Basel Il instructions, Banks are also required to maintain 3 Commen Equity Tier 1 {CET 1}
ratic and Tier 1 ratio of 5.509% and 7.00% respectively. &s at 31 December 2014 the Bank was fully compliant with
prescribed ratios as the Banks's CAR was 17.29% whereas CET 1 and Tier 1 ratios bath stoad at 1 583%. The Bank and
its individually regulated cperations have complied with all capital requirements threwghaut the year.

Tier 1 capital cornprises of Comnman Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) and Additiona! Tier 1 (AT 1) capital,

CET 1 capital includes fully paid-up capital, balance in share premium acogunt, general reserses as per the financial
statements, net un-appropriated profits meeting the eliglbility criteria.

AT 1 capital indudes instruments meeting the prescribed SBF criteria £.4. perpetual non-cumulative preference shares.
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The reduction from Tier 1 capital include mainly;

il Book value of goodhwill £ intangibles,

il Deficit an revaluation of available for sale investments;

il Reciprocal crass haldings in equity canital instruments of other banks, financial institutions and insurance
Companies;

i) Investment in mutual funds above a prescribed ceiling:

v} Threshold deductions applicable from 2014 an defemed tax assets and certain Investments;

wil 0% of investments in majority owned securities or other financial subsidiaries naot consolidated in the statemeng
of fimaneial position, during transition phase,

Tier 2 capital includes general provisions for oan lasses, surplus an the revaluation of assets - et of tax, foreign
exchange translation reserves and subordinated debts (meeting the revised eligibility criteria). The deductions from
Tler 2 include mainly;

il Reciprocal ¢ross holdings in ather capital instrurnents of other banks, financial institution and insurance companies;

il 408 of investrents in majority cwned securities of other financial subsidiaries not eonsolidated in the staterment
of financial position, during ransition phase,




HABIBMETRO

412 Capital Structure Wote 31 Decernber 31 Decernber Source based

on refereroe
2014 2013 e forn

RUDE‘E’S in "|:K}:|— f‘wll:F[E"r'l_ﬂ

Commion Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves
Fully Paid-up Capital / Capital deposited with SBP 10478315 10478315 I5)
Balance in Share Premiurn Account 2,550,985 2550985
Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares - -

Discaunt o 1ssue of shares - -
General f Statutony Reserves B.627.838 7642526 ]
$5ain / (losses; on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge - -
Unappropriated / unremitted profits £ (lossesy B543,118 £,692 612 fin
Minerity Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued to third
party by consclidaeed bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in
(ZET1 capital of the consolidation group) - - (¥
CET ¥ before Requlatory Adjustments 30,200,254 27364438
Tetal requiatory adjustments applied to CETY 41.21 405,387 47414

Comman Equity Tier 1 29,794 887 2GETTOI4

Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capltal

Cualitying Addirional Teer-1 instruments plus ary related shase premiyem - -
of which; Classified as equity - - ftl
ef which: Classified a5 liabilities - - {re)

Additional Trer-1 capital instrurments issued ko third parties by
consalidated subsidiaries [amount allswed in group AT 1) - - v
of which: instrurment issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out - -

AT1 before regulatory adjustments - -

Tortal renulatory sojustment applied to AT1 capital 4122 - -
Acdditicnad Tier 1 capital after requlatory adjustmenits - -

Additioal Tier 1 capital recognized for capltal adequacy - -

Tler 1 Capital [CET1 + admissible AT1) (A) 20,794 R6F 26,877,024

/1
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Mate

Tiar 2 Capital

Cwalifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basell plag ary
ralated share premium
Tier 2 capital instewments subject to phase out arangement issued
under pre-Basel 1 Fules
Tier 2 capital imstrurments issbed to third party by consolidated
subsiclraries tarmount allpwed in group tier 24
of whichy, insteuments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
General Provistkons or general reserves for I0an losses-up to maskmum
of 1.25% of Credfit Risk Weighted Asgats
Revaluation Reserves fnet of taxes)
of which: Revaluation reserves on fised assets
af which: Unrealized Gains / Losses on AFS
Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves
[Indisclosed / Other Reserves (if any)

T2 before regulatory adjustments
Total regulatary adjustrment applied to T2 capital 4123
Tier 2 capital [T2) after requlatory adjustments

Tier 7 ¢apita] racognized for capital adequacy
Partion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital
Totak Tler 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy (B}

TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (A+B)
Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) 415

Capital Ratios and bulfers {in percentage of risk welghted assets)
CET1 ko total RWA
Tier-1 capital to toral RWA
Tertal capital to total RWA
Bank specilic buffer requirernent frmininmunn CETT requirsrnent plus
capital comservation bulfer phus any other buffer requirement)
of which; capital conservation byffer requirement
of which; counwercyclical buffer requirerrent
of which; [-5IB o G-5IB buffer requirernant
CET1 availabie to meet buffers (a5 a percentage of risk weighted assets)

" National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP

LET1 minimum ratio
Tier 1 tnindrim ratio
Total capital minimum ratio

31 December

31 December  Zource based

I b o
Rupees n ‘000 —— Hew#.32
- - (n
2
3265490 B4, 152 ]
- - portion of
2,548,251 278,882 (@l
- - v
2874547 1135034
120,000 153000
2,754,047 W30
2,754,947 683,034
2,754,947 G83.034
32549814 27860058
188,266,814 172,704,792
1583% 15.56%
15.83% 15.56%
172%% 16.13%
5.50% 5.00%
10.33% 1456%
5.50% & (0%
7000 50
10.00% 1000




HABIBMETRO

41.2.1 Common Equity Tier 1 capital; Regulatory adjustments

ool (net of related deferied tax liabilitg}

All other intangibles (ret of any associated defemed tax lizbifiry)

Shortfallin provisions against classified assets

Dederred tax assets that reby on future prfitability excluding those anising
fim temparary differences (nat of related tax liability)

Defined-benefit pension furd net assets

Reciprocal crass holdings in CETY capital instruments of Gan king, financial
and insiiance entities

Cash fiow hedge reserve

Investment in cwn shares # CETY instruments

becuritization gain on sale

Lapital shontfall of regulated subsidiaries

Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of fixed assets / AFS

Imvestrments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
eritities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the
bank does not ewn moare than 10% of the issueed share capital
farourt above 108 threshald)

Significant irestments in the capital instruments issued by banking,
financial and insurance enities that are ourside the scope of regulatory
cansofitiation [maunt above 10% threshold)

Dheferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 15%
threshold, niet of relaced tax liability)

Amount gxceeding 15% threshald
of which: significant investments in the comeman stacks of financial entities
of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

Maticnal specific requlatory adjustments applied to CEF1 capital

Irneestrment in TFCs of other banks excaeding the prescribed limi

Any gther deduction specified by 6P

Regulatary adjustment applied to CETY due e insufficient AT3 and Tier 2 to
Cower deductions

Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1

41.2.2 Additional Tler 1 Capital: regutatery adjustments

Inwstenent in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed fimit
(SEP specific adjustrnent)

Iregstiment in gwn AT capital instrumenits

Reciprocal ¢ross holdings in Additional Trer 1 capital instruments

Inestments in the capital instruments of Banking, financial and insurance
entities that are outside the scope of regulatony consolidation, where the
bank does not own more than T0% of the issued share capital lamount
abwve 108 thresheld)

Sigrificant irmvestments in the capital instrurments issued by banking, financial
and insurance entities that are dutside the scope of requistary consolidation

31 Decamber 31 December
M4 03
Rupees in '000 ~——
- _
285,387 337414
120,000 150,000
405,387 457414

Source bagad
ar referemnce
nuaiberfram
Mote 41,32

il - Il
- tp)
{f}

Hh)- e
M- i)k *

fl

Eld]

[F-(ac)-(ae)

{E-{ach-{af]
fil

(3t}
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Portion of deduction apgtied 50:50 to Teer 1 and Tier 2 capital | based on
pre-Basel 1l treatment which, during transitional peeiod, remain subject
o deduction fram additioral tier-1 capital

Adjustrsznts apphied to Additional Ter 1.due to insufficient Teer 2 to oover
deductions

Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital

41.2.3 Tler 2 Capital; regulatory adjustments

Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital based on
pra-Based |1l treatment which, during transitional period, rermain subect o
dedluction from tier-2 capital

Reciprogal cross holdings inTier Zinstrurnents of banking, financial and
irsurEnce entitias

Irvestrrent in own Tier 2 capital instrument

Ireshmants in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
eriities 1hat are outside the scope of requlatory consolidation, where the
Btk does not awn more than 108 of the issued shate capital ameunt
abave 10% thigshold)

Significart investments in the capital instrumeris issued by banking, finarcial
andd insurance entities that are cutside the scope of requlatoey consalidation

Amount of Regulatory Ad|ustment applied toT2 capital

41.2.4 Additional Informatlon

Risk weighted assets in respect of amaunts subject to Pre-Basel 1l Treatment

Risk weightad assets in respect of deduction items {which chiing the
vransitional period will be sk weighted subject to Pre-Basel ll Treatment]
of which: deferrad tax assets
ofwhich; defined-benefit pension fund net assets
of which: recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, finangial
and insurance enticies where holding is less tha 10% of the issued
comnman shiare capital of the entity
of which: recogrized portion of inwestment in capital of barking, financial
and insurance entitses where holding is mare than 10% of the issbed
comrnan share capital of the gotity
irmolnts below the thresholds for deduction thefare risk weightings
Mon-gignificant investments in the capital af gther fimancial antties
Significant investrents i the comenon stack of financial entities
Oeferrer] tax assets arising from temporary differences et of relted
ta liability)
Applicable caps on the Indusion of provisions in Tier 2
Pravisicns eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respact of exposures subject
to standardized approach (prior to application of cap)
Caportinclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardized approach
Pecwisions eligible for inclusicn in Tier 2 in respect of expasures subject to
inteenal satings-based approach [prion 1 application of capy)
Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 unde intemal ratings-based appraach
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31 Deceriber 11 Decernber

a4 a3
Rupees in G0 ——
120,00 150,00
120,000 150,00
1,775,729 47063
£0.000 -
1.268527 2047151
326,696 B54,152
1,869 436 177230

Searce hasad
o refierence
rrrier from
Note 41,32

{aed
{afy




HABIBMETRO

41.3 Capital Structure Reconciflation
4131 Stap 1

The accaunting consolidation s identical to the scope of requlatory consolidation,

41.2.2 Step 2
31 Decemnber 2014
Balance sheet Under
as in published requlatory
firancial scope of
statements consolidation Ref,
Rupees in 000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with teasury banks 18,644,853 18,640,853
atances with other banks 1,865,735 1,869,735
Lenchings to finandial institutions 3408770 IHBITE
[mvestments _ 211,761,162 ahea
of which: Nor-significant investrments in capical instrments of Banking, financial and - - 3
insLrance entities exceeding 109 thieshold
of which: significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
banking, financial and insurance entities exceading regulatory threshold - - b
of which: Mutual Funds excesding regulatory thresheld - - o
of which: reciprocal crassholding of capital instrument fseparate far CET1, ATT, T2) 285367 285387 d
of which: others - - g
Acdvances 134,175,636 134,175,636
shorfall in previsiens / excess of total €L amount over eligibie provisions Under [FB - - f
general provisions reflected inTier 2 capital 326,698 326,506 g
Fixed Assets 3,024,538 3024588
Creferved Tax Assets 1,268,527 1,268,527
of which: DTAs that rely on future profitabifity excluding these arising
frow terporary differences - - h
of which: [iAs aristng fram temperary differences exceeding regulatery thresheld 1,268,527 1268527 [
Other assets 13,220,805 13,230,805
of which: Geodwil - - j
of which: Inangibles - - k
of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets - - I

Total assats

397,380,082 347380083

/o



31 December 2014

Balance sheet Under
as in published requiatory
financial seope of
stalements eonsolidation Ref.
Fupees in D00
LIABILITIES & EQUITY —
Bills payable 5201 482 5,200 452
Barrcawings 24283082 24 535582
Deposits and sther aCounts 320,023 460 IAERIAG0
Sub-ordinated loans - - m
of which: eligible for inclusion in AT1 - - n
of which: eligible for incusion in Tier 2 - -
Liabilicies against assets subject to finane keass - -
Deferred tax liabilities - - i
of whidh: DTLs related to goodwil - - P
of which: DTLs related to intangible assets - - q
afwhich: DML related to defined pension furid net assets - - r
aF which; other deferred tau [abilies - -
Cither liabilites i 12 520,456 1250456
Total liabilities 362,629,380 3624625330
Share capital oz | [ woman | s
of which: amount eligible for CETI 13,029,300 135249,300 [
of wihvich; amewni eligible for AT - -
Reserves 8627438 8,527 838 U
of which; partion eligible for inclysion in CET1 statutory reserve, spacial reserve
& revenue resene) 8,627 838 BA27A38 v
of which: portion eligible for indusion in Tier 2 - -
Unappropriated prafit £ {losses) 8,543,118 8543116 w
Mirority Interest - - A
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET - - ¥
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in A1 - - z
of whiche portion eligible for inclusion inTier 2 - -
Surplus on realuation of assets 4,550,448 4550448 aa
of which: levalusation reserves on Fieed Assets
of which: Unmalized Gaing £ Losses on AFS-Recogrised 254829 248251 33
of which: Unrealized Gains / Losses on AFS-Unrecagrised 2002197 2002197
in case of Ceficit on revaluation (deduction from CET) - -
Tatal Equity 34,750,702 34 750,702
Total liabdlities and Equity 397,380,082 397380082
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HABIBMETRO

41.4  Main features template of requlatory capital Instruments

[N N |

2 o] Onon b

17
18
19

2
i
3
¥
5
b
7
4
2
30
3
32
33
H
35

£l
k)

Issuer
Unique idenrifier (&g K5E Symbal or Bloomberg identifier atc)
Cséverning lawis) of the instrument
Reguratony treatrment
Transiticnal Basel I rules
Post-transitional Basel Nl rufes
Eligible at salo/ groups graup & solo
Instrument type
Arnaunt recognized in regulatary capital {Currency in PR
thousand, 2s of reporting date)
Par value of instrument
Accounting classification
Original date of ssuance
Ferpetual or dated
Origiral maturity date
Issuer call subject ta prior supendsary appraval
Optianal call date, contingent call dates and redemption anmwnt
Subsequent call dates, if applicatile
Coupons £ dividends
Fixed ar floating dividend/ coupon
coupcn rate and any refated indexy’ henchmark
Existence of & dividerwd stopper
Fully discreticnary, partially discretionary or mandatory
Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem
Moncurmulative or curmulative
Carvertible or non-convertible
If convertible, corwersion trigger [5)
IF conwertithe, fully or gartially
If canvertible, conversion rate
If convertible, mandatory or opticnal conversion
If convertible, specify instrument ype convertible inta
If coynvertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts inta
Write-clown faature
If write-down, waite-down triggen(s}
If write-down, full or partial
If write-down, permanent of tem parary
If termporary wiite-down, description of write-Up mechanism
Fasition in subordinatian hierarchy in liquidation (specify instrument
type immediately senior o instrurment]
Mon-compliant ransitioned faatures
I yes, specify non-compliant features

HIB

Capital Market Law

Cemimon Equity Tier 1
Camren Equity Tier 1
Graup & standalone

Cormrman Sharas
32549814
FER 1D

Shareholder equity

1902
Perpetual
Mo raturity
Mat Applicable
Mot Applicable
Not Appiicable
Mot Applicable
Mat Applicable
Mot Applicable
Mz

Fully discretionarny

Mo
Mot Applicable
Non-converible
Mot Applicabls
Mot Applicakle
Mot Applicable
Mot Applicable
Mot applicable
Mot Applicatle
ot Applicable
Mot Applicable
Mot Applicable
Mat Applicable
Mot Applicable
Mot Applicable
Mot Applicable
Mot Applicable

Habib #etrapalitan Bank Lid,
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41.5 Risk Weighted Assets

The risk weighted assets to capital ratio, calculated in accordance with the SBPs guidelines on capital adequacy is a5

follones:
Cradit risk Capital Requirements Risk Weighted Assets
Partfolics subject to standardised 2014 053 2014 23
approach [Simple} Rupees in 000
On-balance sheet
Cash and cash equlvalents [ - ] - - -
Governrment of Pakistan and 56P - - - -
Public sector entities 123,341 o2 867 1.233414 028674
Banks 67 426 430516 a,674,260 4,805,141
Corporate 0025234 9384717 90,252,343 Q38471604
Retail 315,192 24343 3151,916 243426
fiesidential mortgage finance 49,234 32662 492,344 326,524
Past due [ans 347,433 284,733 3474325 2047 334
Operating Fixed Assets 32459 3456 3,024,580 1,034,564
Cithers asseats 572312 483893 5723121 4 836,933
11,402,631 11066987 114,026,313 110,569,385
Off-balance shest
Man rarket related 3,124,160 2926030 31,241,595 29,260,383
parket related 174,474 G754z 1,744,740 QM0416
3,298,534 302398 32,086,335 30,230 804
Equlty Exposure Risk 254,702 87,199 2,547,024 371,950
Undler simpie risk weight method -
Total Credit Risk 14,955,907 14,178,167 1455509671 141,781 679
Markeat risk
Capital requirernent for portfolios
subject to Standardized Approach
Interest rate risk 371,785 522026 |[ 4647313 £,5256
Equity position risk 552,256 43995 6,903,325 40088
Fareign excharge risk 161,439 21,048 207,588 263117
Total Market risk 1,085,490 557084 13,568,626 7338551
Oparational risk
Capital requirement for operational
tisks subject to Basic Indicator Approach 2,011,081 1,886,762 25,138,516 23,584 563
Tetal Risk Weighted Assets 18,052,533 16052015 183,266,814 172,704 792

Capital adeguacy ratio

31 Decernber 2014 31 December 2013

Required Actual Required Actual
CET1 1o tetal RiyvA 55065 15.63% 500% 15.56%
Tiei-1 capital wr total RWA F.00r% 15.83% £.508% 15.56%
Total capital to total R, 10.00% 172%% 10.00% 16.13%

78




HABIBMETRO

41.6

4.7

Credit risk: Genaral disclosures

The Bank uses the ‘Standardised Approach’ in calculation of credit risk and capital reguirements,

The Bank uses reputable and SBF approved rating agencies for deriving risk weight to specific credit exposures, Thase
ate applied consistently across the Bank credit portfolio for both on - balance sheet and off - balance sheet expasures,
The methodology applied for using External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAI'S) Inclusive of the alignment of alpha
numerical scale of each agency used with risk bucket is a5 per SBP guidelines as is given befow:

Types of exposurss and ECAl's used M4

Exposures JCRVIS FACRA S&Pp Fltch Moody's
Corporate v v - - -
Banks v v ¥ v -
Sovereigns - - - - -
SME's ¥ v - - -
Securitisation - - - - -
Cthers - - - - -

Cradit Exposures subjact to Standardised Approach

1014 2013
Aating Amount  Dedudtion Met Amount  Deguction Met
Expostires category  outstanding CRM amount outstanding FM amaunt
Rupess in 1000 -
Lorporate 1 4981054 747,020 4233974 1365453 11,404 1,354,080
2 4532043 47104 4,484,039 6,465 A6+ 2412 6453452
34 0G8 327 - 968327 - - -
a6 - - - a0 - g
Claims on banks with
ariginal maturity of 3
monkhs of less 9287755 7BAAN 8,500,544 4454 666 - 4454 606
Retail BOPROIE 1855982 6,243,957 2193334 1449557 7E0,283
Public sector entiries 1 14567858 5,744,866 8522952 14162359 6337372 FR25087
23 - - - 2273 - 7373
Cthers 256,472 644 - 256,472 644 178276327 - 178276327
Unrated 125491,115 9828568 115,662,148 130088727 F792235 122375447

The forms of collateral that are deermed eligible under the ‘Simple Approach’ ta credit risk mitigation as per S8R
guidelines are used by the Bank and primarily includes cash, govemment and rated debt securities,

The Bank applies 5BP specified haircut to collateral for credit risk mitigation, Collateral management is embedded
in the Bank's risk taking and risk management policy and procedures. A standard credit granting procedure exists
which has been well-disseminated down the ling, ensuring proper pre-sanction evaluation, adequacy of security,
pre-axamnination of charge / contral documents and monitaring of each exposure on an angoing basis.

Collateral information is recardad diligently in the Bank’s main processing systams by type of collateral, amount of
collateral agalnst relevant credit expasures. A cohesive accounting / risk management systerm facilitates effective
cullateral management for Basel reporting,
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42. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk manigernent aspects are embedded in the Bank's strategy, organization Structure and pracesses. The Bark has adopred a
cohesive risk rmanagement structure for credlit, operations, liquidity and market risk o strengthen the process ard system frorm
the foundatian a5 controls are mare effective and valuable when built into the process. Effective risk managernent is consicdered
essential in the preservation of the assets and long-term profitability of the Bank. Clear guidelines and limits, which are under
reqular review, are backed by a system of intemal controls and independlent audit inspextions. Internal reparting / hAIS are additional
toals for measuring and contoling risks, Separation of duties is also embedded in the Bank's system and ormanization.

42.1 Credit risk

Credlit visk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a transaction may default, It arlses principally in relation
to the lending and trade finance business carried out by the Bank.

As per Basel Hl methodology the gross credit risk weighted exposure incorporating relevant credit conversion factor is
Rs. 149559672 thousand (2013: Rs. 141,781,679 thousand) as depicted in note 41.5.

The Bank's strateqy is to minimize credit risk through a strong pre-disbursement credit analysis, approval and risk
rneasurement process added with praduct, geography and customer diversification, The Bank, as its strategic prefErence,
axtends trade and werking capital financing, s0 as to keep the majar portion of exposure (funded and non-funded)
on a short-term, self-liquidating basis. Major portion of the Bank's credit partfolie is priced on flexible basis with pricing
reviewed on periodic basis.

The Bank’s cradit policy / instructians defines the credit extension criteria, the credit appraval and rmonitoning precess,
the loan classification system and provisioning policy.

The Bank continually assesses and monitors credit exposures. The Bank follows both objetive and subjective critena
f 58P regarding toans classification. The subjective assessment process Is based on management's judgement with
respect to the bormower's character, actlvity, cash flow, cagital structure, security, quality of managerment and delinquency.

42.4.1 Segmental Information

2014
Lagmant by class of business Advances {Gross} Depasits C"mﬁ":;;ﬁ
{Rs. In 00 % Pis. in DO % [Rs, Ir 00T} e

Agriculiure, farestry, huriing and fishing 449,376 0.30 9147 361 284 140.67% 0.05

Ltcmabile and iansportation equiprent 1,937,026 1.8 Q422,745 294 12783201 432
fement 1220738 N8 001,076 253 4051494 137
Chemicaks and pharmaceuticals 5375977 358 12813888 40 6,496,734 219
Construction 1673707 1.1 12,779,307 ERe 1,2B4972 043
Electronic and electrical appllances 3,758,028 280 11,1443 348 33214 115
Exports £ imparts 5,041 837 442 8451378 E 16524425 Ly |
Finandial £133158 142 6,460,041 202 144,617,355 4881
Foobwear and leather garments 7B2,412 052 6,555,651 205 417,983 014
Indrddusals 1,384 604 1.26 21,781 11 2555 172,000 0048
Insurance - - 756,762 024 - -
Miring and quamying 473,605 032 21,736,268 6,79 156,890 QA5
Py (alectricing, gas, warer, sanitany 12491,720 £32 11,847,180 170 13,020,748 435
Services 2,338,740 156 15143560 473 2765821 053
Sugar 1,994,133 133 1,355,855 D42 373,033 013
Textile 71,025,664 4790 20691034 647 65033788 2195
Transport, storage and communication 5,144,968 343 10,5292 3.9 849664 029
Whelesale and retail trade 3792105 253 6,187,098 193 335924 114
Ohers 26,137,281 17.39 £5,110486 2036 20,394,966 39

150164078 10000 320023460 10000 296374452 104.00




HABIBMETRO

2004
. Contingendes and
Advances (Grossh Deposits Commitments
Segment by sector [Ris. in 10201 . As. In 0] % {5, i D) *
Pubdic / Gowernment 20238825 1348 36,593 459 11.56 14058016 474
Frivate 129,925,353 8652 283,030,0M BE4d  JALZ16476 0525
130064178 10000 320023460 100,00 296, 274492 100,00

Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment

2014 N3
Specift Speci
Classifted prﬁ;sirr:cn Classlfied mﬁsﬁi‘u
advances hald advances held
Rupees in {00
Autormobile an transportation equipment 1,436,203 1,135,178 85,688 69,222
Cament - - 25000 22312
Chemical and pharmaceuticals 238577 147,854 33789 3204
Construction 219,894 13,851 24006 12944
Electronics and electrical applianices 859,530 655,150 B37AN T84
Exports / imparts 1,185,080 102421 1120006 907,354
Footwear and leather garments 11,907 1,907 17,365 17,355
Individuis 4773 4779 22,443 4,942
Power {electricity). gas, water, sanitary 245 504 41,136 7200 73N
Services 139,254 73,360 240,250 136116
Textile 12,671,373 M112,778 12,756,622 12,300,430
Transpart, sterage and oom munication 4782 1,583 12335 5794
Wholesale and retail trade 897,911 492034 455954 347322
Cthers 1610344 WM3.715 1225334 F¥38%
19,325,134 13,661,846 16,973,536 13,455,861
Details of non-performing advances and specific provislons by sactor
2014 2013
. Specific . Speific
Classified provision Classifiedt PrCHiSion
advanges hetd acvances tild
Rupees in D00
Private 15,325,134 15,661,846 16573536 13455861
Geographical segment anlaysis 2014
m aTs{:?rL Net ar ssels Ennti:r?encies
taxation employed empleyed  commitments
Rupees in ‘(00
Pakistan 2312330 397 380,082 34,750,702 296,274,452
Total assets employed include intra group items of Rs. 33,711 thousand.
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42.2

42.3

Market risk

Market Risk is the risk of loss in eamings and capital due o adverse changes in intesest rates, foreign exchange ratas,
equity prices and market conditions.

The Board of Directars oversees the Bank's strategy for market risk exposures. Asset and Liahility Committee [ALTD)
which comprises of serior management oversess the statement of financial position of the Bank, assesses the impact
of Interest rate change o Bank's investrient portiolio through stress testing, and performs oversight function to ensure
sound assat quality, liquidity and pricing. The investrent policy amongst other aspects covers the Bank asset allocation
guidelines inglusive of equity investments. While markst risk limits are in place and are rmonitored effectively, the Bank
has also formalized liquiclity and marke? risk managerment policies which contain action plans to strengthen the market
risk management system and a middle office function aversees lirnit adherence. Market risk can be categorised into
Interest Rate Risk, Foreign Exchange Risk and Equity Position Risk.

Forelgn exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the probahility of boss resulting Frorn adversis mowvement is exchange rates.

The Bank's business model for foreign exchange rigk is 1o sarve trading activities of its clients in an efficient and cost
eHective manner. The Bark is not in the business of actively trading and market making activities. A conserative rigk

approach and the Bark’s business strategy to work with export oriented clients gives the ability to meet its foreign
exchange needs.

2014
e e s
Rupees in 000 axpsure

Fakistan Rupes 345,268,885 310,400,150 74452 34,943,147
United States Dollar 48,374 408 475078 %030 734,200
Euro 2,241,468 1,252,952 {7,073} 980,503
Great Brizin Paund 1,015,506 2,645,638 10,453 (1619679
Asian Curmency Lnit 365,732 721,288 - {355.557)
Japanese Yen 63,184 835 {68,470} (6,121}
Arab Emirates Dicham 16859 58 - 16,801
Canadian Dollar - 1,908 129 {17801
Australian Dollar 2566 - - 2,566
Saurdi Rival 6,357 - - 6,357
Cither currencies 25017 35,291 438 i {9,835

52,111,157 52229150 {74,452} (152,445)

397,380,082 362,525,380 - 34,750,702




Fakistan Rupee

United States Collar
Euro

Great Britain Pound
Asian Currency Unit
Japanese Yen

Arab Ernirates Dirharm
Canadian Dollar
Australian Dollar
Saudi Riyal

Cther currencies

st ebities QISR e
Rupees in 000 EXpOE e
271,650,554 245951804 2261317 27 960,087
35712134 33233542 [2674.220) (195628
2666,108 1.34% 854 (1,294,347 21,587
651,484 2558940 1320008 12,552
58463 372500 - 195,563 .
126302 1,006 {1884678) {43,382}
3,239 123 = EARN)
3018 - - 3016
3308 - - 3308
10,383 - (7045] 3338
58,964 1,685 (37.035) 20244
39803491 37518065 [2261,317) 24,10%
3N 454045 283469860 - 22984176
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42.6

42.7

Operatlonal risk

The Bank operates in a controlled manner and operational risk is generally managed effectively. With the evgltlition of
eperation risk management into a separate distinet discipling, the Bank's strategy is to further stiengthen risk management
system along naw industry standards.

The Bank’s operaticnal risk management strateqy takes guidance from Basel - I, Committee of Sponsoring Organization
of Tread way Commission (COSO) publications, the SBP guidelines and standard industry practices. The cperational risk
management manual addresses enterprise wide risk drivers inclusive of technology infrastructure, software hardware
and IT. security.

While broadening risk awareness and assuring regulatory compliance, Internal Audit department of the Bank is an
important pillar of the Bank’s risk management and controls infrastructure, perfonming continuous reviews 1o improve
the quality of the Banks internal control environment, ensuring an effective balance in safaty and performance of
pracesses and adding value wwards the Bank’s risk mitigation endeavours.

The Bank’s business continuity plan includes risk management strategies to mitigate inherent risk and prevent intemuption
of mission ciitical services caused by disasier avertt, The Bank's operational risk management infrastructure has been
further strngthened through the establishment of a separate operational and fisk control unit

Operatlonal risk - Disclosures Bassl specific

The Bank uses Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) for regulatory capital at risk calewlation for operational fisk, Linger BIA the
capital charge for operational risk is a fixed percentage of average positive annual gross incame of the Bank ower the
past three years. Figures of capital charge of operation risk for the year is Rs. 011,081 thousand (2813: Rs. 1,386,765
thowsand}.




43. KEY ISLAMIC BANKING OPERATIONS

and loss account of these branches 35 at 31 December 2014 and for the vear are as follows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Bue from financial institutions
Invesiments

Islamic financing and related assats
Operating fed assets

Deferred tax assers

Other assets

LIABILITIES
Bills payable
Dwe to financial institutions
Deposits and other accounts
- Cument accounts
- Saving depasits
- Term deposits
- Others
— Deposits fram financial instiutions - remunerative
- Deposits fom finandial institutions - non - reminerative

Due to head office
Cther liabilities

MET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Islamic banking fur
Reserves
Unappropriated profit

Surplus on resatuation of assets

421 The Bank is operating 10{2013: 6) Islamic barking branches in Pakistan, The staternent of firancial position and profit

Note 2014 2013
Rupees in 000 ———

1491819 1,158,881

500,000 -

7,896,317 -
16,233,976 14042 730
&2 6,729,141 TA20M2
38,502 18,940
£54.1939 2,738,851
33,544,954 25380514
147,506 148,884
373400 165,900
4,721,766 28975330
8793428 6872578
15,077,307 11.231,4M
64,145 154,578
1,540,522 1,511,006
122 495 ga57
30,720,063 22 784,859

175,969 -
674,791 645,396
32,065 819 23749039
1,449,115 1,631 475
1,002,512 1,002,633
IB7.E74 505,306
1,390,386 1,507,939
58,729 113,535
1,449,115 1631475

9




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 2014 2013
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 —— Rupess in {0} ——

Profit / retum on finandng, investments and

placernents eatned 2,305,436 1518323
Profit # retum on depasit & other dues expensed {1,800,022) {1,338,506)
Met spread eamed 505,614 530317

Prowision against non performing financing 145,932 15405
Prowision for diminution in the value of investrments -

Prowision for consurmer inanding llarah {64)
Bad debts written off directly -
{145,932} {15,341}
MNet spread after prowvisions 359,682 5h4.076
OTHER INCOME
Fee, commission and biokerage income 30883 22508
Divldend income - -
Inccame from dealivg in foreign cumrencies 13,137 12413
Gain an sale / rademption of securities 135,370 -
Unrealized gain / fioss) an revaluation of Invesimernits
classified as hakd-for-trading - -
Other Income 45393 37085
Teal other income 228715 12306
588457 637,282
OTHER EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 200,583 131,97
Orther provisions £ wiite offs - -
Other charges - -
Total ather expenses {200,583) {131,976)
g7 874 505,306
Extra-ordinary / unusuak iterms - _
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 387,874 505,306

432 Remuneration to Shariah Advlsar / Beard 2494 1,749

433 Charity Fund

Opening balatce - -
Additions during the year 23 -
Payments / utllization during the year (23 -
Closing balance - -

92




HABIBMETRO

A2

Islamle financing and related assets

Financings / investments f receivablas
- Murabahg
— ljarah
- Dirninishing musharika
- Export refinance murabahia

Advances
- Ardvance against murabaha
- Arhvance agatnst ijarab
- Advance against dirminishirg musharka
- Advacrie against lstisna

Assets | Invantories
- Istisna Goods

A-21 Islamic made of financing
Firtancings / imvestments / recefvables
Ardvances
Agsets / Imventoies

A-2.2 Murabaha financing
Murabaha receivable - grass
Less: Dwferred murabaha income
Frowvision against murgbaha financing

- General pool - loeal currency,

- General pool - foreign cumrencies,

- Specific pool and

- Isfamic Expent Refinance Scheme muskarika pacl

Mote 204 203
Rupeesin 000

A-22 4214607 0669333
271,260 188,293
1,271,564 122334
396,700 165,900
6,154,131 7155860
245,789 70,580
4,941 4 686
219,544 197 486

85,000 -
555,274 273,152

191?36 -
6,729,141 FA4xama2
8,154131 TS5 R0
255,274 373152

19,736 -
6,729.141 F429mz
4590152 609,833
{197 427} [304.189)
(178,118 [31,381)
4,214,607 5069333

43.4 Following pools are maintained by the Bank's Islamic Banking Divislon (IBD)

83



43.4.1 Nature of general f specific pools local and foreign currencles.
al Consideration attached with risk and reweard

~  Peiiad, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment

- Allfinancing proposats under pracess at various stages and likely to be extended n near future

- Expected withdrawal of deposits according to the maturities affecting the deposit base

- Maturities of funds obtained under rmodaraba armangement from head office, Islarnic Banking
financial institutions

—  Hlemert af risk assoviated with different kind of investments

- Regulatory requirement

- Sharia'h compliance

b

==t

Priority of utilization of funds

- Cepasitor funds

- Equity funds

- Placernent / inwvestrments of cther (Bl

- Mudaraba placement of HabibMetro thead office)

o} Weightages for distrbution of profits
Profits are calcuiated on the basis of weightages assianed to different tiers and tenors, These weightages are
annaunced at the heginning of the period, whils considering weightages emphasis shall be given to the guantum,
type and the period of risk assessed by applying fellowing factors.
- Contracted period, nature and type of deposit / fund.
- Payment cycle of profitan such deposit / fund, ie. monthly, quarterly or on maturity

- Magnitude of risk

Any change in profit shating weightages of any Categary of deposit / fund providers shall be appiicable from the
next month fwhere applicabie].

d

Identification and allocation of pool eelated income and expenditure:

The allecation of income and expenciture to-different pools is being done based on pre-defined basis and accounting
principies as merticned below:

The direct expenditure shall be charged 1 respective pool, while indirect expenses including the establishment
¢ost shall be borne by HabibMetro 1BD as Mudarib, The direct expenses ta be charged to the pool may incluge
depreciation of ijarah assets, insurance / takaful expenses of poal assets, stamp fee or documentation charges,
brakerage fee for purchase of secufities, impairment / losses due to physical damages to specific assets in pools
ate. However, this is not an exhaustive list, HabibMetro 1BD pool management framewaork and the respective pool
eteation memarandum may identify and specify these and other similar expenses to be charged ta the po,




HABIBMETRO

43.4.2 Istamic Expert Refinance Scheme musharika pool

Allthe features and other detaifs of this pool are in accordance with the SBP IERS Schere and all cireulars and instLICTrS
issued from time to time in this regard.

43.5 Avanues f sectors of economy / buslness where mudaraba based deposits have been deployed.

- Agricufture, foresting, hunting and fishing
- Autornobile and transportation equiprert
- Chermical and pharmaceuticals

- Electronic and electrical appliances

- Financials

- Productian and transmission of energy

- footwear and leather gaimarts

- Texile

- DOthers

43.6 Parameters used for allecation of profit, charging expanses and provisions ete.

a) Basis of profit allocation

From January 01, 2014 to
December 31, 2014

Local Foreign
Currency  Currency

- Rabbul Maal R 108
- Mudaribt B o0

b} <Charging expenses

The direct expenses are charged to respective pogl, while indirect expensas inchsding the establishment cost shall be
beune by IBD ag Mudarik.

c} Provisions

Specific provision amounting to Rs. 145,932 thousand has been made during the year 2014,

43.7 Mudarih share {in amount and percentage
of distributable income)

2014 203
Rupees in ‘({0 % Fupeesin 'O %
Rabstrf Maal 1,067,958 42 32% 433283 42.18%
Mudarib 1,455,796 57.68% 1142466 5782%
istributable Incorme 2523754 100.00% 1,975,749 100:00%
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43.% Amount and percentage of mudarib share transferred
to depositors through Hiba {if any}

204 2013
Rupeesin 000 —-
Mudaribs share 1,455,796 1,142.455
Hiha 661,152 463,454
Hiba percentage of rudarily share 45 42% 40 57%
43.9 Profit rate earned vs. profit rate distributed to
depositors during the year 2014 2013
(Percentage)]
Profit rate samed (per annum) 9. 10% 481%
Frofit rate distributed to depositors {per annum) 6.80% £.85%

d4 GEMERAL
44.1 Non adjusting event after statement of financial position date
The Board of Directars in its meeting held on 26 February 2015 has praposed a cash dividend of Rs. 2.50 per share

amaunting ta Bs. 2,619,579 thausand [2003: cash dividerid of Bs. 200 per share amaunting to Bs, 2095663 thousand)
for approval by the members of the Bank in farthcoming Anfiual General tMeeting.

a4 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the revised farms of annual fimancial statements of
the barks issued by the State Bank of Pakistan through its BSO Circutar No. 04 dated 17 Febuary 2006,

45, DATE OF AUTHORRZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial staternents were authorized for issue on 26 February 2015 by the Baard of Directors of the Bank.

KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ MOHOMED BASHIR TARIQ IKRAM
Chairman Presidant & Directar Director
Chief Executive Officer
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Al-Barka Bank Limited (Sukuk Rs 1,006,000/ each)

Amreli Steal (Private) Limited
Engra Chemicat Pakistan timited |
Engra Chamical Pakistan Limiead ||
Engro Foods Limited

GOF Larah Sukuk - 81t Jssue

GOP ljiarah Sukuk - Sth lssue

S0P fjarah Sukuk- 10th lssue

GOP ljarah Sukuk - 171h |ssue
GOF ljarah Sukuk - 13th Izsue

GOP farah Sukuk - 14t lssue
S0P farah Sukuk - 151 lssue

k.5 Sulermanjf Esrnailii & Sons [Privace) Limited
Urbieety Power Technalogy Limited
taple Leaf Cerment Limited t
Fakistan taobite €ommunication
Sizara Energy Limited

Sitara Per Ciide Limited

Three Star Hasiery Mills Lirnitad
WAPDA Sukuk Bonds 2nd lssue
WAPDA Sukick Bords 3rd Tssug

**Ratings are not available

SUKUK CERTIFICATES AND BONDS

8.1 Other particulars of Sukuk certificates / bonds are as follows:

Al-Earka Bark Limired

Arnieeli Steel (Private) Limited
Engro Chemical Fakistan Lirmited |
Engra Chernical Pakistan Lirnited 1
Engra Foods Limited

0P farah Sukuk - 9th lssue

GOP larah Sukuk - 190t lgsye
GOF larah Sukuk - 11eh [ssue
GUP farah Sukuk - 13th lssue
GOP tarah Sukuk - Tath Jssus
GOP ljarah Sukuk - 15th I5sue
Liberty Power Technalogy Limited
hAaple Leaf Cermnent Limdted 1
Pakittan Mobike Communication
Sigara Per Qxide Limived

Three Star Hosiery Mifls Lirmited
WAPDA Sukuk Bonds 2nd lssue
WhPDA Sukuk Bonds 3rd 1ssue

“These rates are based on reuters sheet applicable far maxt gix months,

2014 2013 2014 2013 204 23
Mo. of certiffcates Cost .
of Rs. 5,000/~ sach Rupees in ({10 Rating
250 - 250,000 - i -
16,000 16,0 GO.800 &7,200 A A-
20,000 200000 100,000 100,000 u -
10,000 100 20,885 45,300 b "
20,000 20,000 100, (0x) 100,000 - b
- 180,600 - 0,000 i =
60,000 80,259 300,000 3,295 e "
Fa5,453 45,00 3,727,254 225000 * "
200000 200000 1,000,004 1408000 " -
450,000 450000 2,250,000 2.250,000 e -
1452200 1,552,200 7,261,000 7751 100 b *
206,010 - 80,905 - e b
- 30000 - 25533 " i
100547 900547 435,994 404 TH7 e b
21,000 21,00 55810 83,432 A- BE+
17391 - 86,957 - Al -
- 11273 - 21,136 u“ "
20,000 20000 66,243 8,262 i F
1,500 1.5 8,500 9,500 - “
FO000 PO 175,000 233333 '“' i
85,000 835,000 425,000 425,106 i "
17314358 140096, 788
Maturity
Coupon rate Payment date
& rownths KIBOR plus 125 bps Zerni annually 26-%ep-24
3 months KIECR plus 250 bps Chuartery 9 Der-16
& months KIBOR plus 159 bps Serri annually 6-Sep-15
Gmonths KIBOR plus 211 bps Semi annually 3-lun-17
& rnonths KIBOR plus 62 bps Semi annually 13-4an-17
“fmanths T Bills Wisighted Average  Serif annually I -Nowe1s
*omonths T Bills Weighted Average  Semi annuafly 1-More-15
& months T Bills Weighted Average  Semi annualhy #1-New-15
"6 months TEills Weighted Avarage  Semi annusally -Heow-15
“Bmonths TRills Weighted Average  Semi annually IB-Mar-16
“& manths T Bills Weighted Average Semi annuaily 25 Jun-17?
3 meriths KIBOR plus 300 bps Quarterly 18-Mar-21
3 rnenthe KIBOR pos 100 bBps Quartenly 3-Dec-18
3 rhanths KIBOR plus 210 bps Quatterly 22 Dec-1g
3 manths KIECR plus 100 bps Cuartery 15-Fab-20)
& months KIBDR plus 325 bps Serri annyatly 4-Bug-15
& rncniths KIBOR minus 28 bps Semi annally 13-Juk17
& months KIEOR plus 100 bes Sernl annualfy 140021
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS - CDC AND PHYSICAL
A% ON 31 DECEMBER 2014

Mumber of Size of sharehotding Total
shareholders Rs. 10 each shares hald
306 1 . 13 7524
343 101 - SO0 107 684
246 501 - 1000 203610
732 1001 - 5,000 1874658
274 5001 - 10,000 20361323
35k 10,001 - 15,004 4330442
7l 15,001 - 20,000 1,305.137
67 20,001 - 25000 15877292
21 25,001 . 30,000 580,508
16 30,00 - 35,000 518,557
32 35001 - 40,000 1188475
i 40,001 - 50,000 1,708,856
26 50,001 - AL 1,805 545
n a1 - 80,000 2162309
34 g0,0m - 100,000 3130806
43 1QCAGT - 150000 5912120
18 150,001 - 200,000 3143313
16 200,00 - 250000 3558506
L) 250,001 - 500,00 1852120
41 500,001 - 1,000,000 29307704
15 1,030,001 - 1, 503000 16,664,322
9 1,500,001 - 2,000,000 14728027
15 200000 - 3,000,000 34,521,681
¥ 3,000,001 - 500,000 26812647
10 5,506,001 - 10,000,000 0,724,655
11 10,000,001 - 50,000,000 215334577
i 50,000,001 - E0,000,000 5A.533807
1 534,350,007 - 534,355,000 534,394,054
I_ 2809 1,047,831,480
Shareholders holding flve percent or more voting interest in the listed company
Total paid-up capital of the comparny 1.047,831,480 Shares
545 oof the paid-up capltal of the company £2.391,574 Shares
Name(s) of Shareholder(s} Description No. of Shares held Percentage (%)}
Habib Bank AG Zurich Falls in Categary # & 534,394.054 510
CLKC - Trustee Mational Investrnent
{Unit) Trust Falls in Category £ 8 58.53BA807 Lhg

108




HABIBMETRO

COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC AND PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDINGS

A5 OM 31 DECEMEBER 2014

Number of Category ] Category wise ]
R Categories of Sharehalders sharesheld | gniieNo-of |0 )
! Individuals 2578 1300911,813 1249
2 Investment Companies 5 2370704 023
3 Ioint Stock Comparnias 47 11,000,474 1.06
4 Directors, Chief Execitive Officer and 11 26,400,245 2452
their sprouse and mingr children

Mr. Kassim Parekh 2417593

tdr. Alf 5. Habib 1,510,994

Mr. Mohamegali B Habib 1,612,524

tr. Mohomed Bashir 16,340,985

Mr. Muhammad H, Habib 2060454

dr. Sohail Hasan S00

Wr. Tariqy lkramn B0

tr Sirajuddin Aziz 1.000

frs. Farah Fatirnah Mubammad H. Habib 1,037,157

Mrs_ hMunizeh Ali Hakil £04,374

Syeda Moharnedali R, Habiiy BOS5,065
5 Executives 45 2,049,794 .20
& Assuciated Companies, undertakings and 5 536737478 5132

related parties

Habit Bank AG Zurich 534,354,054

Habib Insurance Comparny Lirited 2277424

Trustee Thal Ltd, Emp. Ret Benefit Fund 7,00

Trustee Thal Lta, Emp, Provident Fund 59,000
7 Banks, OFis, NBFs, Insurance Companies, 2 130,598,524 1246

Takaful, Modarabas & Pension Funds
B Mutual Fungs 14 FRI07 616 698

E5J5 Balanced Fund Lid, 2241

COC - Trustee ABL Stock Fund 1,088,000

CDC - Trustee AKD Inclex Tracker Fund 108,568

CDC - Trustee Alfalab GHP Alpha Fund 144,506

CDC - Trustee Alfatah GHP Value Fund 210400

CLXC - Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund 57500

LEC - Trustee 11 Stock Furd 177000

| l CIX - Trustes MCB Dynarmic Allocation Fund 75,000
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W:EW Categories of Sharehoklers :h‘::ﬁbel: :l; S:E%EE;:?“ cg‘:fr‘;”hff {%)

CDC - Trustee NAFA Asset Allecation Fund 12,500

COC - Trustee NAFA Multi Asset Fund 369,500

CIXC - Trustee NAFA Stock Fund g0e5H]

DC - Trustes Mational Investrnertt (Unith Trust 58,538,807

CDK - Trustee Pak Strategic Allocation Fund 425,000

COC - Trustee Pakistan Capital Market Fund 325,500

CDC - Trustee Pakistan Stock Market Fund 3,179,000

CDC - Trustee UBL Asset Allocation Fund 525,000

COC - Trustee UBL Retirernent Savings Fund 1,039,040

DG - Trustee UBL $tock Advantage Fund 5,120,000
g Foreign Investors 34 121,480,048 11.54
10 Co-operative Societies 1 9843073 D594
11 Charitakle Trusts 9 030,953 (0%
12 Others 26 2310755 Q.22

TOTAL 2,806 11,047.831,480

1 Ullﬂﬂ
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[Bubsitiary of Habity Bank AG Zurich |
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HABIBMETRO

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the arnexed consclidated financial statements comprising consolidated statement of financial position of
Habib Metiopolitan Bank Limited (the Bank} and its subsicliary company as at 31 December 2014 and the related ronsolidated prafit
and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash fow staternent and consolidated statement
of changes in equity together with the notes farming part thereof, for the year then ended. These financial statements inglude
unaudited certified returns from the branches, except for eighteen branches, which have been audited by us. We have atso expressad
separate opinions on the financial statements of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited and its subsidiary company namely Habib
Metropolitan Financial Services Limitad, These financial staternents are responsibifity of the Holding Company's management Our
responsibility is 1o express an opinion an these financizl statements based on cur audit,

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordinaly included such tests of
arcounting recards and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances,

In gur opinion, the consolidated financial staterments presert fairly the financial position of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited and
its subsichiary comparty as at 31 December 2014 and the results of their operations for the wear then ended.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co
{“hartered Accountants
Karachi: 26 February 2015 Mazhar Saleem
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 21 DECEMBER 2014

Hote 2014 M3
Rupees in 000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 8 [ 18640853 21208774
Balances with other banks 9 1870331 3552604
Lendings to francial institutons 10 3408776 -
[rvestments 11 221,544 817 142,327,147
Advances 12 134,175,636 125533937
Dperating fixed assets 13 3025426 3035526
Deferred 1ax assets 14 1,268,457 3347,155
Cither assets 15 13,640,521 £490.404
397 674,817 311,395,637
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 16 5,201 482 3882213
Bomrowings 17 24,883,982 23,057,002
Dieposits and gther CCounts 13 319,948,274 247507718
Sub-ordinated koans - -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - -
Deferred tax Labilities - -
Cither liakilities 14 12,871,948 8863421
362,905,686 283410354
MET ASSETS 34,769,131 27,985,283
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 20 10,478,315 10,478,315
Resenses 11,178,823 10,193,511
Unappropriated profit §,559,838 6,603,745
30,216,977 27365571
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 21 4,552,154 619,712
34,768,131 27,985,283
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22
The annexad notes 1 to 45 and annexures | &Il form an integral par of these consolidated financial starements.
KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ MOHOMED EASHIR TARIQ IKRAM
Chaimman Prasident & Direcior Director
Chiaf Executive Officer
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HABIBMETRO

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

MNote 24 203
Pupees in 000
Mark-up { raturn ! interest sarned 24 32,288,259 24,641,671
Mark-up { raturn { interest axpensed a5 (21,078,626) {15,565.764)
Met mark-up / interest Income 11,239,633 9071907
Frovision against non-performing loans and advarices 126 1,767,199 2i11,110
Prowvision for diminuticn in the value of investments 11 11,380 (1.380)
Bad dehts written off directly 1281 | - -
{1.778,579) 12,105,230

Met mark-up / interest income after provisions 0.431,054 6,962,677
Non mark-up f interest income -

Fee, commission and brokerage incorme |_ 2458011 2266551

Dhvidend income 51,880 44 Lod

Income from dealing in foreign currencies 1,039,545 Bo4.964

{3gin on sale / redemption of seourities - net X 1,875,712 1,338,804

Unrealized gain # {loss) on revaluation of investments
classified &5 held-for-trading - -

Cther income 27 341,063 304,320
Tatal non mark-up / intefest income 5766220 4819725
15,197,274 11,782,402
Non mark-up / interest axpenses :
Administrative expenses i 7.406,393 6519316
Uther provisions £ write offs 152 299,000 -
Other charges 5 155,742 145,792
Total non rmark-up / interest expenses {7.861,135) f6,665,108)
7336139 5,117,204
Extracrdingry / uniusual items - -
Profit before taxation 7336139 5,117,204
Taxation = Current o (2,764 B45) (1,979,748
= Prior years (100) SPLE
— Defarred 141 370,057 {18547
) {2.393,9849) §1,590526)
Profit after taxation 4,942,150 1526768
Unappopriated profit brought forwaid 6,693,745 6,035,765
Profit available for appropriation 11,635,895 9,562,533
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupces) 1| 472 3.37

The annexed notes 1 ta 45 and annexures 1 & Il form an integral part of these consalidated firancial statermnents.

KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZ1Z MOHOMED BASHIR TARIG IKRAM
Chaiman President & Director Diractor
Chief Executiva Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECERMBER 20H4

Note
Prafit after tawation for the year
Othar comprehensive income
ltems not to be reckassified to profit of loss in subsequent periads:
Actuarial gain / {loss) on defined benefit plan 343

Related deferred tax {charge) / reversal

Comprehensive income transferred to equity

[tems nat w be reflected in equity:
suiplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of available for sale sequrities

Related deferred tax icharge) / reversal

Total comprehensive income

M4 2013
Rupees in DO

4,542,150 3.526,768

7.568 {104,448)
{2649 36,557
4918 (67.891)
4,847,069 3458877

| 5079448 (2350.722)
| 047,008 784,150

1932442 (1,566,54)
8879511 1,892,335

The annexed notes 110 45 and annesxures | & || form an integral part of these consplidated firmancial staterments.

KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ MOHOMED BASHIR TARIQ |KRAM
Chairman President & Drirectar Director
Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 M3
Note ——— Rupeesin 000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit before takation 7,336,139 5,117,254
Less: Gividend incorme (51889 (44,50
7,284,250 SR 2.H0
Adjustrments
Depreciation and amortization 28 526,188 470,578
Prowision against nan-perfaiming hoans and advances - net 126 1,767,199 211,110
Provision against ather assets 15.2 260,000 -
Provision for diminution in the value of investments - net (30.804) 83.258)
Met gain on sale of fived assets 27 (17,447 (56,698
2544136 2441 732
9828336 7514432
{Increase)} ! decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions 13,408,776 -
Advances (6,108,808} £21,500,845)
Qther assets (excluding current taxation) {5,356, 568) (2740473
{14.874.242) (24,241,322}
Increase ! (decrease) in operating liabllities
Bills payatile 1,219,269 {110,055)
Bomrowings 1,470,763 (21,926,525}
Deposits and olher accounts 72.440,555 29536386
Other liabilities ¢ excluding dividend payake) 413,776 151,093
79,144 384 7,951,356
) 74,058,508 (B 775491
Income tax paid (2,855,147 {21155, 360
Net cash generated from { (used in) operating activities 71,243,381 {10.830451)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
MNetinvestments in available-for-sale secusitios 64,860,361} 25763677
Met investments in held-to-rmatuity securities (8,447,057 (9,624,073
Dividend recafved 49,541 44,504
Investments in operating fixed assets (551,730} 959,052}
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 53,089 110471
Net cash {used in) / generated from invasting activities {73.756,518) 15,743,717
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (2,003,344} {2093 214;
Net cash used in financing activities (2,063,344 (2,003,214
{Decrease) f increase in cash and cash equivalents {4,606,501) 2810452
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 23,673,692 20585253
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash aquivalents 568,478 845,265
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32 19,635,660 24242170
The annexed notes 1to 45 and annexures | & Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
KASSIM PAREKH BIRAJUDDIN AZI7 MOHOMED BASHIR TARIG IKRAM
Chalrman Fresident & Ciirector Director

Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2074

Balance as at 1 January 2013

Changes in equity for the year
ended 31 December 2013

Total comprenensive inceme far
the year erded 31 Decemiber
2011 — profit for the year

{ther comprehensive iMoome
- reg iof ta

Transachons with awnears,
recorded direcily in eouity

Cash dividend {Rs. 2.00 per share]
for year ended 31 Decemnber
W0z

Transher b sLatUtany Reene

Balarce a5 2131 Derercber 2073

Changes in equity for the
year ended 31 December
2014

Takal comprehensive income for
the year erded 31 December
2014 — profit for the year

Other comprabensive inconme
- et of tax

Transactions with owners,
racorded directly in equity

ash dlividend (R, 200 per share}
for year erded 31 Decembei
ms3

Transfer o statubory resen

Balance as at 31 December 2014

The annexed notes 1 1o 45 and annexures | & form an integral part of these can

KASSIM PAREKH
Chairman

ne

Reseres
, Un-
Share Share Statutory Spetial Revenue -
Capital Prarmium Beserve Raserve Reserve app;ﬁﬁfmd Total
Rupees in 000
478,315 2550085 519,831 240,36% 1,50H14x) 6035765 MDE3N
- - - - - 1,526,758 1526708
- - - - - BrAsn {aT 561}
- - - - - (rae56a3 (2055863
- - 5,23 - - (705,234 -
13478315 255085 902,145 20,361 1,500,08) AO93745 2736550
- - - - - 4,042 150 40942 150
- - - - - 4019 4919
- - - - - (2095 663} 12,095,663
- - Q85,312 - - (985,312 -
10,478,315 2,550,985 & R8T 4TV 240,361 1, 500, Ol B550,83% 30216977
solidated financial statements.
SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ MOHDMED BASHIR TARIG IKRAM
Pragident & Director Director
Chief Executive Officer




HABIBMETRO

1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Group comprises of Habib Metrapolitan Bank Lirmited (holding cornpary) and Habib Metropolitan Financial Services Limited
fwholly owned subsidiary company), The Group is engaged in providing Cermrmercial Banking and Brokerage Services,

Matily Metropelitan Bank Limited ithe holding Company) was incorporated m Pakistan an 3 August 1992, as a pubfic limited
comparty, undes the Companies Crdinance, 1984 and is engaged in commercial banking and related services, Its shares are
listedd 6 all the three stock exchanges in Pakistan, the helding compary cperates 201 {2013 174) branches, inchuding 10 (201 3;
&) lslamic banking branches and 39 (2013: 40) sub branches in Pakistan, The holding cormpary is 2 subsidiary of Habib Bank
A0 Zurich - Switzerland the ultimate parent campany with 51% shaies in the Bank) which is incorporated in Switzerland, The
registered office of the holding company s situated at Spencer's Buitding, 1. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

Habib Metropalitan Financial Services Lirmited {the subsidiary company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 28 Seprembier 2007
a5 a public lirrited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1584, The registered office of the subsitiary company is located
at Ist Floor, GRPC 2, Black 5, Kehkashan Clifton, Karachi. The subsidiary comparry s a corparate mermber of the Karachi Stock
Exchange Limited and is engaged in Equity Brokerage Services,

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1 These consclidated financial statements compiise the financial statements of the holding cormpany and its subsiciary
campany. The financial statements of the subsidiary company have been prepared for the same reporting year a3 the
holding company using consistent accaunting policies. The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the subsidiary
cornpany have been consalidated on 3 line by line basis. Intra-group balances and transactions have been eliminated
for the purpese of consolidation.

2.2 Inacrordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding shifting of the banking systern ta lslarric modes,
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBF) has issued various circubars from time 1o time. Permissible forms of trade related modes
offinancing include purchase of goods by the Group from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate
mark-Lip in price on a deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising undes these anangements are not reflected
in these consalidated financial statements as such bt are restrictad to the amount of facifity actually utilized and the
apprepiate portion of mark-ug therean.

2.3 The financial results of the lslamic Banking branches af the halding company have been included in these consclicared
financial statements for reporting purpoases, after elirninating material inter-branch transactions / batances. Key firanciaf
figures of the Islamic Banking branches are disclosed in note 43 1o these consolidated financial staternents.

2.4 Basis of measurament

Acceunting convention

These consalidated financial statements have been prepared urder the historical cost comvention except that certain
irwestrnerts are stated at rarket value and derivative fimancial instruments are carried at fair values a5 disclosed in notes
5.3 and 56 respectively.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3.1 These consolidated financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with approved aocounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, Appraved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reparting Standands
{IFRS} issured by the Intematioral Arccounting Stanclards Board (TASE) and Islarnic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS)
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issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {ICAP) a5 are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
provisions of and direetives issued under the Lom panies Ordinance, 1584 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 19462
and the directives issuad by the State Bank of Pakistan, In case the requirements differ, the provisions of and directives
iczued under the Companies Ordinange, 1984 and the Ba rking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the direckives issued by
SRR shall prevail

3.2 The SEF vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability f Internatianal Accounting Standard
(LAS) 30 “Financial instruments: Recognition and Measuremnent” and |A 40 "Investment Property” for banking companies
61l Further instructions. Further, according to a notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECF)
through S.R.C: Mo, 411 (17 7 2003 dated April 28, 2008, IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclasures” has not keen made
applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirernents of these standards have nat been considered in the preparation of
these consclhidated financial statements, Hawever, invgstrnents have keen classified and valued in accordance with the
requirements of various circulars issued by the SEF.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITY

The praparation of these consglidated financial statements in canforrity with approved accounting standards requires
ranagerment ta make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amours of assets and liabilities and
income and expenses, 1t also requires management 10 exercise judgment in tha application of its accounting policies, The
ectirnates and assumprtions are based on historical experience and various other factars that are befieved 1o be reasonable
urider the eittumstances, These estimates and assumpticns are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimales
are recognized in the periad in which the estimate is tevised if the revision affects onty that periad, af in the periad of revision
and future periads if the revision affects bath current and future pericds.

Sigrificant accounting estirmate:s and areas where judgments were made by management in the application of accounting
policies are as follows:

iy Classification of investments

- Inclassifying irvestments as “held-for-trading”, the Group has deterrmined securities which are acquired with the
infertian 1o trade by taking advantage of short teem market £ interest rate moverments and are 16 be sald within
90 days.

- Inclassifying investments as *held-to-maturicy’, the Graup follows the guidance provided in SBP circutars on classifying
nan-derivative financial assets with fixed or detetrninable payments and fixed raturity, In making this judgrment,
the Group evaluates its intenticn and ability to hald such investments to maturity.

- The investrments which are not classified as *held for trading” or held 1o maturity are classified as avaiiable for sale.
iy Provision against non performing loans and advances and debt securities classified as investments

The Group teviews its loan partfolio and debt securities classified as investments to assess amount of non-performing
loans and advances, debt securities and provision required there-against. Wihile assessing this requiremnent varicus factors
including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the barrawesr and the forced sale value of the securities,
atc.as per the requirement of the Prudential Regulations afe comsidersd. For portfalio impairment provision On Consumer
and srall enterprise advances, the Group follows the general provision reguirement se1 out in the Prudential Bequlatians.
In addition the Group also maintain a general provision against its lpan poriflic discussed in note 5.4.
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i

Iv)

v}

vi)

vil)

Valuation and impairment of available for sale equity invastments

The Group deterrnines that available-for-sale equity investments and held to maturity are impaired when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost, This determination of what is significant or praionged
requires judament, In making this judgment, the Graup evaluates amang other factors, the normal volatility in share price.
In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is an evidence of deteriaration in the financial health of the
investee, industry and sector performance, changes in tech nolagy and operational and fnarcing cash Rows,

Impairment of noninancial assets {exciuding deferred tax asset)

Mon financial assets are subject to impaitment review if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that
the carrying armount may nat be recoverable, If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable ameumt
of the asset and the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fir value less costs to
sefl and its value in use, Value in use is the present vahee of future cash Aeows from ihe asset discounted at a rate that
reflects market interest rates adjusted for risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an intangible or tangible
asset is less than its carrying value, an irmpairment loss is recognized immediately in the prafit and lass account and the
carmng value of the asset reduced by the amaount of the loss. A reversal of ar, impairment loss on intangibie assets is
recognized as it arses provided the increased carrying valug does nat exceed that which it would have been had no
impairment loss heen recognized.

tncome taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes cy mently payable by the Group, the rnanagement looks, at the current income
tax diws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for defered taes,
estimates of the Group's future taxable profits are takan inte account,

Flxed assets, depraciation and amortisation

In making estimates of the depieciation / amortization methed, the management uses method which reflects the prattarn
inwhich economic benefits are expected o be consurmed b the Group. The methad applied is reviewed 3t each financial
year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consur pticon of the future economic benefits embodied in
the assets, the methad would be changed ta reflect the change in pattern. Such change is accaunted for as change in
accounting estimates in accordance with Internaticnal Accounting Standard - 8, "Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errgrs”

Defined beneflts plan

Liability is determined an the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Methad, as fully
disclosed in note 34 to these consolidated financial staternents.

vill] Compensated Absences

The Group uses actuarial vahsation for the determination of its compensated absences habiliny. This methad makes certain
assumptions, which may change, thereby effecting the profit and Joss acceunt of future perd,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The surnmary of significant accounting policies of the Group are as el oy

5.1

5.2

8.3

Cash and cash equivalents

Far the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and halances with treasury banks and
balances with other banks less overdraws nostros and local pank accounts.

Lendings to / borrowings from financial institutions

The halding company enters into transactions of borrowing (re-purchase) from and lending (reverse re-purchase) ta
Rnamcial institutians, at contracted rates for 3 specified period of e, These are recorded as under.

Sale under repurchase obligation

Sacurities seld with a siultanaous commitment W repurzhase at 3 specified future date (repos) continue 1o be recognized
in the statement of financiat position and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for investenents and
counter party liability i5 included in borrovang frorn Financial insticutions. The difference between sale and repurchase
price is armortized as an expense over the teim of the repo agreement,

Purchase under resale obligation

Secyrities purchased with 2 carresponding commitment 10 resell at a specified future date (Teverse repos] are nat
recoghized in the staterment of financial positian and instead amounts paid under these arangarments are included in
lerdings to financial institutions. The diference between purchase and tesale price is acerued as income over the term
of the agreerment.

Civher norrowings including botrowings fiem SBP are iecorded at the proceeds received. Mark up on such borowing is
charged to the profit and loss account on a time proportion bass.

Imvestments

531 Investment ina subsidiary is stated at cast |ess piovision for irnpaitment, if acy.

§.3.2 Otherinvestrents are classified as follows:
Held-for4rading
Thase are securities, which are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuation in market prices,
interest rate movements, dealers margin ot are securities included in a portfolio inwhich a pattern of short-term
tracling exists.
Held-to-maturity

These are sequritics with fixed or determinable payments and fixed raaturizies that are held with the positive
intertion and ability to held till aturity.
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5.3.3

Loans

Available-forsale

These are investments that do not fall under the held-foi-trad ing or held-to-rraturty calegories.

Imvestrnents fother than held-for-tiading) include transaction costs assaciated with the investments. In case of
held for trading investments transaction costs are charged to profit and fess accaunt,

In accordance with the requirements of the SBE quoted securities, other than thase cfassified as held o matusity
and investrent in a subsidiary, are carded at market value. lnvastments classified as hefd to maturity are carred
at amartized cost whereas Investment in & subsidiary is carried at cost less impairment lasses, if any.

Unrealized surplus / deficit anising on the revaluation of the Groups held for trading investment portfolio is Taken
tothe profit and luss account, Surplus # deficit arising on revaluation of quoted securities classified as available
fior sale is kept in & separate account shown in the Staternant of Financial Position below equity. Surplus £ deficit
alfsing on these securities is taken to the profit and ioss account when actually realised upon disposal or when
the imvestrnent is considered to be irmpaired,

Unquated equity securities are valued at the lower of cast and break-up value. Subsequent decreases in the
carrying value are charged ta profit and loss account. Break:up value of equity secuiities is cafculated with referance
0 the net assets of the investes empany as per the [atest available audited financial staterments, Investrnents
in aither unguoted securities are valued al cost less irnpairment losses, il any:

Prowision far diminution in the value of term finance and Sukuk certificates are miade as per the criteris prescribed
under prudential requlation issued by State Bank of Pakistan,

Provision for impairment in the value of available for safe and held to maturity securities (other than bards and
term finance and Sukuk certificates) is made after consicdering abjective avidence of impairrnent, if any, in their
value (as a result of one or more events that may have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
investrnenits). A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity imvesiment below its cost is alsa
considered ah objective evidence of mpairment. Impairment losses are taken to profit and loss account,

Allteguilar way” purchases and sales of investments ars recagnized on the trade date, ie. the date that the Group
cornimits the purchase or sell the assat Regular way purchases o sales are purchases or saes of irwestments that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by requlation or corwention in the market place,

3.4 Advances (including net investment in finance lease and ijarah arrangements)

and advances

Lowans and advances and net investrnents in fnance lease are stated nel of provision for lpan losses anainst nar-performing
acvances. Provision far foan losses is rmade in accordance with the Prudential Requlations issued by the SBF and is charged
ter prafit and loss agcount. The holding comparsy #lso maintains general prowision fn addition to the requiremenits of the
Prudential Regulations on the basis of management's assessment of cradit risk chararteristics and ganeral banking risk
such as nature of creit, coflateral type, ind wstry sector and ather relevant factors, Murabaha recaivables ars stated gt gness

arnount receivable less defered income and prowistans, if any.
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5.5

Finance lease receivables

Leasas, where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership of an asset to the lessee
are classilied as finance lease, A receivable is recog Hizedh at an amount equat to the present value of the minimum lease
peyrnents including quaranteed residual value, if any. Finarce lease receivables are incuded in advances [ the customers,

\jarah

In aceoidance with the requirenents of lslamic Financial Accounting Stanvdard (IFAS] Mo, 2 for the accounting and finandial
reparting of ‘ljarah; [jareh arrangements by the telarmiic Banking branches are acounted for as 'Assets held Lnder ljarahy’
and are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation, resiclual value and impaitnent |osses, if any. Accordingly assets
subject o ljarahs have been reflected in note 19 to these camsolidated financial statements under "Advances. Rental
incorme an thes [jarahs is tecognized in the Group's profit arwd lass accaunt on a tirme proportion basis, while depreciation
it calculated on [jarah assers ona straight ling basis over the penod of farah from the date of delivery of respedtive assels
to mustajir lessee) up 1o the date of maturity / termination of ljarah sgreement and is charged 10 the profit and loss
acrount, The classification and provisioning of Jarah assets is done in line with the reguiremerits laid down in the Pradential
Requlaticns and are recagnized in the profit and Ioss socount.

Advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects af recavery.
Fixed assets
Tanginle - ownsed [operating)

These are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and accurmulated impaiement losses, if any, except for freehald
land which are stated at cost less accurnulated impairment losses, if vy,

Depreciation is calculated on 3 steaight-line basis cver the estimated useful life of the asset at the rates specified in note
13,2 Depreciation on additions during the ysar is calevlated from the date of addition. In case of disposals duting the
year, the depreciation is charged up fill the date of dispasal. Cepraciation on ijarab assels referred toin note 12.3 05
calculated pn a straight line basis over the peried of ljarah from the date of delivety of respective assets to the mustajir
flessee] up 1o the date of maturity / terminatian of jjarah agreed,

Subsequent cost are included in the asset's Carmying amount only when it is probable that future economic benelits
assoriated with the iteen will Aow to the Bank and the cost of the itern ¢ar b measured reliably. All other repairs and
mainterance are charged to the profit and lass account,

An item of property and equiprient is derecognized upan disposal or when o future econmic benefits are expected
frorr its Lse o disposal, Any gain of Loss arising on derecognition of the asset i recognized in the profit and loss account
in the year the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, usefut lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and changes, if any, are treated as change in
accounting estimates, 1 each Statement of Financial Positian date,
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0.6

6.7

Intangible

These are stated at £ost less accurnulated amortizatian and irmpairrment, if any. The cost of intangible assets are amortized
from the manth when the assets are available for intended use, using the straight line methad, whereby the cost of the
intangibie asset is amortized aver its estimated useful life cver which econamic benefirs are expectad to flow 1o the
Group. The useful life and amortization method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each Statement of Financial
Position date.

Intangible incluces Trading Rights Entifement (TRE) Certificate acquired by subsidiary on surrender of stock exchange
mernbershify card, Since the fair value of the certificate can nat be determined with reasonable accuracy, the entire
carrying value of Stock Exchange Membership Card has been allocated to the shares of Karachi Stork Exchange Limited,
and TRE Certificate has been stated at Nit value, This certificate has indefinite [ife,

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less impairment Iosses, if any.

Derivative financlal instruments

Derivative financial instrurments are initially recagnized at fair vatue at the date on which the derivative contract is anteran
Inta and are subsequently rermeasured at fairvalue, Al derivative fnandial instruments are carsied a5 asset when fair value
15 positive and liabilities when fair vatue is negative. Any change in the value of derivative financial instruments is taken
to the profit and loss accournt.

Provisions

Prewision against identified non-funded losses is recognized when intimated and reasonabile cerfainty exists for the Group
1o settle the abligation. The loss is charged to the profit and loss account net of expected recovery and is classified under
other liabifities.

Other provisians are recognized when the Group has a tegal or constructive abligation as a result of past events and
H is probable that an outflaw of rescurces will be required 1o settle the ohligation and a relisble estimate of the
amount can be made. Provisions are reviewsd at each Statement of Financial Positian date and are adjusted to reflact
the current best estimate.

Taxation

Income tax expense camprises current and deferred tax, ncorme tax expense is recagnized in the praofit and loss account
ExCeptto the extent that it relates to the items recognized directly in eq uity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current
Preeision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after taking into

congideration available tax credits and rebates. The charge for the current tax also ineludes adjustments where corsidered
necessary, relating ta prior years which arise frorm assessments framed / finalized during the year,

125




Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences between the
careying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpases and amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred
ta i rmeasured at the tax rate that are expecied to be applied on the temporary dIferonces when they reverse, based
o the 1ax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable prafit will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced ta tha extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Group also recognizes deferred tax asset / liability on deficit ¢ surplus on revaluation of assets and actuarial gain /
losses recognized in 'Other Comprehensive Income’ which is adjustad against the related deficit / surplus.

59 Employees' benefits

5.9.4 Retirement henefits
Defined banefit plan
The holding cormpany operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent ermployees. Retirement
henefits are payable to the members of the scheme on the completion of prescribed qualifying period of service
under tha scherme. Contribution is made in 2ccordance with the actuarial racormmendation. The actuarial valustion
is carfied out annually as at the staternent of financial position date using 'Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost
tethod”
All actuarial gains and lasses are recognized in *Other Comprehensive Ineeme” as they Qoqur.
Past service cast resulting from changes to defined benefit plan is recognized in the profit and loss acoounts.
Diefined contribution plan
The helding company operatas a recognized provident fund scheme for all is ragular employees, which is
administered by the Board of Trustees. Contributions are made by the Group and its emiployees, to the fund at
the rate of 10% of basic salary.

5.9.2 Compeonsated absences

A provision is made for estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by the employees
against unavailed leaves, as per term of service contract, up to the staternent of financial position date.,

The actuarls! valuation under the 'Projacted Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method' has been carried out by the
Group for the determination of the liability for compensated absences. Liability so deterrnined is fully racognized
by the Groug.
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5.10 Revenua recognition

Revenuie is recognized to the extent that the economic benefits will Aow to the Group and the revenue can be refiably
rreasured, These are recognized as follows:

a) Advances and investments
MarkeUp / return on reqular loans / advances and debt securities investments is fecognized on @ time proportion
basls that take into account the effective yield on the asset. Where debr securities are purchased at premium or
discount, the sarme is amortized through the profit and loss account using the effactive interest rate method,
Interest or mark-up recoverable on classified Icans and advances and Investrents is racogrized on receipt basis,
riterest / return / mark-up on classified rescheduted / restructured loans and advances and investments is
recognized as permitted by the regulations of the State Bank of Pakistar.
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's fight (o receive the dividend I established,
Gains and losses on sale of investments are recognized in the profit and loss account on settlement date.
Income on bills discounted are recognized over the period of the bl

bj Lease financing / ljarah contracts
Finandirig method is used in accounting for income from lease financing, Under this method, the uneamed lsase
income {excess of the sum of total lease rentals and estimated residual value over the cost of lzased assets) s
deferred and taken 16 income over the term of the lease perind 5o as 1o produce a constant periodic rte of return
an the outstanding net investment in lease. Urrealised income on classified leases is recognized on receipt basis.

Rental income on ljarahs exeauted by the Islamic Barking branches and accounted for under IEAS 2 {refer note
54}is recognized in the profit and loss account on 3 time proportion basis,

Gains / losses on termination of lease contracts and other lease income are recoanized when realized.
c) Fees, brokerage and commission

Fees, commission and brokerage except income from letters of guantee is accounted for on receipt basis. income
from letter of guarantee is recoanized on an accrual basis over the period of the guarantee.

8.11 Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount o reparted in the financial staternents when thers
is a lagally enforceable right to set off and the Group intends 1o eicher settie on 3 net basis, or to reallze the assets and
to settle the liablities simultaneously.

5.12 Forelgn currencies
Foreign currency transactions are transtated into local currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction,
Monetary assets and liabilitles in foreign currencies are translated Into fupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the

statement of financial position date, Forward exchange contracts are revalueg wsing farward exchange rates applicabie
to their tespective remaining maturities. Exchange gains of losses are included in income cumenitly,
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Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts distlosed in these financial staternents ate translated

at contractad rates. Contingent liabilities / commitrnents for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in

fareign currencies are expressad inupes terms at the rates of exchange ruling on the statement of financial pasition tlate.
5.13 Segment reporting

A seqrment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing produck or senvices {business

seqrient), or in providing products of services within a particular sconarmic enviranment igenoraphical segmenty, which

is subject to fisks and rewards that are different from those of ather segments. the Group's primary format of repaorting

is based on the following business segments,

Buslness segments

a) Trading and sales

This segment undertakes the Group's treasury, money rrarket and capital market activities.

h) Retail banking

Retail banking provides sendces o small OMowers Le. Consurmers, smatl and medium enterprises (SMES) and boregwers’
agricutiure sector. Itincludes loans, deposits and other transactions with retail tustarmers,

c) Commarcial hanking
This includes loans, depasits and other transactions with corparate custarmers.
Geographical segments
The Group conducts allits operations in Pakistan.
5,14 Dividend distribution and appropriations
Borus and cash dividend and other appropriations fexcept for the appropriations requited by law), declared / approved
subsequent 1o staternent of financial position date are considered 35 non-adjusting event and are not recorded in
consalidated financial staternents of the current year, These are recognized in the period in which these are declared /

approved.

5,15 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share [EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS s calculated by
dividing the profit or ks attributable to ordinary sharehalders of the Group by the weighted average number of osdinary
shares outstanding during the period. Oiluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss atibutable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares putstanding for the effects of all dilutive pokential
ondinary shares,

5.16 Impairment of assets {other than loans and advances and investments)
At each staterment affinancial pasition date, the Group reviews the carmying amount af its assets (other than deferred tax

aseeth to determnine whether there is an indication that those assets have sufferad an impairment koss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of relevant asset is estimated, Recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price:
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and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carying amount, the carrying
amaunt of the assets is reduced to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognized as an expense

immediately. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can he objectively related 10 an event occurring after the
impairmenit 1055 was lecognized,

Uetails of the: basis of determination of impairment against loans and advances and investments have been disqussed
in their respective nogtes.

5.17 Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the tirme when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrurnent, Financial assets are derecognized when the Group kases control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets. Financial iabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished ie. when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain o loss on derecognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities is taken to profit and loss account, Financial assets carried an the statement of financial position include cash
and bank balznces, lendings to financial institutions, investrnents, advances and certain recefvables. Financial liabilities
inciude bomowings, depasits, bills payable and ather payables. The particular recognition methods adopted for significant
financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy notes associated with ther,

$.18 Murabaha

Murabaha transactions are reflected as receivable at the invoiced amount. Profic on sale of a commodity not due for
payment is deferred by recording a credit to the "Deferred Murabaha lncome* account (and net against the recsivable
balance). Funds disbursed under Murabaha anangements for purchase of goods are recorded as advance agalnst Murabaha,

3.19 Diminlshing Musharika

Ine Dirmiinishing Musharika based financing, the halding company enters into 2 Musharika based on shirkat-ul-milk for
financing an agreed share of fixed asset te.g. house, land, plant or machinery) with its customers and enters into period
prafit payment agreement for the utilization of the Group's Musharik share by the customer. Income from these transactions
are recorded on acerual basis,

5.2( |stisna

In Istisna financing, the halding company places an grder to purchase some specific goods / commaodities from its

customers to be delivered to the Group within an agreed time. The goods are then sold and the amount financed is paid
brack to the Group.

5.21 Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

The hoiding companty occasionally acquires assets in settiernent of certain advances, These are recorded at the lower of
camying value of the related advances and the current fair value of such assets

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's functional curmency; Excapt
as indicated, financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded to nearest thousand,
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7. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting
periods beginning as specified below:

- Amendments to 1AS 19 Ermployee Banefits’ Emplayee contributions - a practical approach (effective for annual pericds
hegirning on or after July 01,2014). The practical expedient addresses an issue that arose when amendments were made
in 2611 ta the previous pension accounting requirements. The armendrments introduce a refief that will reduce the
complexity and burden of accounting for certain contributions from employees or third parties. The amendiments ang
relevant only to defined benefit plans that imsobve contributians friom employees or third parties meeting certaln criteria.

. Amendments ko |AS 38 Intangible Assets and |AS 16 Property, Planit and Equipment {effective far annual perinds beginning
on or after January 01, 2016) imroduce severe restrictions an the use of revenue-based amurtization for infangible assets
and explicitly state that revenug-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and eguipment. The
rebuttable presumnption that the use af revenue-based amortization methods for intangible assets is inapprofEiate can
be overcome only whe revenue and the cansumphion of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly
correlated, ar when the intangible asset is expressed as 3 measure of revenue. The amendments are not likely to have
an impact on Bank's financial statements.

. IFRS 10T onsolidated Financial Statemnents’~ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2015) replaces
the part of 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemenis. ERS 10 introduces a new approach te determining
which investess should be consolidated. The single model to be applied in the comtrol analysis reguires thal an imvestor
controls an imvestee when the investor is expased, or has rights, to variable returms from its involvernent with the itniestes
and has the ability ¥ affect those retums through its power over the investee. IFRS 10 has made consequential changes
1o IAS 27 which is now called Separate Financisl Staternents and will deal with only separate financial statements. {ertain
further amendrments have been made o IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 145 28 clarifying the requirements relating 1o accounting
For investment entities and would be eflective for annual periods beginning an of afver January 01, 2016, Management
of the Group is cumently assessing the Hkely Impact of this IFRS on the Group's financial statements

- IFRS 11 oint Arangements' (effective for annuat petiods beginning on or after lanuary 01, 2015} replaces 1AS 31 Tnterests
i Joint Yentures, Firstly, it carves out, from 1S 31 jointly contralled entities, those cases in which although there is a
ceparate vehicle, that separation is ineffective in cortain ways, THese arangerments are treated similarly 1 jointly controlled
assets/operations under 1AS 31 and are now called joint aperations. Secondly, the rernainder of 1AS 31 jointly controlled
entities, now calked joint ventures, are stripped of the free thoice of using the equity method or proportionate consolidation;
they must now always use the equity method. IFRS 11 nas also made consequential changes in 1A> 28 whizh has
now been named ‘investrent in Associates and Joint Ventures, The amendments requiring business combination
accounting to be applied to acquisitions of interests in a joint operation that constitutes a business are effective for annual
peficds beginning on of afier Janvary 01, 2016, The adoption of this standard is not likely to have an impact cn Groups
finandial statements,

. IERS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods beginning on o after January 01, 20135)
carmbines the disclzsure rguirements for entities that have interests i subsidiaries, joirit arrangements {i.. joint operations
ar joint ventures), associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities, into one place. The atdoption of this starndard is
ngt likely to have an impact on Group's financial staternents.
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IFR 13 ‘Fair Value Measurerment” effective far anrual periods beginning on or after Jan Wary 01, 2015) defines fair vailue,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets sut disclosure requiraments for fair value measurements, IFRS
13 explains haw to measure fairvalue when it is required by ather IFRS, It does nat introduce new fair value mgasuremeris,
nor does it elimiriate the practicabillty exceptions to fair valus measurements that cumently exist in certain standards.

Amendment ta 1A 27 Separate Financial Staternent’ (effective for annual perieds beginaing on o after January 01, 2016),
The amendrments ta 145 27 will allow entities to use the equity method 1o account for investments in subzidiaries, joint
verdures and assaciates in thefr sepamte financial staternents,

Agriculture: Bearer Plants [Amendment to 145 16 and 145 41) feffective for annu3| periods beginning on or after January
01, 2006). Bearer plants are ngw in the scope of 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment far reasuremertt and disclosyre
purposes, Therafore, a company can elect to measure bearer plants at cost. However, the produce growing on hearer
plants will continue to be measured at fair value less costs to sell under 145 41 Agriculture, A bearer plant is 3 plant that:
is used in the supphy of agricultural produce; is expected to bear produce for more than one peticd; and hias a remgte
fikelihood of heing sold as agricultural produce. Before Fnaturity, Dearer plants are accounted for in the same wiy a5 self-
constructed items of property, plant and equipment during construction.

Sale or Contiibution of Assets between an Investar and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and 145
28] [effective for annuat periods beginning or or after January 01, 2018) The main consequence of the amendments is
that & full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction frvelves a busingss fwhether it is housed in 2 subsidiary af not).
A partial gain or loss 5 recognized when a transaction imealves assets that do nat constitute & business, even if these
assets are haused fn a subsidiary,

Annual Improvernents 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 cycles [most amendrnents will apply piospectively for annual perioc
beginning on or after July M1, 2014), The new cycle of improvernents cantain amendments to the following standards:

- IFRS 2'Share-based Payment’ IFRS 2 has been amended ro clarify the definition of 'vesting condition” by separately
defining ‘performance condition’and service conditiry

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations’ These amendmenits clarify the classification and measurerment of contingent
censideration In a business combination.

- IFRS§'Operating Segments'has heen amended to explicitly require the disclasure of judgrnents made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria,

- Amendments to |AS 16'Property, plant and equipment’and 1AS 38 ntangible Assets’ The armendrments clarify the
requirements of the revaluation model in JAS 16 and 145 38, recognizing that the restaternent of accumulated
depreciation {amortization] is not always progortionate to the change in the gross camrying amount of the asset,

- 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosure’ The definition of refated party is extanded to include a managernent antity that
provides key management personnel services to the reparting entity, either directly or through a groug entity.

BT 40 Investment Property’ IAS 40 has been amended to clarify that an entity should: assess whether an acquired

property is an investrnent property undes 145 40 angd perform a separate assessment undear JFRS 3 ta determine
whether the acquisition of the investrent property Constitutes 3 business cormbination,
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. Annual mprovements 201 2-2014 Cycles {smendments are effective for annual periods peginning on or after January 01,
2016), The new cycle of impravements contain amendrments 1o the folfowing standards:

- IFRS 5 Non-curent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operatians. IFRS 5 is amended to clarify that if an entity
changes the method of disposal of an asset (o disposal group) i.e. reclassifies an asset from held for distribution
1o owners to held far sale o vice versa without any time lag, then such change in classification is considered as
continuation of the orginal plan of dispasal and if an entity determines that an asset (or dispasal group) no longer
meets the criteria to be classified as held for distribution, then it ceases held for distribution accounting in the same
way a5 it would cease held for sale accounting.

. IPRS 7'Financial Instuments- Disclosures: IFRS 7 is amendec to clarify when servicing arrangements are in the scape
af its disclosure requirernents cn Continuing invaivernent in transferred financial assets in cases when they are
derecognized in their entirety. IFRS 7 is 2l50 armended to clarify that additiona disclosures required by ‘Disclosures:
CIffsettitg Finarcial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Arnendments to IFRS7) are not specifically reguived For inclusion
in rondensed interim financial staterments for all interim periads.

- 1A% 19 Employee Benefits: 15 197 amended to clarify that high quality corporate bonds or government borigs
used in deterrnining the discount rate should be issued in the same currency inwhich the benefits are 1o be paidl.

. |AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting! 1AS 34 is amended to ¢l fify that certain chsclosures, if they are not in¢luded in
the notes to interim financial staterents and disclased elsewhere should be cross referred.

The Group expects that the above mentioned improvernents will not have a material impact an the Group's financial statements
in the periad of initial application.
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8. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

Note 2014 203
Rupess in "00G——
I vand
Local currency 3,883,745 3504318
Fareign currencies 1,184,734 1,287 506
5078479 T

With State Bank of Paklstan in

Lacal currency current accounts a1 3.886,122 01278490
Foreign curtency current account B2 10211 134,530
Foreign curency deposit accaurts
- cashreserve accounts 23 2330002 1,740,700
=~ special cash resenve accounts a4 6,865,407 5,720,250
13,183.642 16123170
With Natlonal Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency cureent accounts 366,118 25RTS
National Prize Bonds 12614 16,005

18,640,853

21,208.774

8.1 These accounts are maintained to comply with the statutory cash reserve requirerants and include Rs. 1,191,445 thausand
(201 3: Rs. 974,408 thausand) in respect of the Islammic Banking branches of the holding ¢cormpany.

8.2 Represents US Dollar collection / settfement account with SEP

8.3 Represents cash reserve maintained with SBP against foreign currency deposits and include amount of s, £9,1 32 thousand
(2013 Rs. 55,506 thousand) in respect of the Islamic banking Branches of the holding compary.

8.4 Represents special cash reserve maintained with SBP against foreign currency deposits and include armount of Rs, B2798
thousand {2073: Rs, 64,665 thousand} in respect of the klamic Banking branches of the holding cornpany.

9. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan
On cument accounts 345,651 463,136
O deposit accounts a1 548,690 24004

B94,341 484,190
Quiside Pakistan

On current accounts 02 1488635

0n depaosit accounts - 1,579,869
975,990 5,068,504
1,870,331 3,552,694

9.1 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 6.50% (o 9.00% {201 3: 7.00%) per annum,

8.2 Include balances in cunent accounts of Rs. 33,71 thousand (2013; Rs. 99,480 thousand) with brarches of the uftimate
parent Company.
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10. Lendings to Financlal institutions

Call money lendindgs
Repurchase agreernent lzndings (Reverse Repo)

10.1 Particulars of lendings
In Tocal curency

2013

Mote 2014
Rupees in H—
10,2 1,500,000 -
03 1,908,776 -

3408776

3408776

10.2 This catry mark-up rate 10.75% (2013 Nil) per annum, with maturity upto 14 January 2005,

10.3 Securities held as collateral against lending to financial institutions (Reverse repo}

Note 2014 2013
Held by Further Total Held by Further Total
Group Given as Group Given as
collateral collateral
{Rupes k)
Market treasury bills  10.3.2 1,908,776 - 1,908,776 _ . _

10.3.1 These Yendings cany mark-Up rates ranging fom 9.75% ta 10,006 (2013: Nil) per

2 January 2015,

10.3.2 Market value of securities held as collateral against lendings t financial institutions ame

thousand (013; Milk
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11. INVESTMENTS

1.1 Investments by types
Note

Available-for-sale securlties
Masket treasury bills 11.5
Pakistan investrment bonds 116
Ordinary shares of listed
Companies
Ordlinary shares of unfisted
Comparias
Preference shares of listed
company
Listed term finance
certificates
Unlisted term finance
centificatas
Sukuk certificates and bands
Open end mutual funds
Close end rmutual funds

Held-to-maturity securities
Pakistan investrent bonels 1.7

Investments at cost

Prowision for dirninution in the
value of investrments 11.3

investments - net af provisions

Surplus / {deficit) on revaluation
of available-for-sale
securities - net 21

Investments after
ravaiuation of availabie-
for-sale securities

2004 2013
Held by Given as Heid by Given as
Group collateral Tota| Group collaberal Total
(Rupees im0
85227113 - 85427313 B4535770 - 54535770
77.515,583 - FR516593 45828220 - 45828229
973924 - 973924 230409 - 230405
138,955 - 138,955 138,955 - 138,555
- - - 40,000 - 40,0
1,084 553 - 1,084 653 866,305 - 866,305
440,395 - 440,385 582503 - 52,983
17,314,358 - 17314358 14,096 788 - 14,066,738
9856828 - 9856828 11415045 - 11415046
31816 - 31,816 - - -
192,594,835 - 192,594,835 127734474 - 127734474
22,559,359 - 22559359 112302 - 14112302
215,154,194 - 215,154,194 141,846,776 - 141,846,776
(150,180} - (150,150 {150,984} - {150,984}
2149394014 - 214934014 14165573 - 141,655,742
6,650,303 - 6,650,803 671,355 - 671355
221644817 - 22644817 142327147 - 142327147
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11.2

136

Investments by segments

Federal government securities
- Market treasury kills

- Pakistan investrnent bonds

- GoPijarah subuk

Fully paid up ordinary shares
- Listed companies
- Unlisted companies

Fully paid up preference shares
- Listed company

Term finance cartiflcates, sukuk certificates and bonds
- Llisted term finance cerificates

- Unlisted term finance certificates

- Sukuk certificates / bonds

Mutual funds
- Openend
- {lassend

Investmants at cost

Provision for diminution in the value of investments
Investments - nat of provisions

Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
securities — net

Investments after revaluation of available-for-sale securlties

Note

1.3

A

2m4

B5227 313
100,075,952
13,519,169

200822434

073,924
138,955

ki

1112879

1,094,653
440,395
1,795,189

3,330,237

9,856,928

31,816

0,388 644

215,154,154

{160,180}
14,994,014

6,650,803

221644817

2013

Rupees in ‘000 ———

54,535,779
58,940,531

12,437,295

126913605

230409
138955

369,364

40,000

866,303
S82.963
1,635,493

3108761

11415044

11415046

141,846,776

{190,984

141,655,792

671355

142327147
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11.3 Particulars of provision for diminution
in the value of investments

- Opening halanoe
- Charge for the year
- FReversal for the year

- Metcharge / ireversal) far the year
- Reversal of provision an disposal of investrments

- Closing balance

11.3.1 Particulars of provision for diminution In
respect of type and segmant

Available-for-sale sacurlties

Fully paid-up ordinary shares
Unlisted companies

Fully pald-up prefarence shares
Listed company

Term finance certiflcates, sukuk certificates and bonds
Listed term finance contificates
Unlisted term finance carificates
Sukuk certificates / bands

204 2013

Rupees in 000 ——
190,984 214243
24482 4323
{(13,102) {6.203)
11,380 {1.880)
{42,184) _ {81,378}
160,180 150,934
74353 72356
- 38,380

22486 -
23063 28,290
40,278 21,578

160.180 190,954

11.4 Information relating to investments in federal government securities, ordinary and preference shares of listed and unlisted
campanies, listed and unlisted term finance certificates and sukuk certificatas / bonds and open and glose end mutual
funds required to be disclosed as part of the financial statements under the SBFs BSD Circular No. 4, dated 17 February
2006, is given in Annexure "I" and is an integral part of these unconsolidated firancial statermeants.

T1.5 These carry mark-up rates ranging fram 9.43% to 10.10% (2013 8.95% to 9.591%) per annurm, with maturity upto

24 Decembeer 2015,

11.6 These cary mark-up rates ranging from $1.25% to 12.05% (2013 11.25% ta 12.05%) per annurm and will mature up to
17 July 2024. These includes 158,500 thousand (2013: Rs, 158,500 thousand) pledgad with State Bank of Pakistan and
Hatianal Bank of Pakistan against TT / DD discounting facilities and demand loan facilities,

11.7 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 11.25% to 12.00% (2013: 11.25% to 1 200%) per annum and will mature up 1o

19 July 2032,
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Wote 2014 2013
Rupees in 30 ——
12. ADVANCES
Loans, cash credits, running finances, &<,
In Pakistan 114,971,053 118,668,461
Net investrhent in finance lease / farah financing
_ In Pakistan 122 476,018 4000749
Assats held undet ljarah 12.3 247,988 17451
Bills discounted] and purchased
{exncluding market treasury bills)
Payable in Pakistan 8089663 5511266
Payable outsicle Pakistan 26,378 556 19,269.633
3468219 24,780,899
Advances — gross 150,164,178 144,143,950
Pravision against nar-performing advances
- specific {15,661,846) {13.455861)
- general {326,606) (854,152
126 (15,988,542 (1431003
Advances - net of provisions 124,175,636 129833937
12.1 Particulars of advances ~ yross
1211 Inlocal currency 109,531,066 115652349
I forign Curterndies 40,633,112 28451601
150,164,178 144,143,850
12.1.2 Short terrn [for upte one year) 137,077,541 120,784,830
Larg term (for aver ore year) 13,086,637 13,358,120
150,164,178 144,143,550
12.2 Net investment in finance lease ! ijarah financing
2014 203
Motlater Laterthan  Ower  Total Motlater  Laterthan  Ower | Total
thanone ongandfess five thanone  oneand v
year thanfive  years year less than  years
yaars five years
Fupees in K0
Leaserentals recaivable 186,556 232770 30764 450,090 134,122 I 4582 47503
Pesidual value 32,066 64,487 476 87029 20,390 8171 095 80565
Minirnium lease payments 18621 297257 31,240 547,11% 154,521 385970 29577 560068
Financial charges far future :
pericds (25419 (36127 (B65S) (FR201) NG4S MSSH) (13572 (75585
Presant value of mitimum
lease payments 153,203 261,130 22585 476,ME 138024 340060 12005 400079

1221 These finance lease receivables include the ljarah contracts executed before the promilgation of IFAS 2 {and
writter up to 31 December 2008),
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12.3 Met book value of investments in dlarah under (FAS-2 fs net of depreciation of Rs. 144,141 thousand (2013 Rs. 359,201
thousand).

12.4 Advancesincude Rs, 19,325,034 thousand (2013 : Rs. 16973.536 thousand) which have been placed under non-performing
status as detailed below:

2014 2013
Category of Classified  Pravision  Provision Classified  Provision  Provision
classification advances  required held advances required hald
Fupees in ‘(00

Substandard] 393,744 89,580 £9,580 14,053 386 386
Doubtful 1.408,214 564,454 664,454 134771 23102 29102
Loss 17,322,171 14307812 14,907,812 16824712 13426373 13426373

19,325,134 15,661,846 15,661 846 16973536 13455861 13,455,861

12.5 Considaration of forced sales value (FSV) for the purposes of provisioning agalnst non-parforming
loans .

During the current year, the holding company decided to avail additional forced value (FSV) benefit under BSD Circular
No. T of 21 Gcrober 2017. This has resulted in reduction of provision against non-performing loans and advances by
Rs. 594,668 thousand {2013 : Rs 176,772 thousand). Further, as of 31 December 2014, had the benefit of FSys {including
those availed into previous year} not been tzken by the holding company, the specific provision agalnst non-perfomming
advances wolld tave been higher by Rs. 2,513,871 thousand (2013; Rs, 3,448,243 thousand) and accumulated profit
would have been lower by Rs, 1,634,016 thousand (2013 Rs 2,241,423 thousard). This amount af R, 1,624 M6 thousand
is ot available far disribution of loan and stock dividend to the sharsholders and banus to enmployees.

12.6 Particulars of provision against non-performing advances

Mote X4 am3
Specific General Tortal Specific Generl Total
Rupees in 100
Cpening balance 13,455,861 854152 1431013 12035302 353674 12388966
Charge for the yaar 3,244,544 = 3.244.544 2182078 500478 2682556
Reversals (9498807 | | (527456} | | (1,477,345 (571,446 - [571.446)
Met charge for the year 2,294 655 (527 456) 1,767,199 1610632 500478 211,110
Amount wiitten off 128 (88.670) - (88,670 {190,003} - {190,093}
Closing balance 127 15661846 3206% 15988542 13455867 834,152 14311003

12,61 General pravision includes provision of Rs. 2,178 thousand {2013: Rs. 2,854 thousand) made against consumer
porticlio maintained at an amount equal to 1.5% of the fully secured performing portfolio and 5% of the unsecured
performing porifolio as required under the Prudential Regulations issed by the State Bank of Pakistan. Moveaver,
general provision also includes provision of Rs. 31,041 thousand [2013: Rs, 37450 thousand) made against smail
enterprises maintained at an amount equal to 1% of the fully secured performing portfolio and 2% of the
unsecured performing portfolio.
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12.7 Particulars of provision against non-performing advances

12.8

12.9

2014 2013
Speclfic General Tetal Specific General Total
Rupees in 000
Against lacal currency exposure 15257098 326696 15584694 13245508 854152 14069750
Against Foreign currencies exposure 403848 - 403848 210263 - 210,263
15661,846 326606 15988542 13455861  BSAIN 14310013
Note 2014 213
Rupess in 000 —
Particulars of write-offs
12.8.1 Against provisions 126 BE,570 190,093
Directly charged to profit and loss account - -
88,670 190,065
$2.8.2 Wiiteoffs of Rs. 500000/~ and abave B?.531 186,555
Write-offs of belenw Rs. 500,000/ 739 5358
88,670 190,083

Details of loan write-offs of Rs. 500,000/- and above

In terms of sub-section {3) of section 334 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the statement in respect af
wiitten-off loans or any other financial refief af Rs. 500,000 or above allowed to the persons during the year ended 31

December 2014 it enclosed a5 Annexure |,

12.10 Particulars of boans and advances to directors,

associated companles, subsidiary stc,

Dehts due by directors, executives ar officers of the Group

or arty of them either severally or jointhy with any

other persons
Ralance at beginning of year
Loans granted during the year
Repayments

Balance at end of year

121642
952,383
(10,985

1758827

12164

47,157
026,888
{357.664)

Ciebts due by companies or firms in which the directors
of the Group are interested as directors, partners o

i the rase of private companies as members
Balance at beginning of year
Leans granted during the year
Repayments
Balance at end of year

2020013
38,405,253
{38,584,881)

1,840,385

1602520
37,133.684
{36,716401)

2003




HABIBMETRO

Mote 2014 2013
Rupees in ‘000 ———

13. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in- prograss 131 6,996 40,100
Property and equipment 132 3,017,852 2,584 465
intangible assets 123 578 957
3025426 3035528

13.1 Capital work-in-progress - -
Cheil wearks 1311 6,996 16,635
Equiprnents, etc. - 23465
6,906 40100

13.1.7 This represents advance against rencvation carried out at variaus lecations of the halding carnpany.

13.2 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
o Book
Cost Depraciatian Yalye
As at . Asat ¥l Asat Charge fr Asar i Asary) Fateof
Addltions ¢ e
01 January ) December @ Japuary  the year / Cecembar  Gecember WePTe-
2014 (deletions) 2014 WtE (delations] 2014 209 <o
Rupeesin ‘000
Leatehold Jand TABS - Tas8 1,229 112 1340 6147 14%
Buildings / office piernizes 634,313 - 434,313 156510 23423 180033 454 280 4
on freehold land
Buildings £ office premises 1922797 - 1,922 797 547502 68,788 616,280 1,306,507 4

on legsehald land

Furniture and ﬁxiures. cffice
and computer equiprnent 12456683 336,344 1,499 576G FELex4 209,381 040,599 S5BOFT 15&Ms

82431) (31,705
Wehicles 16,373 45 15907 1212 1,800 12,580 337 a i)
{1811} (1,432)
Leasehald impscvements LS03S71 247545 1746978 836159 222305 1058354  GGE14 20
[4,538) -
2014 3331405 584734 5827059 2336636 525709 2809207 3017852

(88,780} _ [53,133]__
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Leasehald kand

Buitdings / office prerrlses
o fregheld fand

Buildings / office premises
on leasehold Tand

Furnitues and ficures, office
and computer equiprment
Vehicles

Leasehold irmprovernants

2013

Boak,

Cast Depregiatic: Vallle
Az at Addinanst Az at 31 A at Chirge far Az at 31 As gt 5
11 sanuary \detians) Decemnber 01 January The yegr! Decermber  Decemnber
23 23 203 Ideletions) 203 N3
Rupees in 400
7458 - 7458 1,137 112 1225 6,259
/34,313 - g34311 133,188 23471 156,610 477703
1,281,032 - 1,922,797 433,71 M Sars0:d 1A75.2%
(58239) (6329
g, 1 20 IH)E5E 1,245,863 621,537 178,668 7A1924 452,739
(19,124 [17,281)
15,960 1437 16473 106,541 1,771 12212 4 B
[144) 20
1,243,751 0.2 1,503,571 4,11 196,039 836,159 GETHELE
i (n
4,064,673 544,926 53305 1AH)L2M5 470,132 2336530 2954440
(77 504)

(23730

13.2.1 The cost of fully depreciated assets still inuse s Rs. 1,1 0,518 thousands (2013 Rs.894,427 thousands).

Aate of

dapie-

Ciatice
%

149

4

15825

0

13.2.2 Carrying amount of idle property held as at 31 December 2014 is Rs. 278,386 thousands (2013: s, 281,560
thousands). These properties has been tempararily kept idle.

4323 Details of fixed assets deleted with original cost or bk value in excess of Rs, 1,000 thousand or Rs. 250 thousand

respectively are as follaws:

Particulars

Fummiture and Fixtures

13.3 Intanglhle assets

The cost of fully ame

Cost Book  Sale Mode of disposal
Walue Froceed
Rupeesin 0] ——
350 mn 31 s mer the holding
company policy

350 n mn

Particulars of purchaser

Muhammiad Faraz Haider

{Hr'ding Company

sxemploves)

tized intangible assets (computer software) stillin use of holding comparry is Rs. 27,875 thousand

{2013 Rs. 27,875 thousand) and intangible assets of subsicliary having cost and amartization of Rs. 1,622 thousand and

Rs. 1,044 thousand respectively. Intangible assets of subsicliary includes Trading Ertitlernent {TRE} certificates at Mil value
as further explained in note 5.5,
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Note 2014 2013
Rupess in 000 —
14. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Deferred tax debits arising in respect of:
= Provision against diminution in the value of investments 36,063 L
- Provisions against non-performing advances (ingluding
off-balance sheet obligations) 03 3408971 313,045
~ Prowision against other assets and feave encashment 201,080 56,250
~ Deferred lighility on defined benefit plan 65,545 105,333
3,735,663 " 3380883
Defermed tax credits arising due to:
= Surplus on revaluation of investment securities (2,095,649} {51,643)
- Accelerated depreciation {368,557 1397 Q85
{2,467,206) {442,728
Mot deferred tax asset 14.1 1,268,457 2547155
14.1 Reconciliatlon of deferred tax
Balance  Recognised Recognised EBalarweas Recognised  Recognised  Balanceas
as at in profit in equity at 3 in profit I excquity at 31
01 January & loss December & loss Dexernber
2m3 aecount 013 account 014
Rupees in 'DO0
Beferred tax debiis
arlsing in respact of
Pravision against
dirninution in value of
IrvestrmEnts B4, 150 {8,755) - 57355 (1,192] - 56,063
Prowision against
nar-perfoeming
advances {including
aoff-balance sheet
obiigations) - note 303 3424087 93042 - 3,131,045 177,926 - 1408571
Frovision against ather
asgats 06,250 - - 3, 2540 104,830 - 201,080
Pra operating expenses of
the subsicliary 152 (152) - - - - -
Deferred ligkility on
defined benefit plan 36806 31970 36,557 105,333 {33135} (2,649} 69,540
3623545 (PRI 36,657 3389883 8409 {2649]  3,735663
Defarred fax credits
arising due fo
Surpfus on revaluation
of investrnent
SECLities {835,796} - FA4,153 (51,643} - 12,047.008) {2098 645
Aceelerated
depraciation 475634) B4,545 - 391,085 22528 - (368,557}
1,3114300 84,540 784153 (442, 728) 12,528 (2,047,006} (2467206}
Net deferred tax
asset 231155 (185,420 820710 2947,155 370957 (2.049.655) 1,268,457
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16.
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OTHER ASSETS

Incerme f mark-up £ predit accrued indlocal Currency

Income £ mark-up / profit accrued in foreign curencies

Advances, deposits, advance cent and cthet prepayments

Advance Tax (payments less provisions)

Eranch adjustrnent account

Unrealized gain on forward foreign exchange contracts

Receivable from the SBF against encashrnent of
government sacUties

Stationery and stamps on hand

Advance payments sgainst iiarah

Arvance payrments against dirminishing mushariks

Advance payments against rmurabahis

Advance payrnent against istisna

Dividend receivable

Nom-banking assets acguired in satisfaction of claims

Receivable from customer against brokerage services

Others

Frovisken against other a5sets

15.1 Market value of non-banking assets acguired in
satisfaction of claims

15.2 Provision held against other assets
Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing halance
BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan

BORROWINGS

Iy Pakistan
Dutside Pakistan

17.1 Particulars of bofrowings

In local currency
In foraign cumencies

Mote 2014 2013
Rupees in 000 ———-
8569870 4870280
68251 57706
485,721 415,164
436,257 346056
11,550 4468
2029943 1,224 538
146,633 103,318
33,783 IHBEN
4,941 4,686
219,544 197486
245,789 FO.530
85,000 -
2,348 -
151 1,211,976 1,110,037
324,409 40531
337,706 283,039
14,214,521 B765.404
15.2 {574,000) (275,000
13,640,521 5400404
1,406,528 1,30897%
275,000 27500
255,004 -
574000 275,000
5,201 482 3982213
20,125,035 20732048
4,758.947 2324954
24,883,982 23067002
20,125035 20732048
4,758,847 2324854
24,883,382 23057002
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Mote 2014 2n3
Rupees in 0 ——
17.2 Details of horrowings
Securad
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan
- under export refinance scheme 17,605,345 18679476
- under Jong term financing - export oriented projects 63 689 136751
- under long term financing facility - locally
rranufactured plant and machinery 1,394,143 1,796,348
17.2.1 18063, 781 20612575
Due against bills re-discounting 17.2.2 4032088 1525124
23,005,569 22537704
Unsecured
Baf Muaijal 1723 912,598 -
Chverd mwn Nostro accounts 726859 309425
Overdrawn local bank accounts 148,656 119,473
1,788,112 519248
24,883 982 23057002

17.21  These carrying mark-up rates ranging between 5.00% o 11.00% {2013: 5.00% to 11.00%) per annumwhich is
payable quarterly or upon maturity of loans, whichever is earlier

17.2.2  This represents the obligation to the comesponding banks on the discounting of foreign documentary bills
purchased by the Graup, The balance carries discount rates ranging frorm 1.00% to 1.25% (2013 0.75% to 1.5%).

17.2.3  This repiesents ursecured borrowing friom the financial institutions, carrying rnark-Li[ rates ranging between
935% o 2405 {201 3: Nil), with maturity upto @ April 2015.
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DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers

Fived deposits

Savings denosits

Currant accaunts {nor-remunerative)
Othears

Financlal institutions

Rernunerative depasits
Mon-remunerative deposits

18.1 Partlculars of deposlis
In local currency
In foreigr cumeries

QOTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / retumn f interest payable in local currency
Mark-up / retum / Interest payable in forsign cumendies
Lnearned commission and incorne on Bills discounted
Accrued expenses

Prowision against off-balance shieet abligatlan
Unclaimed dividenc

Unrealized boss an farward foreign exchange contracts
Wrkers' walfare fund

Excise duty and sales 12 payable

Lcker deposits

Advance against diminishing musharika

Advance rental for ijarah

Secunity deposits against leasas / ijarah

sundry creditors

Withhalding = / duties

Prowision for compensated absences

Deferred liability on defined benefit plan

Due 1o custormers against brokemge transacions
Others

Note 2m4 2013

Rupeesin 000 ——
130,176,879 100594178
83,481,5M 73,259,593
£6,881,170 6,060,931
2,268,708 3085411
312808258 4330011
5,702 486 3860137
1437530 S47 450
1140016 4207587
319,948,274 24750778
272529647 2426533
47 418,027 35,081,185
319,548,274 247 507,718
7.523,095 478571
246,452 108,025
133,893 127 402
481,370 328165
OB 727 08,727
B 781 f,462
2,140.816 1,180,240
291 215291 326,950
5149 2,042
541,928 492 477
88987 55,040
25979 8,725
166,854 172,750
171,681 150,295
124434 72,650
7132 186,4N
343 198,712 297 624
93,448 71295
529,039 391,330
12,871 548 8863401




. SHARE CAPITAL

201 Awthotised capital

2014 013 2074 2013
{Mumber of shares) Rupees in 000 ——
1,200,000 000 1, 200,000,000 Chrdinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 12,000,000 12000000

20.2 issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each

30,000,000 30060000 - issued for cash 300,000 300,000
92,500,000 3500000 - Fsuved upon armalgamation 825000 525,000
925,331,480 25331480 - issued as bonus shares 49253115 8253315
1.047.827,480 1,047 831,480 10478315 10478315

20.3 Az of the date of statement of financial pesition, the ultimate parent company held 534,394 thousand (2013: 534,304
thousand} ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each (51% hatding).

21. SURPLUS / [DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX
Availabledor-sale securitias

Federal governmant securities

tarket treasury bills 138,859 (91.715)
Pakistan imestrment bonds 5,437,770 {02551
GOP ijaratt stk 8753 128,578
Fubly pafd-up ordinary shares and mutual funds
Listed shares and mutual funds 1,016,261 726,504
Fully pald-up prefarence shares
Listed company - 6,720
Term finance certificates, sukuk certificates and bonds
Listed tern finance certificates (11,332 (17,751)
Unlisted term finance cerificates 9554 16512
Sukuk certificates / bands 30,938 {5,442
6,650,803 671,355
Refated deferred tax liability - ret {2,098,549) {51,643)
4552154 £19.12

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 Diract credit substingtes 2014

2013
Rupees in 000 ——
Bank guaiantees of indebtness in favour of
- Banking companies and other financial institurions 16472 3BT
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2014 23
Rupees in 000 ——

22.2 Transacticn-elated contingent liabilities

Includes performance bonds, bid bands, advance payment guarantees and shipping guarantees favouring:

il Gowenrmernt 14,820,687 16417161
il Banking companies and other financial institutions 36,395 170,040
il thers £,035,560 3506742

20,892,851 20,153,943

—_——

22.3 Trade-related contingent liahilities
Letters of credit 58,779,685 413,234
Acceptandes 12,513,047 10,821,059

22.4 Commitments In respect of forward exchange contracts

Pufchase 100,046,711 58,594,354
tale 102,795,035 60,950,245

22,5 Commitments In respect of operating leases

Mot [ater than one year 18884 20,283
Later than one year and not later than five years 21,354 25019
40,238 45312

The Group has entered into non-cancellable lease agreements with a Modaraba which has been duly approved by the
Feligious Board a5 Ljarah transactions. The rmonthly rental instalments are spread aver a pericd of 36 months. When a lzase
is terrminated before the lease periad has expired, any payment required 1o be made to the lessor by way of peralty is
recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

22 § Commitments for the acquisliion of opaerating flxed asssts 0572 19791

p—— |

22.7 Claims against bank not acknowledged as debt 2184916 2154916

—_—

22 8 Commitments in respact of forward lendings

The Group makes commitmeants i axtend credit i the normal course of its business, but nane of these eommitmeants
are rrevocable and do not attract any penalty i the facility is uinilaterally withdrawr,

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The hoding cornpany deals in devivatve finanvcia) instruments namely forward foreign exchange contracls and fareign currency
swaps with the principal view of hedging the risks arising from its rrade business.

A5 per holding company's policy, these contracts are reported on ther fair value at the statement af financial position date.
The gains and lasses from revaluation of these contracts are included under Yincome from dealing in fareign cuUrrendcies”
Unrealized gains and losses on these contracts are recorded an the statement of financial pasition under ‘other assets / ather
liabilities”
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25,

26.

These praducts are offered to the holding company's customers to protect from unfavourable movernents in foreign currencies.

The Group hedges such expasures in the inter-bank forsign exchange mirket.

These positions are reviewed on a regular basis by the helding company's Asset and Liability Comrriittee {ALCCS

- MARK-UP /| RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to:
Customers
Finandcial institutions

On investmeants in:
Availablefor-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities

On depasits with financtal institutions
On securities purchased under resale agreerments {reverse repoy)

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Ceposits

Securities sold under repurchiase agreerments
short term borrgwings

Long tern borrowings

GAIN ON SALE { REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES - NET

Federal government securities
Market treasuny bifls
Pakistan investment honds
GOP ifarzh sukuk

Fufly paid-up ordinary shares
Listed companies

Term finance certificates, sukuk
certificates and bonds

Mutual funds

2014

11,157,916
204,330

11,362,245

17,756,220
2470,273

20,226,493

284,960
414,560

32,288,259

16,631,718
1324443
2,977,392

135,073

21,078,626

96,839
448 634
4,017

50,140

128,369

1146713

1875712

2013

Rupees in U0 ——

10,317,085
22577

110899662

11,626,156
| 1238608

12,864,764

353,336
523380
24641671

11,655,297
1,163,232
2592238
158997

15,569,764

196,186
13,662

09,774

45,079

274,193
133380
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27. OTHER INCOME Nota 2014 2m3
—— Rupeesin 000 ——
Rent an properties 3320 29953
Met gan on sale of fiwed assets V7,447 56,698
Fecovery of charges from customers YA 198,715 151,200
Incidents] and service charges 71367 §3.212
Gain on sale of ijarah assets 1.000 1,271
(zain cn sale of other assets 830 -
Previously written off 18,200 -
Staif notice period and other recovenies 1,143 1,086
341,063 304,320
27 1 Includas caurier, telephone and swift charges etc. recovered fiomm custorners,
28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note 2014 2013
Rupees in 0 ——
Salaries, allowances etc. 3,524,039 3,186,958
Charge for defined benefit plan 345 132,810 §1,344
Contribution ta defined contribution phan 124 833 113,960
Mon-executive directars’ fees, allowarices and
other expenses @000 8110
Brokerage and commission 102,028 50313
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity ete, 1,094,363 029 554
Legal and prafessional charges 124176 111,240
Comrmunication 233,054 228835
Fepairs and ralntenance 248,242 204011
Rentals of operating leases 20,587 12,219
Stationery and printing 137,168 96,647
Mamagement fee 206,297 169 687
Aclvertisernent and publicity 81,546 75002
Dranations 282 44,800 35462
Auditors' remuneration 283 894 4217
Depreciation and amortization 13.2 526,187 470578
Security charges 265,673 214520
Trawelling and Conveyance 126,712 138452
Cormnputer softwate maintenarde 49,735 485H0
Subscriptions 103,594 127561
Others 223,169 165,521
7406393 6519316
28.1 The administrative expenses includes Rs. 7,454 thousand Incurred for providing gffice premises and support staff to
the Chairrnan for carrying out tis duties 35 chairman of the Board,
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DONEE

The Citizens Faundatian

Habib Uiniversity Foundation

fternon Health and Education Foundation
sindh Institute of Urelogy and Transplantation
Mohamedali Habib welfare Trust
Abbas-e-Alamdar Hostel

Fatimiyah Educaticn Metwork

Hahtt Charitable Trust

Makit Medical Trus

Habit Poar Fund

Al-Savyeda Beneviolent Trust

RahrratBai Hahib Feod & Clathirg Trust
RahmatBal Habily Widaws & Orphan Trust
The Jaciety for the Rehabilitation of Speciat Children
Institute of Business Administration

Habib Education Trust

Pakistan Mermon Educational & Welfare Society
Dhoraji Vouth Services Faundation
Bait-ul-Sukean

Abdul Sattar Edhi Foundation

Memon Educational Boarg

Pakistan Mernon Wornen Educatiznal Society
Child Aid Association

Patients' Aid Foundation

Dhoraji Association

Rotary Cluk of Karachi Continental

Ahmed EH, Jaffer Foundatian

Ciow 86 Children Critical Care Foundation
Al-Umeed Rehabilitation Association
Anjuman Behbood-e-Samat-e-Atfal

Bantva Memaon Jamat

Bantva derman Rahat Committes
Crar-ul-Sukun

The Indus Haspital

Marie Adelaitle Leprosy Centre

Publican Alurnni Trust

Al-hustafa Welfare Society Trust

fehira Homes

Ahrmed Abdullah Foundation (M8 &yesha Mernorial Centre)
Kashrnir Education Foundatian

Bantva Arjurman Himayat-e-lslam

Academny of Guaranic $tudies

Caravan of Life (Fakd) Trust

The Kidney Centre

28.2 Donations paid in excess of s 100,000 to a single party during (h year are & follows;

2014

2013

—— Rupess in 000 ——

10,625
6,000
54000
2,500
2,000
1.020
1.000
1,000

SE0
SE0
960
G960
9&0
800
750
700
&G0
500
500
500
500
500
500
300
300
300
300
290
250
250
250
250
250
250
250
250
250
210
200
200

150
120

%900
6,000
S00
2,00:0
300
1,000
Sa0
950
960
eed]
Sa0

&0

S0
a0
200
00

70
300

250
250
250
250
250
250
[Z0]

750
200
200
150
120
500
500
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Rupees in ‘000 ——
Afzaal Memarial Thalassernia Foundatian - G0
tziz Tabba Foundation (Tabba Heart Institute) - g0
Crevelopments in Lteracy - 350
Pak #edical and Welfare Trust - 250
Shaukat Khanum Mernoal Trust - 250
Saylani Welfare Intereational Trust - 250
The Aman Faundation - 250
ICHA, Rieu Pogr Welfare Assaciation - 200
Sanjan Nagar Public Education Trust - 200
Milestone Charitable Trast - 162

Nare of the directors, executives and their spouses had interest in the danations disbursed during the years 2014 and 2013,
except for denations paid (.

Name of Donee Directors Interast in Donee as
Habib Charitable Trust iar. Al 5. Habib Mernber of the Board of Trusteas
Haluity Education Trust Mr. Al 5 Habib Member of the Board of Trustees
M. Mohamedali B, Habik Member of the Board of Trustees
fdr. Mubammad H, Habib Member of the Board of Trustees
Habib tedical Trust M. iohamedali R. Habib Memier af the Board of Trustees
Hahiky Paor Fund tir. Mobamedali R, Habib Mermber of the Board of Trustees
Habib University Foundation M. Al 5. Habily herrioer af the Board of Cirectors
Mr. Mohomed Bashin Member of the Baard of Directars
tir, Mohamedali R, Habib Mermber of the Board of Directons
Wir, Mubamrmad H. Habib ternber of the Bogrd of Directors
Mohamedat Habib \Welifare Trust M. Ali & Habib Member of the Baard of Trustees
RakrnatBai Habib Food & Clathing Trust kir. Maharmedali B, Habib termker of the Board of Trustees
RahmatBai Hakit Widowes & Crphan Trust Mr, Muhammad H, Habib Mernber of the Board of Trustees
Shaukat Khanuen Memarial Trust e, Ali 5. Habib Mernber of the Board of Govemors
28.3 Auditors' remuneration 2014 amz
Rupees in "0 ——
Audit fee : 1,530 1825
Review of half-yearly financial statements 640 &8
Certifications and agraed upon procedures engagements 5093 910
COut-of-packet experses 1,278 ]
8,541 417
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29,

30.

OTHER CHARGES : Note

Penaities impased by the SBR
Warkars welfare fund il

2014

{14,734)
THATE

155,742

2013

Rupess in ‘000 ——

17,254
128,538

145,752

29.1 Under the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance (WWF} 1971, the Group is liable to pay workets' welfare fund & 2% of

arcounting profit before tax or taxable incame, whichewer is higher,

TAXATION
Forthe year

Current
Beferred

For prior years
Current
Ceferred

0.2

30.1a) Hahib Metropofitan Bank Limited {holding company)

2,764,846

(370,857}

2,393,889

00

100

4,393,989

1,979,748

{466,460}

1,513,288

{574,632}
651,930

7L

1590526

Incorne tax assessments of the Bank have been finalised up ta the tax year 2014 (corresponding to the accaurting year
enced 31 Decernber 2013). Certain appeals are pending with the Commissioner of Inland Revenue {Appeal) ard Appellate

Tribunal Infand Revenus (ATIR). However, sdequate provisions are being held by the halding cornpany.

b) Habib Metropolitan Financlal Services Limited (subsidiary company)

The subsidiary campany has filed returns of total incorne upto the tax vear 2014 ffinancial wear ended 31 Decernber 2013)
which fs deemed to have been assessed under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 unless selected by the taxation autharities

fior audit purpeses.

30.2 Relationship between tax expanse and accounting profit

Frofit bafore tax

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 35% (2013: 354
Tax effect of in¢ome taxed at reduced rates
Prior years taxation

Others

Tax charge for the year

2014

7336,138

2,567 649
(180,617}
100}
6,857

2,393,98%

213

Fupess in OX) ——

317,254

1.791,053
(225,326)
77,238
(47,835)

1,590,526
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30.3 Thraugh Finance Act, 2010 certain amendments have been introduced in Seventh Sehedule 1o the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. The provision for advances & off balance sheet items are allawed at 5% of total gross advances for consumer and
SHEs (as defined in SBF prudential Regulation). The pravision for advances and aff balance shest iterng other than thase
falling in definition of consumer & SMES are allowad up to 1% of such total gross advances.

Further, Rule 8{4] of Seventh Schedule allows for amounts provided for in tax year 2008 and prior o said tax year for
doubtful debts, which were neither claimed nor allowed as tax deductible in any year shall be alloweed as deduction in
tax year in which such doubtful debits are written off.

With reference to allowability of provision, the management has carried out an exercise at period end and concluded that
full deduction of provision in succeeding years would be allowed and accordingly recogrized defarred tax asset on such
pravision amourtting to Rs. 3408971 thousand (2013:Rs. 3,131,043 thousand.

Note 2014 2013
Aupees in 000 ——

31. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after taxation 4,942,150 3,520,768

{Murnber in 000 ——
Wiaighted average numier of ordinary shares 1,047,831 147,831

(Rupees)
Basic and diluted earmings per share 472 337

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Fupees in ‘000 ——

Cash and balarices with treasury banks 3 18,640,853 21,208,774
Balances with other banks 9 1,670,331 3552654
Creatcdrawn nostno aC0ounts 17.2 (726,859} (399825
Onerdrawn local bank accounts 17.2 {148,656) (119473

19,635,665 24242177

33. STAFF STRENGTH
{Number)

Perrmanant 3,006 2678
Ternporary £ on contractual basis 303 310
Graup's own staff strength at end of the year 3,309 2538
Cutsourced £25 553
Total staff strength . 3534 2,581
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34. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

34.1 General descriptlon

The benefits under the funded gratuity scheme are payable on reticement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service,
The benefit is equal to one month's last basic salary drawn for each year of eligible senvice subfect to a maximurn of 24
years last drawn basic salary. The minimurn qualifying period for eligibility under the plan is five years of continuous service.

34.2 Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuation was caried out on 31 December 2014 using "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Methad®

The main assurnptions used for the actuarial valuation were as follows:

Discount rate - percent {per annurm)
Expected rate of return on plan assets - percent (per annum)
Long termi rate of salary increase - percent {per annum)

Note

34.3 Reconciliation of payable ta defined bensfit plan
Fair value of plan assars 346
Present value of defined benefit obligations 347

Amcunt pavatde to the plan {deficit

014 2013
11.50 1300
11.50 13.00
10.50 12,00
2014 2013
— Rup=esin ‘000 ——
F62,504 S18394
{961,616} {§le8)
{198,712 {297 624)

The abowe balance includes actuarial gain of Rs. 7,568 thowsand (2013 acturial loss of Rs. 104,448 thousand),

34.4 Movement in payable to defined benefit plan

Opening balance (acutarial ksses)

Defined benefit charge to prafit and loss 345
Defined benefit charged (o ather comprehensive

income - actuarial (gain) £ boss for the vear 348
{entribution to the fund 346
Clasing balance

34.5 Charge for defined bsnafit plan

Cument service cost M7
Met interast 347
Expected retum on plan assets 345G

Total charge recognised in the profit and loss account

297624 1,532
132,810 91,344
{7.568) 104,448
(224.154) -
198,712 297,604
100,056 79634
103413 69,056
{70.665) {57.346)
132810 934
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More 2014 2n3
Rupeesin 00—
34.6 Movement In fair value of plan agsets
Opening balance . 518,354 51240
Expected return on plan a3sets 345 0,665 57346
Artuarial loss recognised in ‘Cther Comprehensive Income’ 43 (0327 (24,1263
Benefits paid 347 (40,982) [26,966)
Cantibution to the fund 344 224,154 -
Clasing halance 62004 51E3%4
34.7 Movement in present value of deflned benefit
obllgation
Opening balarce 816018 613971
Current seryice <ost 345 100,056 79,634
Interesy cost 345 103,419 69,056
Actuarial (gain] 7 boss recognised In ‘Other
Comprebenslye Income’ 348 {16,295) 80322
Benefit paid M5 (40,987) (26, 966)
Closing balance 961616 6018
Mote 2014 2012
Rupees in ‘0 ——
34,4 Annual actuarial loss recognisad in
‘Other Comprehensive Income'
Expefience (gain} / loss on obligation 37 {16,295] BO322
Experlence oss on plan assets 345 8,327 24126
Total {oaing / loss recagnised during the year 344 (7,568} 104,448
4.9  Actual retumn on plan assets 61,338 33220
54.10 Plan assets comprise the following:
2014 2013
(Rupeesin % {Rupeesin %
‘000 000}
Bank deposits 340 450404 59% 2505913 48%
Federal govemment securties
{Pakistan Investmenit Bonds) 2500 A% 2674 5%
FEL904  100% 518354 1006
34.10.1 The amount represents balance which Is deposited with the branches of the holding company.
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34.11 Re-measuraments recognised in ‘Other
Cemprahensive Income’ during the year

Note 204 2013
Rupees in 000 ——

Actuarial gain £ lass on obligation

- DCemaagraphic assumption - 3313}
- Fimancial assumptions {9,613} {91,931)
- Experience adjustrment {7,282 181,566
Retumian plan assets over interest income {61,338) (332200
Adjustment for mark-up 70,665 57,346
Total te-measurernents recognised in Cther

Comprehensive [ncome 348 {7.568) 104,448

312 Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying cne assumption keeping afl ather assurmptions constant and
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit abligations under the varipus emplayes benefit
schemnes. The increase / {deciease) in the present value of defined benefit cbligations as a result of change in each
assurnpticn is summarnized below;

2014
Rupees in 000
Increase in Discount Rate by 1% {82,992
Decrease in Discaunt Rate by 1 % 104,737
Increase in expected futue increment in salary by 1% 107,009
Oecrease in expected future increment in salary by 1% {52,333
Increase in expected withdrawal rate by 10% 073
Decrease in expected withdrawal rate by 10% {1,002
Increase in expectad merality rate by 1% 342
Decrease in expected morality rate by 1% (343}

Although the analysis does not rake account of the full distribution of expected cash flows, it daes pravide an
approwimation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

3.13 Historical Information

2014 2013 202 2011 2010
Rup=es in T
Fresent value of defined benefit abligation 051,616 E1&018 613,872 G, 245 420,087
Fair value of plan assats (762,904} (518334} (5121400 (3818%) (337025
Deeficir 198,712 297624 101,832 70456 B3,062
Actuatial (air) / loss an abligatior: {16,895) 80323 27416 {24701 1,350
Actuarial loss 7 (gain) on assets 9327 24126 7,080 @07 14 080

35. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Group operates a contribulory provident fund scheme for permanent ernployees. The employer and employee each
centribwites 109 of the basic safary to the funded schame every manth.
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36. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

President &
Chief Executive Directors Executives
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 213
Rupees in 000
Fees - - 2,000 E110 - -
Managerial rerruneration 55,500 52,399 - - LBSEETD 1604004
Charge for defined
benefit plan 2,713 1,884 - - a1,361 57000
Contribution to defined )
contribution plan 2,780 2,760 - - 20,500 73,138
Lhilities &,808 363 1,832 1,756 7507 1,592
Bonus 6,900 3135 - - 230,750 204372
Others - - " BETS 5775 - -
73,746 60,541 17,507 15641 2408983 1,940,115
Numnber of persons 2 2 7 7 1,069 929
261 The Chief Executive, Executive Director and certain exacutives arg provided with free use of cat in acecordance with their

terms of enployment, The Chief Executive is also provided with leave fare assistance,

37. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

158

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between kniwledgeabls and
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. ’

The fair value of tragded irvestments s based on quoted market prices except far tradable securities classified by the
holding company as held to maturity’. These securities ane being carried af amortized cost in order 10 comnply with the
requirernents of BSD Circular Mo, 14 dated 24 Septernber 2004, and have been disclosed in "Annexure I

Fair values of unlisted equity investrnents is determined on the biasis of breakup value of these invesiments 3 per the
latest available financial staternents,

Fair value of fixed term loars, other assets, other lisbilities and fixed term deposits cannct be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to the absence of current and active market for such assets and liabifities and reliable data regarding
market rates for similar instruments, The pravision for impairment of ivans and advances has heen calculated in
arcordance with the Group's accounting policy a5 #tated in note 24,

The maturity and repricing profile and effective rates are stated in nates 425 and 42.4 respertively.
I the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are nat significantly

differenit from their canmying values since assets and liabilities are either shart-term in nature or in the case of customer
loans and depasits are frequently repriced.
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38.

39

37.1 OH-halance sheet financial fnstruments

Forviard purchase of fareign exchange contracts

Forward sale of foreign exchange contracts

Trust activitles

24

2013

Contracted Fair Contracted
Value Valye Valye

Rupees in 000

Fair
Yalue

100,046,711 97,978,022 53504354 57873184

102,285,035 100,337,219 60959246 60198773

The holding company is currently not engaged in any trust activities,

SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The segment analysis with respect to business activities is as follows;

Total income *
Total expensas *

MNet income

Segment assets

Segment non performing loans
Segment provision requined
Segment liabilities

Segrment return on net assets (%)
Segrment cost of funds (%)

Tatal income *
Tiokal expensas *

Net income

Segment assets

Segment non perfarming loans
Seqment provision required
Segment fiabilities

Segment return on net assets [
Segrent cost of funes (%)

*tncludes Rs. 12,118,113 thousand (2¢13: Rs. 6,472,928 thousa nd) of inter-segrment revenues ard EXDEN SRS,

2014
Trade & Retail Commercial Total
Sales banking Barking
Rupees in 00
21,397,239 6,317,528 22457425 50,172,503
{17,1B2,353) {5324.416) (20,329,684} (42,836,453)
4,214 386 993,512 212771 _ 7336139
235288770 1881181 160,504,886 3F7 674,817
- 4,385 18,320,745 19,325,134
- 4,106 15657, 740 15,651,846
6,096,507 85120119 261,682,760 352,905 686
9,00 6.64% 8.58%
7.30% 5.60% T
2013
Track: & Fetail Commeercial Total
Sales banking banking
Aupees in G00
14,275,145 A728.160 13930419 35934324
(11045441} [6.456.606) {13314923) (30,817,036}
1230304 1,277,494 61549% 5117254
150 445,053 1,397,052 159,554,633 311,395837
- 4,106 16,952 430 16,973,536
- 4,106 13,451,755 13,455,261
2334912 121372544 159,652,798 283410354
S45% 8.37% 8.73%
7.34% 5.32% £.34%
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Group has related party relationships with its ultimate parent campany, campanics with commean directarship, key
managerment persannel, directars and employees’ retirement benefit plans.

Contributions in respect of employees retirement henefits are made in accordance with actuarial valuation and terms of
contribution plan Salaries & ahowances af the key management personnel ae in accordance with the terms af their
emplayrment. Cther transactions arg at agresd terms.

31 December 2014

Liltirmate Associates Ky Directors Retirement Total
panent mianagement benefit
COHMPanY personnel plans
Rapees in XK

Deposits
At beginmirg of the yeer 179,325 5,220,156 48,351 04775 1077055 632 662
Received dunng the year 22,255,537 1,046, 264405 401,440 1,368,482 3,990,102 1,074,280,416
Repaid during the year (22.140,393) (1.031,808025] (401,661} [1,200,007) _[3,963,63?] [1,055,608,7 29
Atend of the year 264,359 10,676,536 49,180 385,250 1098520 21504355
Advances
At beginning of the year - 202003 108,546 - - 2128559
Ciskrsed durrg the year - 3BAD5253 B4, 062 - - 38470215
Recovered during the year - (3%584.681) (9,984 - - (38,594,865
At end of the year - 1,840,385 163524 - - 2003909
Barik balances held by

he Groug B 33719 - - - 67,430
Crver digwn Bank T ) -

balances held by

the Group 34,661 - - - - 34,661
Mark-up f iaturn / — - T - - T

inferest recenable - 8617 - - - EE1F
Mark-up / return / : - = = - = =

nterest payable - 205011 1,308 3736 150094 458,550
Managerment fee - = = - = = =

payable for

technical ared

consUltarcy

services” 13255 - - - - 113255
Prepayrents / _ B

Aduance deposits - 4,757 - - - _ 4,747
Ingurance prerrium ard - T

ather payatiles 30,200 a7 - - - 30670
Transaction-related - T - = = - =

contirgent liabilities - 2479183 - - - 2479183
Trade-related contingerit - T — B

liabilities - 563771 - - - 5637701
Receivable/ payables = = = T

agast purchase /

{sale] of securities 7103 (269 {526} - - 6,308
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31 Degernber 20 3

Ulirmate Assarianes Key Diirectors Retirerment Total
parent franagerment benofic
COMMpary personne] plans
Hupecs in '0ng

Deposits
A beginning of the year 61,390 6,010,387 24338 151459 1830080 8,108,154
Recoived during the year 1 7604,100 P2 5Ti5e7 386590 1036460 68,1886 F7TH0,749
Repaid during the pear (17.516,166) (753,364,718 1364547} {881,144 (6939636 _[779066,241)
Atenrdof the year _ s 53005 48351 306775 - 1077055 6832662
Advances
Al beginning of the year - 1602 820 25,668 - - 1628488 -
Cishursed during the year - 37,133 504 115,337 - - 3723901
Rerovered during the year - [3E.716451) Ay - - (34,738,950
Atend of the year T 108546 - - 859
Bank balances held by

the Group 19480 w8512 - - - 307,962
Over diawn bark balances - o

held by the Group . 3w - - - 73336
Mark-up / retum / imerest T

receivable f 13,088 - - - 1309
Mark-up / return £ o B

interest payatile . - 131,865 0% 2097 N < §
Managernent fae payable - B - o

fior technical and

cansullancy services * 164,350 - - _ - - . 184350
Prepaymnents / Advance o o

doposits - a5 - - - 4715
Insuranee Pramium and - o

other payable 2200 s I - - 25,189
Transaction-related B

contingent liabilities - _ 21w - - - 2113083
Trade-telated contingent - _ o —

lighilities - 5195352 - - - 5,195,352
Advance received against ) - ) ' -

pregaid card - [ - - - 122
Rereivabde/ payables = - o

against puichase /

(sale) of securities 9839 - N - 9584
* Management fee is a5 per the agreerment with the halding compa .
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Transactions during the year
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Ultimate Associates ey Directors Retirement Total
parent management benefit
company personnel plans
Rupees in 000

hark-Up / return / interest earned - 126,37 10,685 - - 137,056
Mark-ug f retum f interest

expensed - 1,11.616 2879 30031 118,182 1,262,708
Cormmission / brokerage /

bank charges recovered 14412 120,580 200 - - 135,192
Commission / brokerage /

park charges paid 419 1,240 - - - 1,659
Rent income - - - - - -
Salaries and allowances - - 286,538 - - 296,538
Dhrectors' fees - - - 9,000 - 9,000
Contribwion to defined

benefit plan - - - - 122810 132,810
Contribution o defined

contribution plan - - - - 124,833 124,833
Fent expenses - 16,613 - - - 16513
InsUrance premiurm expenses 6,000 6470 - - - 12470
Maintenance, electricity.

stationery & entertainment

EXPEnses - 47,887 - - - &7 887
Management fee expense

foor technical and

consultancy senioes” 206,297 - - - - 206,257
Conation paid - 13,540 - - - 13,540
Professional / ather charges paid - 1,881 - - - 1,881

* Management fee is 35 per the agreement with the hekding company.,
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Transactions during ths year

Fow the year ended 31 Decernber 2013

Lltirmate Associates Key Directors Retirernent Testal
parert Managemeant benefit
COHT Ry persennel plans
Rupees In 000
Mark-up / returmn / interest earmed f 128,747 6,429 - - 135142
Mark-up / return / interast
gxpensed - 573738 1,074 15,794 123238 713855
Commission / brokerage /
bank charges recovered 9289 205,694 144 - - 405,123
Commission £ brokerage /
bank charges paid 361 20163 - - - 26524
Rent income - 495 - - - 445
Dividend income - - - - - -
Gain on sale / redemption of
securities - 11,366 - - - 11,356
Salaries and allowantes - - 247,051 - - 24705
Cirectos' feas - - - 2110 - 8110
Lontribution 1o defined
benefit plan - - - - 91,344 91,344
Contribution to defined
centribution plan - - - - 113,960 113,540
Rent expenses - 18493 - - - 18,493
INsUFance premium expenses 24,200 17,785 - - - 4] 985
aintenande, electricity,
stationery & entertainment
eXpenses - 43535 - - - 43535
Maragernent fee expense
far techinical and
consultancy servicest 169687 - - - - 165687
Donation paid - 8170 - - - 8170
Frofessional / other charges paid - 3,644 - - - 38641

* Managernent fee is a5 per the agreerment with the haotding company.
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CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY
41.1 Scope of Applications

The State Bank of Pakistan {SEPY thrgugh its BPRD Circular N 6 dated August 15, 2013 has issued Basel N Capital
instructions for Banks # DFls. The revisicn to the previously applicable Capital Adequacy reguiations perain
comgpenents of eligibhe capital and related deductions. The amendments bave been introduced with an aim 1 further
strengthen the existing capital related males. Basel M instructions have becorme effective from December 31, 20%3;
however, therc is a transikional phase during which the complete requiirements would hecome applicable with full
implementation by December 31 201%, This Capital Adequacy framework i3 applicable 1o thie Growgs,

The Graups capital adeguacy is reported using the rules and ratios picwided by the State Bank of Pakistan. The ca pital
adequacy 1atio s a rmeasurs of the amount of a Group's capital cxpressed as a percentage af its risk weighted assels
(RWWAs), Banking operations are categarized as either Trading Book or Banking Book and BWas are determined
according ta specific reatments as per the requirement of SBP that measure the varying levels of risk attached fo
an-balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. Under the current capitah scdeguacy regulations, credit risk and
market risk exposures are measured using the Standardized Approach and operaticnal risk is measured using the
Basic Indicator Approach. Cradit risk mitigates afe alsc applied against the Bank's expasures based an eligible coliateral.

41.1.1 Capital managemant

The abjective of rmanaging capital is (o safeguard the Group's ability to Continue a5 4 going Cancern. Itis the policy
af the Group L maintain a strong Capital base 50 a5 1o Maintain Mvestor, depositar and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business, The Group aims 1o rnainlain an optimum level of capital aleng with
rmaxirnizing shareholders' retum,

Stafutory minimum capitat requirement and capital adequacy ratic

Tha SEP through its BSD Cireular No. OF dated April 15, 2009 has prescribed the minimum paid-up capital inet of
sccumulated losses) for Banks to he raised t Rs10 billion by the year ending 31 December 2013, The paid-up capital
af the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2004 sicd gt Bs, 10,478 million (2013 Rs. 10,478 milfien) and is in
cormpliance with SBP requirements.

Banks are also required to maintain @ minimum Capital Adeguacy Ratio fC AR of 1086 of the risk weighted expasures
af the Bank Further, under Base! Il instractions, Banks are also required 1o maintain 3 Cornman Equity Tier 1 [ET 1)
ratics and Tier 1 ratic of 5,508 and 7.00%, respectively. As at 31 December 2014 the Grawp was fully compliant with
prescritbed ratios a5 the Group's CAR was 1 7 39% whereas CET 1 and Tier 1 ratios both stond at 15.86%. The Bank and
its inclviduatly regulated operations have complied with all capital iequirerments throughout the year

Tier 1 capital comprises of Comrmen Equity Tier | {CET 1) and Additianal Tier 1 (AT 1) capital.

CET 1 capital includes fully paig-up capita, balance in share premiurm aCcours, general reserées 25 pei the finan<ial
staternents, et un-appropriated profits meeting the ehgibiity criteria.

&7 1 capital includes irstrarments meeting the prescribed SEP crivena £4. perpetual non-cumulative preference shares.




HABIBMETRO

The deductions fiem Tier 1 capital inclrde mainly;

i)

if

Book value of goodwill / intangibles;

Deeficit on revaluation of available for sale investments;

fieciprocal cross holdings in equity capital instrumants of other ban ks, financral institutions and insurance COMmpanias;
Imvestment in mutual funds above a prescribed ceiling;

Threshold deductions applicable fram 2014 an deferred tax assets and cartain investrents;

4% of investments in majarity owred securities ar other financial subsidiaries not consolidated in the statement
of financial positiar, during transition phase.

Ties 2 capital includes general provisions far loan losses, surplus an the revaleation of d35eTs - net of tax, foreign
exchange translation reserves and subordinated debits (meeting the revised eligibility criteria}, The deductions from
Tigr 2 include rmainly:

Reciprocal cross holdings in other capital instumments of ather banks, finandial institution and insurance companies;
401 af investments in majority owned securities or otier financial subsidiasies rot consolidated in the staternant
at firancia pasition, during transition phase
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412 Capital Structure

ot 31 Decermnber 3] December Souce ased

14 1 on reference
2 213 rmberfiom

Mote 4132

Rupees in ‘000

Common Equity Tiet 1 capital (CETY): Instruments and reserves
Fully Faid-up Capital / Capital deposited with 36F 10478315 10478315 {2l
Balance in Share Premium Account 2,550,985 2560985
Reserve for isswe of Bonus Shires - -
Dhscount o lssue of shares - -
Gengral /- Statutony Reserves 8607838 TH42520 ul
Gain £ (Iosses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge - -
Uriapprogriated /7 uniemitted profits / (losses) 8 559,835 6603,745 b
hiinority Interests arising from CETY capitalinstruments izsued ta third
panty by consolidated bank subsidiaries fameunt allowed in
{ET1 capiral of the consclidation group) - - {
CET 1 basfowe Requlatory Adjustments 216,977 2736557
Total requiatary adjustrnents applisd to CET1 4121 285922 3744

Commeon Eguity Tier 1 29,971,055 2028157

Additional Tier 1 (AT 13 Capital
Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus ary related share premium - -
of which; Classified as eguity - - i}
of which: Classified a3 [iabilities - - [
Additional Teer-1 capitatinstrurnents issued to third parties by
cansolidated subsidiaries tarmount allowed in gegug AT 1) - - il

of which: instrurment issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out - -
AT1 before requlatory adjustments - -

Tatal regulatery adjustment applied o AT1 capital 4122 - -
dditional Tier | capital after rmqulagry adjusiments - -

Additional Tier 1 capita! recognized for capital adequacy - -
Tier 1 Capital iCET1 + admissible A1} IA) 29,931,055 27028157

Tier 2 Capital

(ualifying Tier 2 capitak instruments under Basel Il plus any
related sharte prermium - - 1]

Tier 2 capital instyuments subject 1o phase out armangement izt
wner pre-Basel § Rules - -

Tiet 2 capital instruments issue to third party by consolidated
subsidiaries (amount allowed in groug tier 2} iz
of which: nstruments issued by subsidianies subject to phase out - -

General Provisions of general reserves for loan losses-up to maxdmum
af 1.25% of Credit Rick Weightad Assets 326,696 854,152 il
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HABIBMETRO

Rewaluation Reserves et of ke
e which: Revaluation reserves on fied assets
ot which: Uniealized Gains / Losses on AFS
Foreign Exchange Translation Rgseres
Undisckosed ¢ Cthier Reserves iif arm)

T2 befors requlatory adjustmens
Total regutatary adjustrent applied 10 T2 capiral

Tier 2 capital (T2} after regulatory adjustments

Tier 2 capital recogrized for capital adequacy

Portion of Atditional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capitaf
Total Tier 2 capital admisslble for capital adequacy (B)

TOTAL CAPITAL {T1 + admissible T2} {A+B)
Total Rigk Weighted Assets (RWA)

Capital Ratios and buffers fin percentage of risk weighted assets)
CET1 to total Riva
Tier-1 capital v toral Ry,
Total capital to toral BWa
Bank specific buffer requirement {mirirmum CET1 requiternent plus
capital conservation buffer plus any other buffer requirement)
of which: capital consenvation buffer requirerment
of which: countercyclical buffer requirernent
of which: D-51Bor G-518 Buffer requirement
CETN available 4o meer buffers (44 a percentage of risk waightad agsers)

Naticnal minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP
CET1 minimum ratic

Tier 1 minfmum ratio

Total capltal minimurn ratie

ote 31 December - 31 December Soue based
204 on eeference

ZN3 number o

Rupees in 00 Mot 4132

- portion of
FTREN Y
- v

2875502 1,133,022
4123 - -
2875402 113302
2,875,902 1,133,022
2875002 1,133,022
32806957 28181170
415 138 668,194 172883713
15865 1563%
15.86% 1563%
17.35% 16.20%
5.50% 5.000%:
10.36% 1063%
S.50M 300%
EALI 6.501%
10.00% 10.00%
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2, i 1 ital: i
41.21 Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments 31 December 31 Decerober based

on reference
2004 203 reamber feom
Hupees in 00 Meite 4132
Goodwill (net of elated deferred tax liabitigt - - (- ot
Al other intanaibles inet of ary associated defermed tax liability] 535 - (k] - (3
Shortfallin provisions against classified assets - - ify
Defaried tax assets that rely on [uture profitability excluding thase arising
fiom ternporary differences (net of related tax fiabality) - - §ni-[r] ™ %
Diefine-perefit pension fund ret assets - - -l
Recipiocal oross holdings in CETY Capital instry ments of barking, financial
and insurance entities 285,387 337414 [}
Cash flow hedge reserve - -
Irvestment in own shaies S CETY instfurmants - -
Securitization gain on sale - -
Capitat shortfal| of regulated subsidiaries - -
Deficit an accoumt of evaluation frem bank's hoktings of fixed assets / AFS - - (ab)

restrnets in the capital instrurments of banking, finarial and insurance
antities that are outside the scope of requlatory consalidation, whese the
tank daes not oven mare than 10% of the issued share capital
{amount abave 10% threshald) - - | falfac)ae)
Significant investeents ir the capital instruments issued by banking,
financial and msurance engities that are outside the scope of regulatory

consolidation [amount abawe 10% thresheld) - C o | (e
Difirred Tax Assets afising from tem porary differences (amaount above 10%
thrasheld, net of selated tax liabilig - - i

Amount £xgeeding 15% threshold - -
of whick: sigriticant inwestments in the commen stocks of finandial entities - -
of which: efesred tax assets arising from temporary differences - -

Natignal specific segulatory adjustments applied o CETI capital - -

Irwestiment in TrCs of other bariks exceeding the prescribed it - -

#iry ather decuction specified by SBP - -

Requiatory adjustment applied to CETY due o insufficient &T1 are Tier 2 to
cover deductions -

Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 285922 337414

41.2.2 Additlonal Tiar 1 Capital: regulatory adjusiments

Ivestrment in mutual funds excesding the prescrited lirmt
{5BP specific adjustment - -
Irgestrient in cwn ATT capital instru rents - -
Recipgocal cross hioldings in Additional Tier 1 capital instrurnents - -
Inwvestenents in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
entities that 4 cwtside the scope of requlatory consolidation, where the
biank dows el cwh more than 10% of the issued shiaee capital (amount
abowe 10% threshiold) - - far)
Significant irvestmients in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial
and insurance entisies that are euiside the soope of regulatary consolidation -

{ae)
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HABIBMETRO

Partion of deduction apelied 3050 to Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital | based on
pre-Basel Il teeatment which, dufing transitional period, remain subject
trdeduction e additional tier-1 capital

Adjustments applied to Addirional Trer 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover
daducrions

Tewtal of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital

41.2.3 Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

Forticn of deduction applied SC:30 to ier 1 and Tier 2 capital based an
pre-Basal I treatrnent which, during reansitional period, rermain subject to
deduction from tier-2 capital

Reciprocal ¢ross hotdings inTier 2 instrumants of banking, firrancial and
insurance entiies

Irvestrneret in own Tier 2 capitalinstrument

Investrnents in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
entities that are utside the scope of requlatary consolidation, where the
bank coes not own more thar 10% of the issued share capital (amount
above 108 threshold)

Significant irvestments in the capital instrurnents issued by barking, finandial
and insurance entities that are aurside the scope of regulatory consclidation

Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital

41.2.4 Additional Information
Risk weighted assets in raspect of amounts subject to Pre-Basal I Treatment

Risk weighted assets in respoct of deduction iterns (which during the
tiangilional period will ke risk weighted subjact to Pre-Basel |l Tragtrent)
of whic h: deferred tax assets
of which: dafined-benefit pension fund rat assets
of which: recogrized portion of investiment in capital of banking, financial
and ingurance entities where holding is less than 10% of the isspeg
common share capital of the entity
of which: Recognized portion of investment in capieal of banking, financial
and insurance antities where holding is maore than 10% of the issyed
eommen shate capital of the entity
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
Mor-significant investmenits in the capital of ather financial entitres
significant irvestments in the commen stock of financial entities
Deferred tax assets arismeg from tem porary differances (et of related
tax liability)
Applicable ¢aps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2
Prewisians eligibile far inclusionin Tier 2in respect of exposures subject
tor standardized appiosch (prior to apelication of cap)
Cap on inclusion of provisions in Teer 2 mder standardized 3pproach
Frwisions eligible foringlusion in Tier 2ir respect of exposures subject o
interrial satings-based appeoach [prior to application of cap)
Cap for inclusion of pravisians in Tier 2 under internal intings-based approach

1 Decembar Source based

on reference
hurnbe fom
Meite 41,32

{aeh

(af}

31 Cecember
na M3
Rupess in 000
- J -
1,775,729 w7063
1,263,457 2047155
325,696 B4 157
1,873,357 1,773,686
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41,3 Capital Structure Reconciliation
d44.3.1 Step1

The accounting consolidation is identical to the scope of regulatory consolidation.

170

41.3.2 Step 2
31 December 2014
Balange sheet Under
as in published reaulatory
financial scope of
statements consolidation  Raf.
Rupees in 000
ASSETS —
Cash and halances with treasury banks 18,640,853 15640853
Balances with other banks 1.670,331 [EXIER]
Lendings to financial institutions 340877 3408775
[nvestments 221 B84 817 INpART7
af which: Non-significant investements in capital instruments of banking, financial and - - a
insurance entities exceeding 10% threshald
af which: significant irvestments in the capital instruments issued by
bankirg, financial and - - b
insurance entitis exceeding regulatory threshold
of which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatery thresheld - - c
af which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrurment (separate for CET1, AT T2 285,387 285,387 d
of which: others - - e
didvances 134,175,636 134175436
shortfaltin provisions / excess of tofal EL amount over eligibke provisions under 1B - - f
general prowisions reflected in Tier 2 capital J25.505 326,49 g
Fired Assets 3,025,426 3005426
Deferred Tax Assets 1,268457 1263457
of which: DTAs that rely on future profitability excluding those ansing
frorm temporary differences - - h
aF which: [iTAs aising from termpearary differences exceeding regulatory threshold 1268457 1,268457 1
{ther assets 13,640,521 13540521
af which: Goodwall - - i
ol which: Intangibles - - k
of whigh: Defined-benedit pension fund net assets - - §
Tertal assets 397 674817 R




HABIBMETRO

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Bills payahle
Borowings
Depasits and ather accounts
Sub-gedimated loans
of which: efigibke far inclusion in AT
of which; eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Liabilities against assats subgect to finance lease

Dieferred tax fabilities
ol which: OTLs related ko gooduwil
of which: CFTLs related ra intangible assets
of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets
of which; gther deferred ta liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilites
Share capital
of which: amount ¢ligite for CET1
of which; amount eligible for AT1
Reserves
ot which: portinn eligible for inclusion in CET1 (skatutary reserve, special resarve
B revenue resenaa)
of which: portion eligible for inclusicn in Tier 2
Unappropriated profit £ {losses)
Minoricy Ingerest
of which; portion eligible for inclusion in CET1
of which: partion eligible for inclusion in AT1
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
ourpfus on revaluation of assets
of which: Revahuation reserves on Fised Assets
of which: Unealized Gains / | 04525 on AFS-Recognised
ofwhich: Unrealized Gains / Losses on AFS-Unsecognised
In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction fram CET1)
Total Equity
Total liabsilitkes and Equity

11 December 2014

Balance sheet
asin published
financial
statermants

Rupces in 000

Uncler
regulatory
scope of
tonselidation

5,201,432 5,400 482
24,383,582 24883963
119,948,274 5943274
12,871,948 12871544
-~

362 905,686 2005686
13,025,300 13029300
13,029,300 13028300
5627838 5627534
8627838 BR27 538
8,559,830 £.559839
4554154 4,352,154
4,549,206 2540 206
2,002,048 2iiL 4R
3,769,131 34,769,131
397674817 HTET4E17

Ref.

LS = S v I = |

o W E

i
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414 Main features template of regulatory capltal instrumants

172

1 lssuer Hakily Metropolitan Bank Lrd,
2 Unigue identifier (=g KSE Symbal or Bloomberg idenitifier etc] HiE
3 Gaverning laws) of the instrument Capital Market Law
Regulatary treatrment
4 Transitional Basel M rules Common Equity Tier 1
5 Post-transitional Bazel |1l rules Commion Equity Tier 1
& Fligible at solo/ groupd group & solo (Group & standalong
7 Instrurnent type Comrncn Shares
8  Amount recogrized in regulatory capital (Currency in PER
thousane, as of reporting date) 32 806,957
& Farvalue of instrument PER 10
10 Accounting classification Shareholder equity
11 Criginal date of issuance 1992
12 Perpetual or dated Perpetual
13 Original maturity date Mo maturity
14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisary appraval Mot Applicable
15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redernption amount Net Applicable
16 Subsequent cali dates, if applicable Wak Applicable
Coupons / dividends Nat Applicate
17 Fized or loating dividend f coupcn Mot Applicable
18 Coupon rate and any related index / benchmark Mot Applicable
19 Existence of 3 dividend stopper Mo
20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or marvlatory Fully discretionary
21 Existence of step up o1 other incentive to redeem Mo
e Moncumulative or cumulative Mot Applicable
23 Conwertible or non-comvertible Mon-comvertible
24 If carvvertible. comversian trigger £5] Mot Applicable
5 IF comwertiple, fully or partially Mot Applicable
il If convertitle, conversion rate Mot Applicable
27 If corwertitle, mandatery or optional conwversion Mat Applicable
P if convertible, specify instrument type convertible into Mot Applicable
A If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it corverts into Nrit Applicable
0 Wiite-ckwen feature Not Apphcable
3 |Fyrite-cdown, weita-down trigger(s) Nat Applicatile
32 IF write-dowen, full ar partial Mot Applicable
33 If ‘wyribe-chawm, permanent of [mporary Mot Applicable
34 If termporary write-clown, description of write-up mechanism Not Applicatle
35 Position in subordinatien hierarchy in liquidation {specify instrument
type immediately senior ta instrument) Mot Applicable
3%  Mon-compliant ransitioned featuies Nok Applicable
37 Ifyes, specify non-corngliant features Mot Applicatie




HABIBMETRO

415 Risk Waighted Assats

The risk weighted assets &0 capital ratio, calculated

fallows:
Credit risk

Forifolios subject 1o standardised
approach {Simple)

On-balance sheet

Cash and cash equivalents
aaverniment of Pakistan and SBe
Public sector entities

Banks

Corparate

Retail

Residential mortgage finance
Past due logns

Operating Fixed Asiets

Cthers atseets

Off-balance sheat

Mon manker related
Market related

Equity Exposure Risk
Unider simple risk weight method

Total Credit Risk
Markat risk

Capital requirement for portholios
subject to Standardised Approach

Interest rate risk
Equity pasition risk
Fureign exchange risk

Tatal Market risk
Operatlanal risk

Capital requirement for operational
rizks surbject w1 Basic Indicatar Appraach

Total Risk Weighted Assets

Capital adequacy ratio

CETY ta astal R,
Tier-1 capital to total Riva
Tatal capital  wetal R

in accordance with the SBP's guidelines on capital adequacy is as

Capital Requirements flisk Welghted Assets
204 2013 214 2013
Rupees in'000
123.341 64867 1,233,414 628,674
667 438 480,519 6674283 4.805,187
Q025235 Q3BT 0,252,345 Q38471049
315192 24,343 3,151,516 243426
49,234 12662 492 344 126624
347,433 294,733 3,47%4,325 2947334
302485 303,553 3,024,850 3035526
567,952 4893497 5,979,521 4.853,96%
11448310 1107279 114,283,008 110,727,509
3124160 2726,180 31,241,555 23,261 802
174,474 G747 1,744,740 S70.416
3208634 3,024,123 32,986,335 30,241,218
259915 92413 2,589,159 a24115
14,586,859 14,189,325 148,868,582 141,853,242
522036 4,647,313 6525448
43,909 6,903,325 549 588
21049 2,017 988 3117
1,085,490 Se7 004 13,568,626 7,338,553
. 2018479 18532153 25,230,987 234518
18,090,828 16,668 562 188,668,154 172,883,713

31 December 2014

Required

5.50%
7.00%
10.00%

Actual

15 86%
15.86%
17.39%

31 December 2013

Required

5000
G500
10.00%

Actual

15630
15635
16.25%
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41.6

41.7

Credit risk; General disclosures

The froup uses the ‘Standardised Appraach’ in calculation of credit risk and capital requirements,

The Group uses reputable and SBP approved rating agencies for deriving fisk weight 1o spedific credit exposures, These
are applied consiskently acrass the Group credit portiolio for both on - balance sheet and off - balance sheet xposUnes.
The mathodology applied for using External Credit Assessment Institutions {ECAI's) inclusive of the aligninent of alpha
nurnericalscale of each agency used with fisk bucket is as per SBP guidelines as is given biztonw:

Types of exposures and ECAY's used

FHE]
Exposures JCR-I5 PACRA S&P Fitch Moody's
Corpoate v v - - -
Banks ¥ v ¥ v -
Sowereigns - - - - -
SME's v ¥ - - -
Securitisation - - - - -
Cthars - - - - -
Credlt Exposures subject to Standardised Approach
2014 203
Rating Amount  Deduction Net Amount  Dedectlon Met
Expusures category  outstanding CRM ampunt outstanding CRM amoundt
— Bupeas in 3K -
Cewporata 1 4081 054 747080 4233974 1,365,493 11,404 1,354,004
2 4532043 47004 4,434,939 f,405,254 2412 463452
34 Geg,327 - 968,327 - - -
5.6 - - - B9.793 - wl7aa
Clairns an bariks with
ariglnal maturity of 3
menths o less 9,287,755 796811 5,500,944 4454566 - 4454606
Retail 2050,938 1.855%2 6,243,854 2199834 1449551 750,253
Puklic sector 1 14, 567858 5,744,366 8A2ES2 14162,35% 6332372 TR 08T
entities 23 - - - B v - 7471
Others 259,933,029 - 259933029 178,276327 - 178,276,527
Unrated 125,491,115 9823968 115,662,148 130068787 1792235 122,276,450

The forms of collaterat that are deerned eligible under the Simple Appreach'to credit risk rnitigation as per SBP guidelines
are used by the Bank and primarily includes cash, gevemmerit and rated] dabt securities.

The Group applies SBP specified haircut ta collateral for cradit risk mitigation. Collateral management is embedded
in the Group's risk taking and fisk management pelicy and procedures. A standard credit granting procedure exists
which has bean well-disseminated down the line, ensuring proper pre-sanction evaluatian, adequacy of security,
pre-examination of charge / control dacurments and monitoring of each exposure oh an ongoing basis.

Collateral information is recorded diigently in the Bank's main processing systems by type of collateral, arnount of
collateral against relevant credit exposures. A coheslve accounting f risk mariagement system facilitates effective
collateral management for Basel reparting.




HABIBMETRO

42,  RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management aspects are embedded in the Group's strategy, organization structure and processes, The Group has adopted
a cohesive risk management structuse for credit, operatians, liquidity and market risk 1o strengthen the pracess and system from
the faundation as controls are more effactive and valuable when built into the process. Effective risk Management is considered
esseritial in the preservation of the assets and long-term profitability of the Group, Clear guidelines anad lirmits, which are under
regular review, are backed by a system of internal controls and indeperdent auditinspections, Internal repcating / MIS are additional
tools for measuring and controlfing risks. Separation of duties is also embedded in the Grou 138 system and Grganization,

42.1 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in  transaction rmay default, It arises principally in relation ta
the lending and trade fimance business carried out by the Groug,

As per Basel il methodology the gross credit risk weighted exposure incorparating relevant credit canversion factor is
Rs. 140,868,582 thousand [2013: Rs. 141,893,242 thousand) as depicted in note 41 5,

The holding compary’s strategy is t minimize credit risk through a strong pre-disbursement credit analysis, approwal ang
tisk measurement pracess added with praguct, geography and customer diversification. The Group, as its strateqic
preference, extends trade and working capital finanging, so as to keep the major portion of exposure ffunded and
non-funded) on a short-term, self-liquidating basis. Majer portion of the Group's credit portfolie is priced on flaxible basis
with pricing reviewed on periodic basis.

The Group's credit policy / instructions defines the credit extension criteria, the eredit approval and manitoling process,
the lnan ¢lassification systern and provisioning policy

The Group continually assesses and monitors credit expasures, The Graup fllows bath objective and subjective criteria
of SBP regarding loans classification. The subjective assessment pracess is basad on ranagement s judgement with respect
t0the barrower's character, activity, cash flow, capital structure, security, quality of rmanagement and delinquency,

42.1.1 Segmental informaticn

204
. . Contin ies and
Segmaent by class of business Advances (Gross) Depaosits _ mmmm
[Rs. in DY) * s in DR0) L] [A= in 000} b ]

Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishineg 449,376 0.30 9,147,361 286 140,679 045
Altarnobile and transpertation equipmant 1937026 1.29 9,423,745 295 12788201 432
Cernent 1,229,738 082 8,00 076 253 40849 137
Chemicals and pharmaceuricals 5375977 158 12,523,885 4,01 6ADGFI4 210
Construction 1,673,707 (RE 12,779,307 399 1284572 043
Electronic and electrical appliances 1,758.028 250 11,144,347 348 341324 1%
Exprts £ imports 6,641,837 442 8,451,378 264 16924425 5A
Finarial 2133158 142 6,384 855 200 144622920 4881
Foorwear and leather qarmerirs 782412 Q.52 6,555,651 205 417883 (.14
Indlividuals 1884654 1.26 31,781,171 2556 172,000 Q.06
lnsurance - - FE6 762 024 - -

Mining and quarrying 473,605 032 21,736,268 6.7¢ 156890 Q05
Powver (electricity), gas, water, sanitary 12,491,729 8.32 11,847,180 370 13020748 439
Sarvices 2,338,740 158 15,148,556 473 2718591 0.03
Higar 1,994,133 133 1,350,855 043 37303 093
Teutile 71835664 47.90 20,601,034 647  A5033.788 2105
Transpon, storage and commynication 5 144,058 343 10,529,251 129 20664 020
Wholesale aned retail trade 3,792,105 253 6,187,093 1.03 3,371,924 1.14
Othess 26,137,201 1741 85110486 20,35 203966 688

13164178 10000 319948274 0000 296379627 10000
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204

debvances [Gross) Deposits Contingencies and

commitmants
Sagmant by sector {Fs. in 000 % s in 00 % {Fi. in 000 %
Pubilic f Govarnment 20238825 1348 35993,459 1156 14,038,016 474
Private 128525353 8652 282054815  BBA4  2HA2LENT 956

150,164,176 100G 310048274 10000 2BG279.627 100K

Datails of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment

2014 2013
Classified ;';f,i‘;ir:fn Classified ;.-Eﬁfglr;.
advances heid adhiances heald
Rupees in 00

Automohbile and transportation equiprment 1,436,203 1,139,178 85,688 §9,222
Cerment - - 25,000 24312
Chermical and phatmaceuticals 238,577 147,854 33,789 3,204
Construction 219394 13.851 24,006 12944
Ebectronics and electrical appliances 658,520 655,150 B37AN 715549
Expants / impaorts 1,185,080 1,024,241 1120010 7,354
Footwear and leather gamnents 11,907 11,907 17365 17,365
Indivichuals 4779 4778 22447 4942
Power {electricity), gas, water, sanitary 245 504 41,136 F2920 27N
SEnACES 139,254 73,360 24050 136,116
Textile 12,671,379 11,112,778 12,7632 10,309,430
Transport, stomage and communication 4,782 1,883 12,335 5794
Wholesale and retail trade go7an 492034 455954 47321
Others 1,610,344 943,715 1.22%334 873,855

19,325,134 15,661,846 16,573,536 13455801

Datails of non-performing advances and specific provisions hy sector

204 2013
i tpecific ) Specific
Classified prgfri;iun Classified prension
advances held advarres hakd
Rupees in 100
Private 19,325,134 15,661,646 16,973 536 12,455,861
Geographical segment anlaysis 2014
Profit Tutal Contingencies
before assets 2":: ii;se‘é and
taxation employed pioye ComMMmitments
—  Rupeesin 000
Pakistar 7,336,139 397674817 34,765,131 296, 279627

Total assets employed include intra group items of Rs. 33,711 thousand.




HABIBMETRO

422

423

Market risk

Market Fisk is the risk of loss in earnings and capital dus to adverse changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and market conditians.

The Board of Directors oversees the Group's strategy for market risk exposures, Asset and Liakility Committes (ALCCH
which comprises oF senior rmanagerment oversees the staternent of firancal positian of the Group, assesses the impact
ofinterest rate change on Bank's investment portfolio through strass testing, and performs aversight function to ensure
sourkd asset quality, liquidity and pricing. The investment palicy amongst other aspects covers the Group asset allocation
guidefines inclusive of equity investments. While market risk limits are in place and are monitored effectively, the Group
has alsa fomnalized liquidity and market risk management policies which contain action plans te strengthen the market
risk management system and a middle office function oversees limit adherence. Market risk can be categonised inte
Initerest Rate Risk, Fareign Exchange Risk and Equity Position Risk

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the probablity of ioss resulting frorn adverse movement in exchange rates.

The Group's business model for fareign exchange risk is to serve trading activities of its clients in an efficient and cost
effective manner, The Group is not in the business of actively trading and rmarket making activities. A conservative risk

approach and the Group business strategy to work with export oriented dients gives the ability to rmeet its foreign
exchange needs.

2014
Assets Liabilities Off balance ij:;fg"
Rupees in ‘00 ExpuaUre
Fakistzn Rupee 345,563,620 310676496 74,452 34,961,576
Unitex] States Dollar 48,374,408 47571178 {9.030) 794,200
Euriy 2,241,448 1,252,952 980,503
Great Britain Pound 1,015,506 2645638 (7,973 (1.619.679)
Asian Currency Unit 365,732 721,285 10453 {355,557
lapanese Yen 63,184 835 - (6,121)
Araty Emirates Ditham 16,859 58 {68,470) 16801
Canadian Dollar - 1508 - {1.780)
Avustratian Dollar 2,666 - 129 2666
Saudi Riyal 6,357 - - 6,357
Cither curencies 2507 35,297 439 {9,835
52,111,097 52229190 (74452) {192,445)
307674817 362,905,686 - 34708110
177
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Pakistan Rupee

United States Dollar
Eurcy

Grear Britain Pound
Asian Cumency Unit
Japanese Yen

Arab Ernirates Dirham
Canadian Dollar
Australian Dollar
Saudi Aival

Orther curnrendes

203

Assets Liablities ?hzlé'filfeﬁ et Tﬁ'ﬁg”

Rupees in X kel
271,592,146 245892789 201317 27961,174
35712134 33233542 26742200 f199,628]
26060198 1,349 364 (1294347 21,887
A51,484 2558540 1,920,008 12552
SeR463 374HH) - 195,563
126302 1,006 {168675) [43387)
3239 128 - i
34016 - - 3Me
3308 - - 3308
10,383 - {7.045] 3338
58964 1685 {37035} 20244
3g8034M 375180685 {2.261317) 24,109
283410354 - 27 085,283

311395637
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426 OQperatlonal risk

The Group aperates in a controlled manner and eperational risk is generally managed effectively. With the evolytion
of operation risk maragement into a separate distinet discipllne, the Group's strategy is to Further strengthen risk
mManagerment system along new industry standards,

The Graug's operational risk management strategy takes quidanee from Basel - il, Committee of Sponsoring Orgarizaticn
of Tread way Comrmission (COSCH publications, the SBP guiclelines and standard industry practices. The operational risk
maragernent manual addresses erterprise wide risk drivers inclusive of tach nology infrastructure, software hardware
#nd LT, security.

While broadening sk awaranass and 2s5Uiing regulatory compliance, internal Audit department of the Group is an
impartant pillar of the Growup's risk management and controls infrastructure, perfarming contlnuaus reviews to improve
the quality of the Group's intermal control emvironment, ensuring an effective balance in safety and performance of
processes and agding value towards the Group's risk mitigation endeavours,

The Group's business continuity plan includes risk ma nagerment strategies te mitigate inherent risk and prevent
interruption of missicn critical servicas caused by disaster event The Group’s operational risk managerment infrastructuie
has been further strengthened thraugh the establishment of a separate operational and risk contral unit

42.7 OQperational riak - Disclosures Basel specific

The Group uses Basic Indicator Appraach {14 for requiatory capital at risk calculation for operational risk. Under BIA
the capital charge for operational risk is a fixerd percentage of average positive annual gross income of the Group over
the past three years, Figures of capical charge of operation tisk for the vearis Bs. 2,011,081 thousand (2013: ks, 1,892,153

thousant),
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43. KEY ISLAMIC BANKING OPERATIONS

434 The Bank is cperating 10 (2013; 6) Islamic banking branches in Paldstan, The statement of financial position and profit
and loss account of these branches as at 31 December 2014 and for the year are as follows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with ather banks

Dige from financial institutions
Imvestrnenits

el arnic finansing and related assets
COiperatinng fixed assets

Drefermed tax assets

Cher assets

LIABILITIES
Bills payakle
Due to financial institutions
Diepasits and other accounts
— Lurrent accounts
- Saving deposits
= Term deposits
~ (thers
- Deposits from financial institutions - remunerative
- Deposits from financial institutions - nan - remunerative

Dk 10 head office
Other liabilities

MNET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Lslarmic banking fund
Reserves
Unappropiated profit

Surplus on revaluation of assels

186

Mote

A3

2014 2013
RUI:IEES in ') ————

1491819 1150981

500,000 -

7896317 -
16233976 | 14042730
6,725.141 7475012
39502 18,040
654,199 2738851
33544054 25380514
147,596 143,884
373,400 165,300
4721,766 27575339
§793,428 6,872,578
15.077.307] | 11231401
64,145 154578
1,040,922 1541006
122,495 9957
30,720,063 22784859

175,589 -
678791 649,396
32095839 23749039
1,449,115 1631475
1,002.512 1,002633
387,874 505,306
1,390,386 1,507,939
58,720 123536
1,631,475

1449115




HABIBMETRO

43.2

43.2

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20714

Profit / retum on finanging, investments and
placements eamed
Profit / return on deposit and other dues expensed

Met spread samed

Provision against non performing finanding
Prawision for dimirution in the value of investments
Prawision for consurmer financing arah

Bad debts wiritten off directly

Net spread after pravisions

OTHER INCOME

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Dividend income

Income from dealing in foreign curencies

Gain on sale / redemption of securities

Unirealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of imvestrments
classifled as held-for-trading

Cther incorme

Total other income

QOTHER EXPENSES
Administrative expenses
Cither prowisions / write offs
Other chiarges

Tatal other expenses

Extra-orcfinary / unusual items

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Remuneraticn to Shariah Advisor / Board -
Charity Fund

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Paymenits  wtilization during the year
Chosing balance

204 2013
Rurpees in ") ———
2,305,636 1918823
{1.800,022) (1,338,506)
505414 580,317
145,032 15405
- {64
(145,932} {1534)
359,682 364976
30883 22808
13127 12413

139370 -
45,395 37085
228,775 72306
588,457 637282
200,583 131975
{200,583} {131,576)
387874 505306
387,874 505306
2494 1.749

23 -

(23) -
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Mote

A-2  Islamic financing and related assets

Financings ! investmants { receivahbles
— Murabaha A2
~ljarah
- Diminishing musharika
— Expont refinange murabaha

Advances
- Advance against murabaha
- Advance against ijarah
- Advance against diminishing musharika
- Achvacnie against Istisna

Aasets | Inventeries
— ltisna Goods and other assets

A-21 Islamic made of financing
Fimancings / investments / receivables
Advances
Assels / Inventories

A-2.2 Murabaha financing
turakiaha receiveable - gross
Less: Deferred murabaha income
Prowision against murabeha financing

43.4 Following pools are maintained by the Bank's tslamic Banking Divislon (IBD)

- Gereral pool - local curendy,

— Gengra) pool - foreign cumrencies,

- Speciflc pool and

— Islarnic Export Refinance Scheme musharika poot

148

2014 2013
— Rupeesin 000 —-
4,214,607 5669333
271,260 198,243
1,271 564 1,122,334
394,700 165,900
6,154,131 2.155860
245789 70580
4541 4,686
219,544 197486
B5,000 -
555,274 27352
19,736 -
6,729,141 78245012
0,154,131 7155860
555274 273,152
1 gﬂ?."’ﬁ -
6,729,141 FAMIMZ
4,590,152 6008883
{157,427) {309,189
(178118 {31,361]
414,607 5,669,333




HABIBMETRO

43.4.1 Nature of general ! specific pools local and foreign currencies,
ay Consigeration attarhed with risk and reward

- Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment

- All financing proposals under pracess at varous stages and likely to be extendad in near futyre

- Expected withdrawal of deposits according to the maturities affecting the deposit base

- Maturities of funds cbtained under modaraba arangement from Head Office, Islammic Banking
financial institutions

- Elernent of fisk assaciated with different king of investments

- Reguiatory requirement

- Shaia'h compliance

B

Priority of utilizaticn of funds

Denositor funds

Equity fuands

Placerment / imvestments of other 18]

Mudaraba placement of HabibMetra [Head Office)

c] Weightages for distribution of picfils

Prafits are calculated an the basis of weightages assigned (o different tiers and tenars (General pool). These
weightages are announced at the beginning of the period, whils cansidering weightages emphasis were given 1o
the: quantum, type and the pesiod of risk assessed by applying following factors,

- Conrracted perivd, nature angd type of depesit / fund.
- Payment cycle of profit on such deposit / fund, ie. manthly, cuarterly or on matueiny
- Magnitude of risk

Any change in profit sharing weightages of any categary of depesit / fund praviders shall be applicable from the next
inanth (where applicable).

d) Identification and allacation of pool related incorne and expenditure:

The allacation of income and expenditure to different pools is being done based on pre-defined basis and accounting
principles as mentioned below:

The direct expenditure shall be charged to respective poal, while indirect expenies including the establishment cost
shall be borne by HabibMetro B0 as Mudarib. The direct expenses to be charged 1o the poal may include depreciation
of fjarah assets, insurance / takaful expanses of poal assets, stamp fee or documentation charges, brokerage fee for
purchase of secuiities, impairment / losses due to physical damages to specific assets in pocls ete. However, this is ngt
an exhaustive list; HabibMetro 1B peal management framawark and the respective pool creation mernorandurn ray
identify and sperify these and other similar expenses to be charged 10 the podl.

18%




43.4.2 Islamic Export Reflnance Scheme musharaka pool

Al the features ard other details-of this pook ane in accordance with the SEF IERS Scheme and al eirculars and instrugtions
issued feom time 1o tirne in this regard.

43.5 Avenues | sectors of economy / business where mudaraba based deposits have been deployad.

- Agriculture, foresting, hunting and fishing
- putormobile and transportation egquiprment
- Chermical and pharmaceuticals

- Electronic and electrical appliances

- Fimanzials

- Preduction and transmission of enargy

- TFootwesr and leather gaiments

- Textile

- (Others

43.6 Parameters used for allecation of profit, charging expenses and provisions efc.

a) Basis of profit allocation

From January 01, 2014 to
December 31, 2004

Local Foreign
Currency  Currency

- Rabbul Maal S0 10%
- Mudarib 0% S

b) Charying expenses
The direct expenses are charged to respective pool, while indirect expenses including the establishment cost shiall be
borne by IBD as Mudarit,

ct Provisions
Specific provision amounting to Rs. 274,912 thousand has been made during the year 2014,

43.7 Mudarib share {in amount and percentage
of distributable incame)

2014 2013
Rupess |n ‘000 % Rupees in ‘D00 %
Rabbul Maal 1067.958  4232% 433263 4218%
Mudarit 1455796  57.68% 1142466 5782%
Cistributable Income 3,523,754  100.00% 1475749 100.00%

140




HABIBMETRO

43.8 Amount and percentage of mudarib share transferred

to depasitors through Hiba {if any) 2014 2013

Fupees in ‘000 ——

uclarib shara 1,455,796 1,142 466

Hiba 661,152 443,454

Hibia percentage of muddarib share 45.42% 40575
43.9 Proflt rate earmed vs. profit rate distributed to the

depositors during the year 2014 2013
(Peicertage)

Profit rate earned {per annum 8.10% 981%

Profit rate distributed to depasitors (per annum) 6.800% £.86%
44 GENERAL

44.1 Non adjusting event after statement of financlal position date
The Board of Directars in Tts meeting held on 26 February 2015 has proposed a cash dividend of Rs, 2.50 per share

amounting to Rs. 2,619,579 thousand (2013; cash dividend of Rs, 2,00 per share amounting to Rs. 2005663 thousand)
far approval by the members of the Bank in farthcoming Annuat General Meeting.

44.2 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the revised forms of ann ual finaricial staterents of
the banks issued by the State Bank of Pakistan through its BSD Circular Mo, 04 dated 17 February 2006,

435. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were althorized for issue on 26 February 2015 by the Board af Directors of the Bank,

KASSIM PAREKH SIRAJUDDIN AZI12 MOHOMED BASHIR TARIQ IKRAM
Chairman Prasident & Director Director
Chief Executive Offlcar
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HABIBMETRO

6.1  Other paiticulars of listed term finance certificates are as follows:

Allied Bank Limited ||

Askari Bank Lirnitad Nl

Askari Bank Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited I

Bank Alfalah Limived

Engro Fertilizer Limited - Perpatual
MIB Barik Limited

Worlel Call Telecom Limited 11

Coupon rate Paymenit Mztautzity
& months KIBOR plus 85 bps Semiannually  28-Aug-19
£ months KIBOR plus 250 bps serriannually  18-Mow-19
& months KIBOR plus 120 bps Semi annuwally  30-5ep-21
& months KIBOR plus 195 bps semiarnually  7-Feb-15
£ months KIBOR plus 125 bps sermiannually  20-Feb-21
& manths KIBOR plus 170 bps Semiannually  18-New-18
6§ menths KIBOR plus 115 bps Sernlannually  19-Jun-22
& months KIBOR plus 160 bs Semiannually  7-0c-15
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SUKUK CERTIFICATES AND BONDS

2014 2013 2014 013 2014 2013
Mao. of certificates Cost .
of Bs. 5,000/~ each Rupess in ‘D00 Rating
Al-Barka Bank Limited (Sukuk Rs 1,000.000- each) 250 - 230,900 . i A
Amrell Steel (Private) Limited 16,000 16,000 60,800 a7 200 A- -
Engra Chernical Pakistan Limited | 0000 20000 100,000 100,300 “ "
Engro Chemical Pakistan Lirnited || 0000 14000 29,885 45,304) " "
Engro Foods Limited 0000 X000 100,000 100,000 - -
GOF larah Sukuk - 8th lssue - 1E - SLHE ] " b
GOP larah Sukuk - 9th lssue 60000 p0.255H 300,000 301,295 H "
{30F ljarah Sukuk - 10th lssue 745,453 45, o 3,727,764 225,060 - "
GOP Jjarah Sukuk - 11th lssue 200000 Zp0000 1,00 00 1,200,030 " "
GOF ljavah Sukuk - 13th Issue 450000 450000 2,250,000 2,250,000 * -
GOP larah Sukuk - 14th lssue 1452200 1,552,200 7,261,000 7761000 i bl
£0F Ljarah Sukuk - 15tk lsse 200,600 - DB0,205 - " "
K.55uleman Esmailji & Sons {Private) Limited . 30,000 - 25523 - “
Litwerty Power Technology Limived 100942 694 435,994 4G4, 707 w "
Paple Leafl Cement Limleed | 21,000 21,000 35810 BoB32 A- BB+
Pakistan tAobile Communicatian 17,391 - 86,957 - AR -
Sitara Energy Limited - 11,273 . 21,136 o -
Sitara Per Quide Limited 20,040 20,0x30 66,243 8,262 b "
Three Star Hosiery Mills Lirriverd 1,900 1,508 9,500 4500 - H
WAPDA Sukuk Bonds 2nd ssye o000 TO000 175,000 233333 = "
WAPDA Sukuk Bonds 3rd Issue 85,000 BEA00 475,000 435,000 ™ -
17314358 14,006,788
*Ratings are nat available
8.1 Other particulars of Sukuk certificates / bonds are as follows:
Maturity
Coupon rata Paymeni date
Al-Barka Bank Limited & rnonths KIBOR plus 125 bps sami annually 26-5ep-24
Annredl Steed (Private) Limited 3 months KIBOR plus 250 bps Cuarterty 0. Dec-16
Engre Chemical Pakistan Limited | & months KIBOR plus 150 bps Semi annually £-5ep-15
Engrg Chemical Pakistan Linnited || & moniths KIBOR plus 211 bps Jemi annually lun-17
Engro Foods Linnited G rnonths KIBOR plus 69 bps Semi annualby 13-Jan-17
GOF ljavah Sukuok - Sth Issue *& months T Bills Weighted Average Semi annually F1-Nmy-15
OF ljarah Sukuk- 10th lssue *a months T Bills Weighted Average Semi annwally N-Noy-16
OF ljarah Sulak - Tth Issue *a months TEills Weighted Average Semi annually 1-Mow-15
GOF jarah Sukuk - 13th ksue "6 montha T Bills Weighted Average Semiannually 21-Mgne-15
GOP (jarah Sukuk - 14th |ssue "6 months T Bills Weighted Average  Serni annually IR-Mar-16
GOP arah Sukuk - 15¢th Issue *6 months T Bills Weighted Average  Serniannually 35 1un-17
Liberty Power Technology Limlied 3 moniths KIBOR plus 300 bps Cuarterty 18-Mar-21
haple Leal Cement Limited { 3 manths KIBOR plus 100 bps Cuartery 3-Dpc-18
Pakistan Mobile Comemunication 3 meaniths KIBOR plus 2140 bps Quarterly -Der-18
sitara Per Owide Limited 3enoniths KIBOR plus 100 bps Quarterdy 19-Fabm0
Thiree Star Hasiery Mills Limited £ manths KIBOR plus 325 bps Semi annually 4tug-15
WAFDA Sukuk Bonds 2nd lssue & rgaths KIBOR minus 25 bps Semi annlally 13-ul-17
WaPDA Suakuk Bonds 2rd lssue & ronths $EOR plus 100 bps Serni annally 14-001-21

*These rabes are based G reuters shest applicable For nes six months,
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BRANCH NETWORK

Registered Office and Head Office

Ground Floor, Spencer’s Building, G.PO. Box 1285,
11 Chundrigar Road, Karachi-74200, Pakistan
AN (92-21)111-14-14-14 Fax: {92-21) 32630404-05

HMB Connect: 0800HABIB (42242)
Far information / query: info@habibmetro.com

SOUTHERN REGION Dastagir ¥arimahad Branch

(5ub Branch of Hussainabach Khalid Bin Walid Road Branch
KARACHI DHA Phase | Branch Khayaban-e-Bokharl Branch
Main Branch OHA Phase il Branch Khaysbarn-e-5ehar Branch

Abul Hassan Isphani

CHA Phase IV
{Sub Branch of Khayaban-e-5ehar)

Khayakian-e-Shahiaz Branch

mj:ﬂ:::‘:h of University Road] DHA Phase 1 ; Khayaban-e-Tanzeem Branch
(Sub Branch of Hussanabad) DhtSub Bralmr_h :: Khayaban-a-Shanhbaz) Ema:g:; IaEr::h .
. h : S .
Alamgit Road Branch : Mo:n Crlgny Branc Lutt; hl a 1:|| raru:l . raé: i X
Allarma Iqbal Road Branch iy I-:IS Branch Lan i 'Inbal;sgua I:ea rang
ilga iaquata ranc
Bahadurabad Branch {5ub Branich of City Court} Lines Acea Branch
Bilal Chowrangi
(Sub Branch of Korangl) Fatcon Comiplex Branch WA, Jinnah Road Branch
Block #4 Garden East Branch Malir Cantt Branch
{Sub Branch of Hyderi) Gizrl Branch Malir City Brarich
Block N Gulistan-e-bohar Branch Manghopir foad SITE Branch
(5ub Branch of UP More) Gulshan Chowrangi Branch Marriot Road Branch
Boat Basin Branch Gulshan-g-Ali M her B "
Bahri Bazar Branch {5ub Branch of Water Purnp] jﬂ' . E:‘ j Branch
Bombay Bazar Guilshan-e-lgbal 13-C Mission Road Branc
(5ub Branch of Jodia Bazar) f5ub Branch of Hasan Square] Mithadar Branch
Business Avenue Branch Gulshan-e-lgbal Branch Maeel Eousing S,nz}c{u;_ty
Ceramic tMarket Branch Gulshan-e-Mayrnar Branch Na [1Su : r;nr;:h f Im}
Chandni Chowk Branch Hastat Mohani Road N Zf"‘ab:d N°'3
{Sub Branch of Paper Market) azirna .
Chartered Accountant Avenue {Sub Branch of North Nazimabad)
{5ul Branch of Glzn) Hassan Sguare Branch NS ex Karsaz Branch
City Court Brarch HBZ PMaza Branch ) ome xB rsaz branc
Civil Lines Brarnch Hussainabad Branch Nishtar Road Branch
. ) Morth Karachi Industrial Area Branch
Clifton Block 2 Branch Hyderi Branch orth Napser Road Branch
Clifton Branch industrial Arza Korangi Branch © ap_|er oad Branc
Cloth Market Branch Itehad Branch ':““ rfk’:a?d B:’"Ch
DHA Branch Jodia Bazar Branch per h ket brant
Dalrnia Road Branch Juna Market Branch PaposhNagar Branch
FIB Colony Branch
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HABIBMETRO

Flaza Square Branch

Fort Crasim Branch
Preedy Street Branch
Progressive Plaza Branch
5ITE Branch

Saba Averue Branch
Saddar Branch

safoora Goth Branch
Sehba Akhtar Road

{3ub Branch of Gulshan Chowrangi)

Shahbaz Cornmercial

(5ub Branch of Khayaban-e-Bokharh

Shahrah-e-Faisal Branch
Shahvah-g-Liaquar Branch
Shahrab-2-Quaideen Branch

Sharfabad
{5uly Branch of Alarngir Road)

Shershah Branch

shireen Jinnah Colony
$Sub Branch of Cliftan)

Sindhi Muslim Society

(5ub Branch of Shahmah-e-Cuaideen)

Soiddier Bazar Branch

South Park Avenue
(=utr Branch of 1ttehad)

Stadium Road Branch
Star Gate Branch
Stock Exchange Branch

Sunset Boulevard
{5ub Branch of Gizr)

Textile Plaza Branch
Tirmbser Market Branch

Tipu Sultan Road
{5uby Branch of Stadiurm Road)

Univarsity Road Branch
LIF More Branch

Water Pumip Branch
West Wharf Branch
ZAMIAMA Branch

HYDERABAD

Hyderabad Brarch
Latifabad Branch

OTHER SOUTHERN REGION CITIES!

Dakarki Branch
Hub Chowki Branch
Kirpurkhas Branch
Quetta Branch
Shikarpur Branch
Sukkur Branch

NORTHERN REGION

LAHORE

Lahore Main Branch

Azam Cloth Market
(Sub Branch of Badarri Bagh)

Badarri Bagh Branch

Badian Poad
(Sub Branch of DHA Lahgre)

Baghbanpura Branch
Brandreth Road Branch
Cantt. Branch

Circular Road Branch
Davis Road Branch
CHA Eranch, Lahore
CHA Phase IV Branch

DHA Phase
tSuby Branch of'Walton Road)

EME Society
t5ub Branch of Raiwind Road)

Farsal Town
(5wl Brarch of Model Towr Link Boad)

Ferozepur Road Eranch

Fruit & 5abzi Market
iSub Branch of Ravi Road)

Garden Towert Branch
Guikerg Branch
Gulshan e Ravi Branch

Igbal Tenwn Branch
Jzhar Town Branch
Matn Boulevard Branch

Mcleod Road
(Sub Branch of Brandreth Road)

Mizri shah
{5ub Branch of Badarmi Bagh}

hcdel Town Lirk Road Branch
Raiwind Boad Brarch
Ravi Road Branch

Samanabad
(Suby Branch of gkl Town)

Shadmian Branch

Shahalam Market Eranch
Shahdara Branch
shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam Branch
Urdu Bazar Branch

Valencia Tonamn
(Sub Branch of Raiwing Road)

Wahadat Road
(Sub Branch of Shadman)

Walton Road Branch

WAPDA Town
tSub Branch of Jahar Town)

FAISALABAD

Faizalabad Main Branch
Peaples Colony Branch
sargadha Road Branch
Susan Road Branch

University of Faisalabad
{Sub Branch of Faisalabad)

MULTAN

Multan Main Branch
Ghalla Mandi Branch

Gulgasht Colony
iSub Branch of Multam

SIALKOT

Silket Main Branch

Do-Burji Malhiyan Branch
Pasrur Rgad Branch

Small Industrial Estates Branch
Sahawa Brarch

Ligoki Branch
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ISLAMABAD

lslarmabad Main Branch
Bahria Town Branch
E-11

(5ub Branch of F-10 Markaz)

F-10 Markaz Branch
F-2 Markaz Branch

| - @ Bearch

I-111 Markaz Branch
Markaz F-7 Brranch

RAWALPINDI

Rawalpindi kain Branch
labral Read Branch
Kashmir Road Branch
harmna Branch

Muree Road Branch
Fiaja Bazar Branch

PESHAWAR

Peshawar Branch
Khyber Bazar Branch

Rarmpura Branch

AZAD KASHMIR
arra Jattan Branch

tirpur {A.K) Branch
Parig Peeran Branch

GILGIT BALTISTAN

Aliabad Branch
Chillas Branch
Crassw Branch
Gilgit Branch
Jutial Branch
Skardu Branch

206

FATA/PATA

khawazakhela Brarch
Parachimar Branch

Mingara Branch

OTHER NORTHERN REGION CITIES |

Abbottabad Branch
Bahawealpur Branch
Bhalwsal Branch
Chakwal Branch

[.G, Khan Branch

vl Khan Branch
Gujrarwala Branch
Gujrat Branch
Hafizabad Branch
Haripur Branch
Haroonabad Brarch
Hasilgur Branch
Jaukarabad Branch
Jhelurn Branch
Karmakes Branch

Kasur Branch

Kharian City Branch
Lala husa Branch
Manidi Bahauddin Branch
wansehra Branch
htardan Branch

Mouza kachi Jarmal Branch
Markana Sahib Branch
Crkara Branch

Frakirn Yar Khan Branch
Sadigabad Branch
Sahiveal Branch
sargodhabranch
Sheikbiupura Branch
Talagang Branch

Wah Cantt

Yazman Branch

ISLAMIC BANKING
BRANCHES

KARACHIL

Alfalah Court

Joclia Bazar Branch

Kerangi Branch

Rashid Minhas Road Branch
Shahrab-e-Faisal Branch
SITE Brarh

LAHORE

Eadami Bagh Branch
Ciruclar Read
{3ulberg Branch

ISLAMABAD

[slamaksac Branch




HABIBMETRO

PROXY FORM

W

af

being mennbes {3) of Habib Metropalitan Bank Lirited and holding

ardinary shares, as per Reqisterad Folio Mo,

do hereby appaint Fealio Mo,
af
o failing hirn £ ber Folio Mo,
of

anather mernber of the Bank to vote for my / our behalf at the 23rd Annual General teeting of the Bank to be Meld on
March 30, 2015 arwd at any adjournment thereot

Aswitness my / our hard this clay of March 2015,

Witress

. Signature
Marne
Agddress REVEMLIE

ChIC # STARME
Rs. 54-

2. Signature
Marne
Address
CMIC #

Signature of Member(s]

A member entiffed 1o attend General Meeting is entithed 1o appoine proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A prowy should

be a member of the Bank, Mo person shall act as proaxy lexcept for 3 corporation) unless he is entitled ta be present and vote
ir his cwn right,

The ingtrument appainting a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attarney duly authorised in wiiting. If the
rmember is a corporation, its comman seal §if ary) should be affixed o the instry ment.

The proxies shall be depasited at the Registered Office of the Bank not fess than 48 hauss before the tirme of meating.




HABIE METROPOLITAN BANKLTD.

HEAD OFFICE, SPENCER'S BUILDING
11 CHUNDRIGAR ROAD
KARACHI, PAKISTAN

UAN: 111-14-14-14

0800 HABIB (42242)
wwww_habibmetro.com




